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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.
Introductory Note

On November 14, 2019 (the “Closing Date”), Broadmark Realty Capital Inc., a Maryland corporation (formerly named
Trinity Sub Inc.) (“Broadmark Realty " or the "Company”), consummated the business combination (the “Business
Combination”), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 9, 2019 (the “Merger Agreement”), by and among
Broadmark Realty, Trinity Merger Corp. (“Trinity”), Trinity Merger Sub I, Inc. (“Merger Sub I”), Trinity Merger Sub II, LLC
(“Merger Sub II” and together with Trinity, and Merger Sub I, the “Trinity Parties””), PBRELF I, LLC (“PBRELF”), BRELF II,
LLC (“BRELF II), BRELF III, LLC (“BRELF III”’), BRELF IV, LLC (“BRELF IV” and, together with PBRELF, BRELF II and
BRELF III, the “Predecessor Companies” and each a “Predecessor Company”), Pyatt Broadmark Management, LLC (“MgCo I”),
Broadmark Real Estate Management II, LLC (“MgCo 1I”’), Broadmark Real Estate Management III, LLC (“MgCo I1I”’), and
Broadmark Real Estate Management IV, LLC (“MgCo IV” and, together with MgCo I, MgCo II and MgCo III, the “Predecessor
Management Companies” and each a “Predecessor Management Company,” and the Predecessor Management Companies,
together with the Predecessor Companies and their subsidiaries, the “Predecessor Company Group”). Pursuant to the terms and
subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, (i) Merger Sub I merged with and into Trinity, with Trinity being the
surviving entity of such merger (the “Trinity Merger”), (ii) immediately following the Trinity Merger, each of the Predecessor
Companies merged with and into Merger Sub II, with Merger Sub II being the surviving entity of such merger (the “Company
Merger”), and (iii) immediately following the Company Merger, each of the Predecessor Management Companies merged with
and into Trinity, with Trinity being the surviving entity of such merger (the “Management Company Merger” and, together with
the Trinity Merger and the Company Merger, the “Mergers”). As a result, Merger Sub II and Trinity became wholly owned
subsidiaries of Broadmark Realty.

From November 15, 2019, Broadmark Realty’s consolidated financial statements reflect BRELF II, one of the
Predecessor Companies, as the accounting acquirer and successor entity, acquiring the other three Predecessor Companies, the
four Predecessor Management Companies, and Trinity in the successor period. The Business Combination transaction reflects a
change in accounting basis for the Predecessor Company Group (other than BRELF II). As Trinity was a special purpose
acquisition company, its acquisition is reflected as the issuance of shares for cash. For periods prior to November 15, 2019, in
lieu of presenting separate financial statements of each of the Predecessor Companies and Predecessor Management Companies,
the Predecessor Company Group presents consolidated financial statements, as these entities were under common management.
Broadmark Realty was a shell company prior to November 15, 2019, with no assets or operations.

Unless the context otherwise requires references to “Broadmark Realty,” “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our,” refer to
Broadmark Realty and its consolidated subsidiaries after the Business Combination and refer to the Predecessor Company Group
for periods prior to the Business Combination.

As a result of the Mergers and by operation of Rule 12g-3(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act, Broadmark Realty is
the successor issuer to Trinity.
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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Report”) contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this Annual Report,
including statements regarding our future results of operations and financial position, strategy and plans, and our expectations of
future operations, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect the Company’s current views with respect
to, among other things, capital resources, portfolio performance and projected results of operations. Likewise, the Company’s
statements regarding anticipated growth in its operations, anticipated market conditions, demographics and results of operations
are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of terminology such
as “outlook,” “believes,” “expects,” “projects,” “potential,” “continues,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “seeks,”
“approximately,” “predicts,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” “anticipates” or the negative version of these words or other
comparable words or phrases.

99 ¢ 29 ¢ 99 ¢

99 ¢

The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are based on the Company’s current expectations and
beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effects on the Company. There can be no assurance that future
developments affecting the Company will be those that it has anticipated. Actual results may differ materially from those in the
forward-looking statements. Some factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ include, but are not limited to:

o the magnitude, duration and severity of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic;

e  disruptions in our business operations, including construction lending activity, relating to COVID-19;

o adverse impact of COVID-19 on the value of our goodwill established in the Business Combination;

e the impact of actions taken by governments, businesses, and individuals in response to COVID-19;

e the current and future health and stability of the economy and residential housing market, including any extended
slowdown in the real estate markets as a result of COVID-19;

e changes in laws or regulations applicable to our business, employees, lending activities, including current and
future laws, regulations and orders that limit our ability to operate in light of COVID-19;

e defaults by borrowers in paying debt service on outstanding indebtedness;

o the adequacy of collateral securing our loans and declines in the value of real estate property securing our loans;

e availability of origination and acquisition opportunities acceptable to us;

e potential mismatches in the timing of asset repayments and the maturity of the associated financing agreements;

e increased competition from entities engaged in construction lending activities;

e general economic uncertainty and the effect of general economic conditions on the real estate and real estate
capital markets in particular;

e  general and local commercial and residential real estate property conditions;

o changes in U.S. federal government policies;

e changes in U.S. federal, state and local governmental laws and regulations that impact our business, assets or
classification as a real estate investment trust;

e  our ability to pay, maintain or grow our dividend in the future;

e changes in interest rates;

e the availability of, and costs associated with, sources of liquidity;

e the adequacy of our policies, procedures and systems for managing risk effectively;

e the ability to manage future growth; and

e changes in personnel and availability of qualified personnel.
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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of the assumptions prove incorrect, actual
results may vary in material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as
may be required under applicable securities laws.
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PART L.
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (“Broadmark Realty” or the “Company”), a Maryland corporation, is an internally
managed commercial real estate finance company that has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. Based in Seattle, Washington, we specialize in underwriting, funding, servicing and managing a
portfolio of short-term, first deed of trust loans to fund the construction and development of, or investment in, residential or
commercial properties. We operate in select states that we believe to have favorable demographic trends and that provide more
efficient and quicker access to collateral in the event of borrower default. In March 2020, we launched a private real estate
investment trust (the “Private REIT”) offered to qualified purchasers that is managed by our subsidiary and that participates in
our loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2020, our portfolio of 204 active loans had approximately $1.2 billion of total
commitments and $860.1 million of principal outstanding, of which approximately $82.4 million and $37.7 million, respectively,
were sold to the Private REIT. Our active loans are made across 145 borrowers in 12 states and the District of Columbia. We
refer to loans that have outstanding commitments or principal balances that have not been repaid or retired, including loans in
foreclosure, as “active loans.” Total commitments refer to the aggregate sum of outstanding principal balances, construction
holdbacks and committed amounts for future draws and interest reserves on our loans. To date our loan portfolio has been 100%
equity funded, and as of December 31, 2020, we have no outstanding debt. As a public company, we plan to opportunistically
raise capital in the public market from time to time based on market conditions and to execute on cash management tools to fund
the business and produce attractive returns for our stockholders. On February 19, 2021, we closed on a $135.0 million revolving
credit facility, which we expect will enable us to use a larger percentage of our cash balances for lending activities without
planning to incur debt in the ordinary course of business.

Properties securing our loans are generally classified as residential properties, commercial properties or undeveloped
land, and are typically not income producing. Each loan is secured by a first deed of trust lien on real estate. Our lending policy
limits the committed amount of each loan to a maximum loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio of up to 65% of the “as-complete”
appraised value of the underlying collateral as determined by an independent appraiser at the time of the loan origination. Our
lending policy also limits the initial outstanding principal balance of each loan to a maximum LTV of up to 65% of the “as-is”
appraised value of the underlying collateral as determined by an independent appraiser at the time of the loan origination. At the
time of origination, the difference between the initial outstanding principal and the total commitment is the amount held back for
future release subject to property inspections, progress reports and other conditions in accordance with the loan documents.
Unless otherwise indicated, LTV is measured by the total commitment amount of the loan at origination divided by the “as-
complete” appraisal. LTVs do not reflect interim activity such as construction draws or interest payments capitalized to loans, or
partial repayments of the loan. As of December 31, 2020, the weighted average LTV was 59.4% across our active loan portfolio
based on the total commitment of the loan and “as-complete” appraisals. In addition, each loan is also personally guaranteed on a
recourse basis by the principals of the borrower, and/or others at our discretion to provide further credit support for the loan. The
personal guarantee may be collaterally secured by a pledge of the guarantor’s interest in the borrower or other real estate or assets
owned by the guarantor.

Our loans typically range from $0.1 to $40 million in total commitment at origination, generally bear interest at a fixed
annual rate of 10% to 13% and have initial terms typically ranging from five to 18 months in duration based on the size of the
project and expected timeline for completion of construction, which we often elect to extend for several months based on our
evaluation of the project. As of December 31, 2020, the average total commitment of our active loans was $6.1 million and the
weighted average remaining term to contractual maturity of our active loans was approximately seven months. We usually
receive loan origination fees, or “points,” typically ranging from 4% to 5% of the total commitment at origination, along with
loan amendment and extension fees, each of which varies in amount based upon the term of the loan and the quality of the
borrower and the underlying collateral. In addition, we charge fees on past due receivables and receive reimbursements from
borrowers for costs associated with services provided by us, such as closing costs, collection costs on defaulted loans and
construction draw inspection fees.
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Our typical borrowers include real estate investors, developers and other commercial borrowers. We do not lend to
owner-occupants of residential real estate. Loan proceeds are generally used to fund the vertical construction, horizontal
development, investment, land acquisition and refinancing of residential properties and to a lesser extent commercial properties.
We also make loans to fund the renovation and rehabilitation of residential and commercial properties. Our loans are generally
structured with partial funding at closing and additional loan installments disbursed to the borrower upon satisfactory completion
of previously agreed stages of construction.

A principal source of new transactions has been repeat business from our customers and their referral of new business.
We also receive leads for new business from real estate brokers and mortgage brokers, a limited amount of advertising, and
through our website.

We seek to minimize risk of loss through our disciplined underwriting standards. We originate and fund loans secured
by first deed of trust liens on residential and commercial real estate located in states that we believe have favorable demographic
trends and that provide more efficient and quicker access to collateral in the event of borrower default. We believe that the
demand/supply imbalance for residential construction-related real estate loans presents significant opportunities for us to
selectively originate high-quality first deed of trust loans on attractive terms.

We built our business on a deep knowledge of the residential and commercial real estate market combined with a risk
management approach that is designed to protect and preserve capital. We believe our flexibility and ability to structure loans that
address the needs of our borrowers without compromising our standards on risk, our expertise in the loan market and our focus
on newly originated first deed of trust loans have been the basis for our success.

In addition to the natural seasonality inherent in our business whereby winter months are typically less favorable to
construction, restrictions related to the Business Combination decreased the amount of our loan originations for the second half of
2019 and early 2020. The pending Business Combination required us to essentially pause our ability to raise capital and in turn
originate new loans for most of the second half of 2019. In the first quarter of 2020, we focused on rebuilding our pipeline and
began to strategically deploy the proceeds from the Business Combination; these rebuilding efforts began to slow in March due to
the uncertainty associated with the impacts of COVID-19. In March 2020, we launched the Private REIT to provide access to an
additional source of capital and fund participations in loans originated by Broadmark Realty. We believe the Private REIT
enhances our ability to increase originations and grow our asset base, subject to market conditions. As of December 31, 2020, the
Private REIT’s participation in the total principal balance funded and outstanding was approximately $37.7 million.

The COVID-19 pandemic is significantly affecting, and can be expected to continue to impact, the capital markets and
the construction lending market, at least in the near term. While we have implemented a variety of business continuity initiatives,
restrictions imposed in connection with COVID-19 or the impact on key employees, could create significant challenges for our
operations. We have experienced an adverse impact on our loan portfolio primarily in the form of a significant increase in
defaulted loans, a slow-down in construction progress and an expected reduction in demand for and the value of commercial and
residential real estate properties. For example, delays in local government permitting and inspections arising from measures to
limit the spread of COVID-19 have delayed some projects, adversely affecting the ability of borrowers to complete the projects in
accordance with the terms of the loans. Similarly, the COVID-19 pandemic and containment measures have contributed to,
among other things, adverse impacts on demand for and the value of commercial and residential real estate that our borrowers
have developed that make it less likely that a borrower can sell or lease the property it is developing in an amount sufficient to
repay the borrower’s loan, or that a developer, who would be our borrower, will elect to go forward with a new project. As a
result, during the first half of 2020, we saw an increase in delinquencies and requests for extensions or forbearance, which
declined during the second half of 2020. In addition, market conditions, and in some cases moratoriums on the foreclosure
process have increased the timeline to resolve non-performing loans. Delays in repayment of our outstanding loans or sales of
foreclosed properties reduce the capital available for future loan originations. If the pandemic is prolonged, it could increase the
adverse impact on our business and results of operations.
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Markets

At December 31, 2020, we have active loans in 12 states and the District of Columbia with the majority of loans located
in Washington, Colorado, Utah, Texas, Oregon and Idaho. We strategically focus on these states as they have exhibited strong
population growth. At December 31, 2020, more than 90% of our portfolio was secured by properties located in states ranked in
the top ten for migration between 2010 and 2019 according to the Census Bureau, including Washington, Colorado, Utah, Texas,
Oregon and Idaho. Additionally, each of Washington, Colorado, Utah, Texas, Oregon and Idaho are non-judicial foreclosure
states, which we believe encourages borrowers to comply with the loan terms and provides us the option to take control of the
collateral more quickly in the event of borrower default. We continue to increase our national presence, and in this regard, began
operating in the Southeast region in 2018 and the Mid-Atlantic region in 2019 and expect further expansion into states that meet
our preferred criteria.

Industry and Market Opportunity

Real estate investment is a capital-intensive business that typically relies heavily on debt capital to acquire, develop,
improve, construct, renovate and maintain properties. We focus on providing construction, development and investment loans for
the U.S. housing and real estate industries. Due to structural changes in banking, regulation and monetary policies over the last
decade, there has been a reduction in the number of lenders servicing this segment. We believe there is a significant market
opportunity to originate real estate loans secured by the underlying real estate as collateral. Our management team further
believes that the demand for relatively small real estate loans to construct, develop or invest in residential or, to a lesser extent
commercial real estate, located in states with favorable demographic trends presents a compelling opportunity to generate
attractive risk-adjusted returns.

Historically, regional and community banks were the primary providers of construction financing to smaller, private
builders. Over the past several decades, there has been significant consolidation within the commercial banking industry, with the
number of commercial and savings institutions having decreased by 61% and 72%, respectively, between 1992 and 2019, as
reported by the FDIC. In addition, many traditional real estate lenders that competed for loan origination within our target
markets have been faced with tighter capital constraints due to changing banking regulations following the 2008 financial crisis.

While the number of traditional banks and construction loans offered by them has steadily declined, private residential
construction spending and housing starts have continued to recover from the lows following the recession of 2007 through 2009.
Housing starts and completions in December 2020 were at seasonally adjusted annual rates of 1.6 and 1.4 million, respectively,
an approximate five and eight percent increase from 2019. The U.S. Census Bureau and Department of Housing and Urban
Development chart below illustrates historical housing permits, starts and completions from 2015 to 2020:
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While the increases are positive, housing starts and completions still remain below long term historical averages. In a
February 2020 report, Freddie Mac estimated that there were 29 states that had a housing deficit, and that approximately 3.3
million units in the aggregate were needed to make up this deficit. The map below shows the housing deficit as a percentage of
the housing supply by state as set forth in the report.

Estimate of Housing Stock Deficit as Proportion of State Housing Stock
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Source: Freddie Mac

We operate in seven of the ten states with the largest housing deficits. The ten states with the largest housing deficits
have significant overlap with the states with the highest net migration rates between 2010 and 2019 according to the Census
Bureau.

As a result of limited residential housing supply, net migration trends and the current low interest rate environment for
home buyers, we believe the longer-term outlook for new housing demand in our markets remains strong.

Business and Growth Strategy

Our objective is to preserve and protect stockholder capital while producing attractive risk-adjusted returns primarily
through dividends generated from current income from our loan portfolio. Our business strategy is to directly originate, fund,
manage, and service short-term loans secured by first mortgage liens on real property to enable us to generate attractive returns.
We believe our ability to react quickly to the needs of borrowers, flexibility in terms of structuring loans to meet the needs of
borrowers, consistency and expediency in funding future construction draws, intimate knowledge of the relevant markets in
which we operate, and focus on newly originated first deed of trust loans positions us to generate attractive returns.

Our strategy to achieve our objective of continuing to generate attractive returns and grow our business includes the
following:
e continue to increase market share in existing states to satisfy unmet demand;

e increase geographic footprint by focusing on states with favorable economic and demographic trends that provide
efficient access to collateral in the event of borrower default;




Table of Contents

e capitalize on opportunities created by the long-term structural changes in the real estate lending market resulting from
consolidation and increased regulatory oversight of commercial banks and savings institutions;

e capitalize on the relative strength of our balance sheet to grow our customer and asset base while competitors with
weaker balance sheets may be capital constrained;

® maximize earnings generation from deployed capital through timely resolution of loans in contractual default;
e optimize working capital through efficient cash management and the use of our revolving credit facility;
o fund growth via strategic and structured capital sourcing, and periodic sales of equity;

e remain flexible in order to capitalize on changing sets of investment opportunities that may be present in various points
of an economic cycle; and

e  operate so as to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes and distribute annually at least 90% of our REIT
taxable income.

Loan Portfolio

The following tables highlight certain information regarding our real estate lending activities for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
(dollars in millions) December 31, 2020
Loans originated $ 475.6
Loans repaid $ 324.0
(dollars in millions) December 31, 2020
Number of loans outstanding $ 204
Unpaid principal balance (end of period balance)() $ 860.1
Total commitment(2) $ 1,246.0
Average total commitment $ 6.1
Weighted average contractual interest rate per annum@®) 12 %

(1) December 31, 2020 includes $37.7 million of Private REIT participation. The Private REIT is managed by our subsidiary
and was determined to be a voting interest entity. We do not directly or indirectly control the Private REIT and own only a
nominal financial interest in the Private REIT’s common units, and therefore we do not consolidate the Private REIT in our
financial statements. Furthermore, the Private REIT’s participations in loans originated by us meet the characteristics of
participating interests in accordance with ASC 860 and therefore are treated as sales of loans receivable and are
derecognized from our consolidated balance sheet.

(2) December 31, 2020 includes $37.7 million principal outstanding of Private REIT participation, $40.4 million construction
holdbacks and $4.3 million interest reserves on participation interests sold to the Private REIT.

(3) Does not include loan fees.

10
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The following table sets forth aggregate number of loans and the total original commitment amounts at origination
during each of the calendar years set forth below:

Year (D Number of Loans _Total Commitment

(dollars in millions)

2020 81 § 463.0
2019 116 § 446.6
2018 194 $ 647.0
2017 175§ 397.7
2016 and prior 565 § 523.6

(1) For periods prior to November 15, 2019, amounts do not represent the activity of one controlling legal entity, but rather a
combination of the historical results of the Predecessor Company Group, which was under common management.

(2) Excludes subsequent loan amendments including amendments that increase the total commitment.

We categorize our loans into three distinct purposes:

e Vertical Construction. Loans which utilize at least 20% of total commitment at origination to fund vertical
construction of residential, commercial and mixed-use properties.

e Horizontal Development. Loans which do not fund vertical construction and utilize at least 20% of total commitment
at origination to fund horizontal improvements including: initial site preparation, ground clearing, installing utilities,
and road, sidewalk and gutter paving.

e Investment. Loans which do not fund vertical or horizontal construction including financings of built real estate

properties or raw land.

The following table sets forth the number of total loans and commitment amount of mortgage loans based on the
intended loan purpose, and the percentage of the total commitment by purpose as compared to the total portfolio, in each case at
December 31, 2020.

At December 31,2020

Loan Purpose (dollars in millions) # of Loans Total Commitment %
Vertical Construction 146 $ 892.1 71.6%
Horizontal Development 25 181.1 145
Investment 33 172.8 139
Total 204 § 1,246.0 100.0 %

(1) Includes $37.7 million principal outstanding of Private REIT participations, $40.4 million construction holdbacks and $4.3
million interest reserves on participation interests sold to the Private REIT.
We categorize our loans into five property types:

e For Sale Residential. All for sale residential product including single family homes, townhomes, condominiums and
other attached product.

e For Rent Residential. All rental residential product including multifamily rental apartments and senior housing.
e Commercial/Other. Non-residential real estate including retail, office, industrial and hotels.

o Horizontal Development. Vertical construction ready sites including finished single-family lots, finished townhome
lots and multifamily and commercial development sites.

11
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o Raw Land. Undeveloped land prior to horizontal development.
The following table sets forth the number of total loans and commitment amount of mortgage loans based on the types

of properties securing our mortgage loans, and the percentage of the total commitment by property security of the loan as
compared to the total portfolio at December 31, 2020:

At December 31,2020

Loan Purpose (dollars in millions) # of Loans Total Commitment(!) %

For Rent Residential 36 $ 355.8 28.6 %
For Sale Residential 95 346.9 27.8
Commercial/Other 30 271.2 21.8
Horizontal Development 27 178.1 14.3
Raw Land 16 94.0 7.5
Total 204 $ 1,246.0 100.0 %

(1) Includes $37.7 million principal outstanding of Private REIT participations, $40.4 million construction holdbacks and $4.3
million interest reserves on participation interests sold to the Private REIT.

The following table sets forth the number of total loans and total committed amounts of mortgage loans by state, and the
percentage of the total committed amount by state as compared to the total portfolio at December 31, 2020:

At December 31,2020

State (dollars in millions) # of Loans Total Commitment(!) %
Washington 55 % 302.8 243 %
Colorado 44 278.8 22.4
Utah 26 238.2 19.1
Texas 19 207.3 16.6
Oregon 12 88.0 7.1
Idaho 14 46.3 3.7
Other 34 84.6 6.8
Total 204 § 1,246.0 100.0 %

(1) Includes $37.7 million principal outstanding of Private REIT participations, $40.4 million construction holdbacks and $4.3
million interest reserves on participation interests sold to the Private REIT.

Operations Overview
Loan Origination and Due Diligence

We are experienced in secured lending, with significant combined real estate and financial services experience of our
senior management team. Our senior management team spends a significant portion of its time on borrower development as well
as on underwriting and structuring the loans in our portfolio. A principal source of our new transactions has been repeat business
from existing and former customers and their referral of new business. We are a collateral based lender and when underwriting a
loan, the primary focus of our analysis is the value of a property and the borrower’s equity in the project. Prior to making a final
decision on a loan application, we conduct extensive due diligence of the property as well as of the borrower and its principals.

The mortgage loans that we originate generally meet the following criteria:

o  Collateral. New loans are secured by a first deed of trust lien on real estate.
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Amount. The amount of our loans typically range from $0.1 to $40 million in total commitment at origination (average
total commitment of $6.1 million for our active loans at December 31, 2020). Our lending policy limits exposure to any
single borrower or guarantor to 7.0% of the aggregate total commitment of our active loans.

Loan to Value. The maximum LTV ratio for a loan at origination is 65.0% of the "as-complete" appraised value of the
underlying collateral; and a maximum initial outstanding principal balance of the loan at origination is 65% of the “as-
is” appraised value of the underlying collateral, in each case as determined by an independent appraiser at the time of

the loan origination.

Interest rate. Generally, a fixed rate between 10% and 13% per annum with a late fee of 10% of the amount outstanding
and a default interest rate of 24% per annum for loans in contractual default status.

Origination fees. Typically ranges from 4% to 5% of the total commitment at origination. In addition, if the term of the
loan is extended, additional points are payable upon the extension.

Term. Typically, five to 18 months at origination. We may agree to extend the maturity date (typically for one to three
months) and charge an extension fee, so long as the borrower complies with all loan covenants and the loan otherwise
satisfies our underwriting criteria.

Covenants. To timely pay all taxes, insurance, assessments, and similar charges with respect to the property; to maintain
hazard insurance; and to maintain and protect the property.

Events of default. Include: (i) failure to make the required monthly interest-only loan payment when due; (ii) failure to
repay the loan at maturity date if we have not agreed to extend maturity and (iii) breach of a covenant.

Payment terms. Interest only is payable monthly in arrears. Principal is due in a “balloon” payment at the maturity date.
Interest earned from an interest holdback is capitalized in the loan principal balance.

Escrow. Generally, none required.

Holdbacks. Construction loans typically include a holdback for future construction draws which are funded in arrears
following confirmation of work completion. Loans may also include a holdback for interest reserves for the purpose of
satisfying monthly interest payments over all or part of the term of the loan due to a lack of income generated by the real
estate.

Security. Each loan is evidenced by a promissory note, which is secured by a first deed of trust lien on real property
owned by the borrower and is personally guaranteed on a recourse basis by the principals of the borrower and/or others,
at our discretion, which guaranty may be collaterally secured by a pledge of the guarantor’s interest in the borrower or
other real estate owned by the guarantor.

Fees and Expenses. As is typical in real estate finance transactions, the borrower incurs all expenses in connection with
securing the loan, including the cost of a property appraisal, the cost of an environmental assessment report, if any, the
cost of a credit report and all title, recording fees and legal fees.

Upon receipt of a potential borrower’s executed loan application, we will commence the underwriting process. Before

approving and funding a loan, we undertake extensive due diligence of the borrower, its principals, the guarantor and the property
that will be mortgaged to secure the loan. Such due diligence generally includes:

Borrower and Guarantor Information. Review of a borrower’s credit application, operating agreement or other
organizational documents, and review of business and guarantor financial statements and tax returns.

Confirmatory Collateral Information. Review of an independent appraisal report (customarily including market data and
analysis and information regarding comparable properties), preliminary title report, tax records, documentation
evidencing proper hazard insurance for improved property, and other property information. Loans secured by existing
commercial properties require a Phase I environmental site assessment.
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®  Project Transaction Information. Review of the property purchase and sale agreement, title insurance, itemized
construction budget, project schedule with milestones, building permits/entitlements, building plans, and building
specifications and architectural renderings, resumes and recent projects of builder and architect and marketing plans and
materials.

e  Physical Inspection. We perform a physical inspection of the property, which includes a check of the property’s
location, characteristics, qualities, and potential value as represented by the borrower, as well as a review of the
comparable properties identified in the independent appraisal report in order to confirm that the properties identified as
comparable in the appraisal report are truly comparable.

Loan Servicing

We service all of our loans internally, and manage loan payments, draw requests, and loan accounting records. The loan
draw process in particular is an important part of our business as it provides borrowers with quick access to capital in order to
keep their projects moving and allows us to inspect the quality and pace of the borrower’s work. Once a borrower has submitted a
draw request, we will have the property physically inspected by an approved third-party to ensure that the work for which
funding is being requested has been completed, in a manner satisfactory to us. In addition, any required county and city
inspections are completed and a date-down endorsement of the title policy is provided by the title company indicating no liens
have been placed on the property since its original issuance of the title insurance policy before funds are disbursed. If the request
is made for the final draw of a project, a certificate of occupancy or sign-off by the city is required prior to disbursement.
Although the process is thorough, we make a point of responding to draw requests as quickly as possible as timing is of
paramount importance to a project’s success.

In addition, we conduct periodic testing, process loan payoff requests, and collect past due and delinquent payments. In
the case of a contractual loan default, we have broad authority to take such actions as we believe best in working out the
defaulted loan, including selling the defaulted loan or foreclosing on the real property serving as collateral for the loan.

Loan Funding

Historically, our ability to grow our business was primarily constrained by our ability to raise capital to fund additional
real estate loans. Prior to the Business Combination, we funded loans primarily through the use of private capital. Going forward,
we intend to fund our growth through issuance of common stock, use of cash management tools such as our revolving credit
facility, and the sale of participation interests in loans to the Private REIT (as described below).

Private REIT

The Private REIT primarily participates in short-term, first deed of trust loans secured by real estate to fund the
construction and development of, or investment in, residential or commercial properties located in the United States that are
originated, underwritten and serviced by a subsidiary of Broadmark Realty. The Private REIT is managed by Broadmark Private
REIT Management, LLC (the “Private REIT Manager”), a subsidiary of Broadmark Realty. Similar to Broadmark Realty, the
Private REIT’s investment objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted returns primarily through fees and interest income
primarily generated from investing in participation interests in Broadmark Realty’s real estate portfolio. The Private REIT began
investing in March 2020 and expects to elect to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes at such point in time as
the Private REIT satisfies the requirements for making such election and certain other conditions are met. The Private REIT will
be classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes until such election is made, should the Private REIT not make
the election to be taxed as a REIT effective as of its initial tax year.
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Broadmark Realty and the Private REIT entered into a Master Loan Participation Agreement (the “Participation
Agreement”) pursuant to which a subsidiary of Broadmark Realty expects to sell to the Private REIT participation interests in
loans that it originates. Broadmark Realty retains sole authority with respect to whether to permit the Private REIT to participate
in any particular loan. Broadmark Realty also retains sole authority with respect to the participation percentage of each loan that
the Private REIT will receive. The Private REIT’s participations in Broadmark Realty’s loans will be limited by the amount of
the Private REIT’s “Cash Available to Lend,” as defined in its governing documents. “Cash Available to Lend” is generally
defined as cash in excess of the Private REIT’s obligations under existing mortgages or participations therein, including
contributions of cash from the admission of new investors and repayments of mortgages or sales of assets, but excluding cash
distributable to investors, existing or accrued liabilities, reserves for estimated construction draws and anticipated redemption
payments, or write-downs of defaulted mortgages. In the event that the Private REIT has Cash Available to Lend in excess of the
loan participation interests offered to it by Broadmark Realty, the Private REIT may originate its own mortgages or purchase
mortgages from third parties that are comparable to those originated by Broadmark Realty.

Through a market-based arrangement, the Private REIT Manager is compensated with respect to the mortgages
initiated by the Private REIT or participations in Broadmark Realty’s mortgages through the Private REIT Manager’s receipt of
80% of all fee-based income (generally borrower loan fees, including origination points, late fees and extension fees) from such
loans and/or participations and 20% of all cash distributable to Private REIT investors in excess of the monthly 0.5% preferred
return to investors.

The Private REIT is continuously offering its preferred units to qualified investors in a private placement pursuant to
Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act. The initial sale of Private REIT preferred units occurred in March 2020,
and at December 31, 2020, the Private REIT’s participation in the total principal balance funded and outstanding was
approximately $37.7 million.

Competition

Real estate lending is a competitive business. We compete for lending opportunities with a variety of institutional
lenders and investors, including other “hard money” lenders, mortgage REITS, specialty finance companies, savings and loan
associations, banks, mortgage banks, credit unions, insurance companies, mutual funds, pension funds, private equity real estate
funds, hedge funds, institutional investors, investment banking firms, non-bank financial institutions, governmental bodies,
family offices, and high net worth individuals. New parties continue to enter the market resulting in increased competition and
pricing pressure.

We primarily compete on the basis of borrower relationships, product offerings, loan structure, terms, and service
rather than on price. Our success depends on our ability to maintain and capitalize on relationships with borrowers and their
representatives, offer creative structures and attractive loan terms and, most importantly, provide superior service.

Seasonality

While we typically originate loans year-round, incremental loan disbursements are made with greater frequency during
the spring, summer and fall, when weather is generally more favorable for construction, and borrowers complete previously
agreed stages of construction, allowing developers to draw down on additional amounts of capital available under their loan
agreements. As a result of these more frequent disbursements, we generally maintain greater amounts of cash on hand to fund
disbursements during these seasons.
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Human Capital

Our culture is defined by our core values of integrity, collaboration, diversity, accountability, reliability and community.
Our employees represent our greatest asset. We value our employees by investing in a healthy work-life balance, competitive
compensation and benefit packages and a vibrant, team-oriented environment centered on open and compassionate
communication. We strive to build and maintain a high-performing culture by creating a work environment that attracts and
retains outstanding, engaged employees who embody our company mission of “Empowering real estate developers and investors
to improve places and spaces in our communities.” The most significant human capital measures or objectives that we focus on in
managing our business and our related human capital initiatives include the following:

®  Demographics. As of December 31, 2020 we employed 54 full and part time employees across the United States.
During 2020 we hired 17 employees. Our voluntary turnover rate was 6.4% in 2020.

o  Diversity and Inclusion. We strive toward having a diverse team of employees, knowing we are better together with our
combined wisdom and intellect. With a commitment to equality, inclusion and workplace diversity, we focus on
understanding, accepting, and valuing the differences between people. We value and embrace diversity in our employee
recruiting, hiring and development practices. Of our employee population, approximately 50% are women and
approximately 31% have self-identified as Hispanic or Latino, Native American, Pacific Islander, Asian, Black or
African American, or of two or more races. We have a long-standing commitment to equal employment opportunity.
We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment.

o  Compensation and Benefits. We provide a competitive compensation and benefits program to help meet the needs of
our employees. In addition to salaries, these programs include discretionary annual bonuses and stock awards, a
SIMPLE IRA Plan with an employer matching contribution in addition to an employer annual contribution, healthcare
and insurance benefits, health savings, paid time off, family leave and an employee assistance program.

o  Communication and Engagement. We strongly believe that our success depends on employees understanding how
their work contributes to the Company’s overall strategy. To this end, we communicate with our workforce through a
variety of channels and encourage open and direct communication, including weekly company-wide calls with
executives and frequent email corporate communications. Also, to continuously monitor and improve employee
performance and engagement, we conduct annual performance reviews.

®  Health, Safety and Wellness. The health, safety, and wellness of our employees are vital to our success. In 2020, in
light of the COVID-19 pandemic, we shifted to a remote work environment ahead of mandatory stay-at-home orders
and provided employees with resources, including virtual tools and ergonomic equipment, to maximize work-from-
home efficiency.

o  Community Partnership. We match each employee’s financial contribution to eligible nonprofit organizations on a
dollar-for-dollar basis, up to $1,000 per employee each calendar year, to increase the impact of their charitable gifts.
Each employee also receives eight hours per calendar year of paid volunteer time off to use at the eligible non-profit(s)
of his or her choice, and we donate $25 to the organization for each hour volunteered by our employees.

Regulation and Compliance

Our operations are subject, in certain circumstances, to supervision and regulation by state and U.S. federal government
authorities and may be subject to various laws and judicial and administrative decisions imposing various requirements and
restrictions. In addition, Broadmark Realty and our subsidiaries may rely on exemptions from various requirements of the
Securities Act, the Investment Company Act, and the Investment Advisers Act. These exemptions are sometimes highly complex
and may, in certain circumstances, depend on compliance by third parties who we do not control.
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Regulation of Commercial Real Estate Lending Activities

In general, commercial real estate lending is a highly regulated industry in the United States. Certain states have adopted
laws or regulations that may, among other requirements, require licensing of lenders and financiers, prescribe disclosures of
certain contractual terms, impose limitations on interest rates and other charges, and limit or prohibit certain collection practices
and creditor remedies. We are required to comply with the applicable laws and regulations in the states in which we do business.
We are also required to comply with, among other statutes and regulations, certain provisions of the Equal Credit Opportunity
Act that are applicable to commercial loans, the USA Patriot Act, and regulations promulgated by the Office of Foreign Asset
Control.

Exemptions from Investment Company Act

Although we reserve the right to modify our business methods at any time, we believe that none of the Company, our
subsidiary that issues and holds the mortgages (the “Mortgage Subsidiary”) or the Private REIT is currently required to register
as an investment company under the Investment Company Act. However, our business strategies may evolve over time.

Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the Investment Company Act defines an investment company as any issuer that is, or holds itself
out as being, engaged primarily, or proposes to engage primarily, in the business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities.
Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Act defines an investment company as any issuer that is engaged or proposes to
engage in the business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trading in securities, and owns or proposes to acquire
investment securities having a value exceeding 40% of the value of such issuer’s total assets (exclusive of U.S. government
securities and cash items) on an unconsolidated basis. Excluded from the term “investment securities” are, among other things,
securities issued by majority-owned subsidiaries that are not themselves investment companies and are not relying on the
exclusion from the definition of “investment company” set forth in Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company
Act.

The Company believes it will not be considered an investment company under Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the Investment
Company Act because it will not engage primarily, or propose to engage primarily, or hold itself out as being engaged primarily,
in the business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities. Rather, the Company is primarily engaged in the non-investment
company business of its wholly owned subsidiaries.

The Company believes that it will not be considered an investment company under Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the
Investment Company Act. The Company is a holding company that conducts its operations and holds assets primarily through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including the Mortgage Subsidiary. The Mortgage Subsidiary is excluded from the definition of
investment company pursuant to Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act, which provides an exclusion for
companies engaged primarily in investment in mortgages and other liens on or interests in real estate. In order to qualify for this
exclusion, the Mortgage Subsidiary must maintain, on the basis of positions taken by the SEC’s Division of Investment
Management in interpretive and no-action letters, a minimum of 55% of the value of its total assets in mortgage loans and other
related assets that are considered “mortgages and other liens on and interests in real estate” (“Qualifying Interests”), and a
minimum of 80% in Qualifying Interests and real estate-related assets. In the absence of SEC guidance that supports the
treatment of other investments as Qualifying Interests, the Mortgage Subsidiary will treat those other investments appropriately
as real estate-related assets or miscellaneous assets depending on the circumstances. With respect to the Company’s other
subsidiaries that maintain this exclusion or another exclusion or exception under the Investment Company Act (other than
Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) thereof), or otherwise do not meet the definition of “investment company,” the Company’s
interests in these subsidiaries do not and will not constitute “investment securities.”

The Private REIT is not registered, and does not intend to register, as an investment company under the Investment

Company Act in reliance upon an exclusion from the definition of investment company provided in Section 3(c)(7) or Section
(c)(1) of the Investment Company Act.
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Exemption from Investment Advisers Act

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is required to register under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as
amended (the “Advisers Act”), or under any state securities laws, based on their current activities. The Private REIT Manager
relies on the exemption from registration under the Advisers Act registration for certain private fund advisers set forth in Section
203(m)(1) of the Advisers Act and Rule 203(m)-1 promulgated thereunder.

The Private REIT Manager will be required to register with the SEC as an investment adviser under the Advisers Act
after its assets under management reach $150 million or more, unless another exemption is available. If required to register as an
investment adviser under the Advisers Act, the Private REIT Manager will become subject to substantial regulation under such
act, including compliance policies and procedures requirements, books and record keeping obligations, and obligations to
receive client consent to certain transactions, including any change in control of the Private REIT Manager.

Exemption from Securities Act of 1933

The Private REIT continuously offers its preferred units to qualified investors in a private placement pursuant to
Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act.

Compliance with Broker-Dealer Regulations

The Private REIT has engaged a registered broker-dealer to act as placement agent, and the Private REIT Manager
voluntarily has agreed to pay the placement agent’s annual fee for the first year without reimbursement from the Private REIT.
Certain of the Private REIT Manager’s personnel are registered representatives of the placement agent who market the Private
REIT preferred units to eligible investors. Although neither the placement agent nor its registered representatives receive any
sales commission with respect to the Private REIT preferred units, the Private REIT Manager’s personnel are eligible to receive
a bonus from the Company based on multiple factors, including the growth of the Private REIT Manager. The Private REIT and
the Private REIT Manager have engaged third party broker-dealers to refer investors. The Private REIT Manager typically pays
an initial referral fee to third-party broker-dealers equal to 1.0% of a subscriber’s accepted capital contribution to the Private
REIT, and, after the first anniversary thereof, an annual fee of 0.50% of the accepted contribution, payable quarterly in arrears
for so long as such subscriber continues to hold Private REIT preferred units.

Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 1420 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000, Seattle, Washington 98101, and our
telephone number is (206) 971-0800. We maintain a website on the Internet at http://www.broadmark.com. The information
contained on the website is not incorporated by reference into this Report. Broadmark Realty makes available on or through its
website certain reports and amendments to those reports that it files with or furnishes to the Commission in accordance with the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). These include Broadmark Realty’s annual reports on
Form 10-K, its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and its Current Reports on Form 8-K. Broadmark Realty makes this information
available on its website free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after it electronically files the information with, or
furnish it to, the Commission.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Summary of Risk Factors

The risk factors summarized and detailed below could materially and adversely impact our business, financial

condition, results of operations, cash flows, liquidity, the market price of our common stock, and our ability to, among other
things, satisfy our debt service obligations and to make distributions to our stockholders, which in turn could cause our
stockholders to lose all or a part of their investment. These are not all of the risks we face and other factors not presently known
to us or that we currently believe are immaterial may also affect our business if they occur. Material risks that may affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations include, but are not necessarily limited to, those relating to:

Risks Related to our Business

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the measures implemented to contain the spread of the virus have had, and
are expected to continue to have, a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

If we do not increase our working capital, we will not be able to grow our business.

A prolonged economic slowdown, or lengthy or severe recession or declining real estate values, particularly in a market
where our loans are concentrated, could increase loans in contractual default and impairments on the carrying value of
our loans.

Our inability to mitigate increases in loan default rates and our inability to manage loans in default could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation.

Our inability to compete with other lenders, who may, among other things, be better capitalized than us, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation.

Our inability to manage future growth effectively could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Loss of one or more members of our senior management team or our inability to hire and retain qualified loan
originators or grow and maintain our relationships with key loan brokers, may limit our ability to implement our
business and growth strategies.

Covenants in our credit agreement limit our operational flexibility, and a covenant breach and our repayment obligations
could materially adversely affect our operations, financial condition and our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders.

Risks Related to our Loan Portfolio

We may be adversely affected by the economies and other conditions of the markets in which we operate, and in
particular, that of certain states in which we have a high concentration of loans.

We make short-term construction loans, which are subject to additional risks as compared to loans secured by existing
structures or land.

Risks Related to Our REIT Qualification and Investment Management Regulation

Our failure to qualify or maintain our status as a REIT, subjecting us to taxation as a regular “C” corporation, creating a
substantial tax liability and would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may be subject to some taxes that will reduce our cash flow.
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o The REIT distribution requirements could adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan and may force us to
incur debt or sell assets during unfavorable market conditions to make such distributions.

e We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulatory tax changes that could reduce the market price of our stock.
Risks Related to Ownership of Our Securities

o The development or identification of a material weakness could result in material misstatements of our financial
statements or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations.

o Certain provisions of Maryland law and our Charter could inhibit changes of control, which may discourage third parties
from conducting a tender offer or seeking other change of control transactions that could involve a premium price for
our common stock or that our stockholders otherwise believe to be in their best interests.

e We could increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of stock, classify and reclassify unissued stock and issue
stock without stockholder approval.

Risks Related to Taxes and the Business Combination

e Ifthe U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) were to determine that the merger of any of the Predecessor Companies in
connection with the Business Combination did not qualify as a tax-free reorganization for U.S. federal income tax
purposes with respect to a Predecessor Company, we may be subject to significant tax liabilities.

o We may be subject to adverse tax consequences if the IRS were to determine that one or more Predecessor Companies
failed to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Risks Related to our Business

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the measures implemented to contain the spread of the virus have had, and are
expected to continue to have, a material adverse impact on our business and results of operations.

The COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting containment measures have caused economic and financial disruptions that
have materially adversely affected, and are expected to continue to materially adversely affect, our business and results of
operations. The extent to which the pandemic will continue to materially adversely affect our business and results of operations
will depend on numerous evolving factors and future developments that we are not able to predict, including the duration,
spread and severity of the pandemic; the nature, extent and effectiveness of containment measures; the extent and duration of the
effect on the economy, unemployment, construction and housing prices; and how quickly and to what extent normal economic
and operating conditions can resume.

The COVID-19 pandemic and containment measures have contributed to, among other things:

e significant and rapid economic contraction and a record rise in unemployment;

e adverse impacts on the progress of construction on our borrowers’ projects and their respective abilities to
complete projects in accordance with the terms of their loans;

e adverse impacts on the demand for and the value of some types of commercial and residential real estate that may
delay or otherwise adversely impact our borrowers’ ability to sell or lease properties they are developing in an
amount sufficient to repay their loans;

e asignificant increase in loans in default and slowdown in the rate of new loan originations, primarily as a result of
the adverse impacts on the creditworthiness of our borrowers and other counterparties and their ability to pay
amounts owed to us and our ability to collect such amounts;
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e adverse impacts on capital and credit market conditions, which may limit our access to and increase the cost of
capital;

e anincreased risk to the value of our investment in mortgage notes receivable, which has the potential to result in
impairment charges;

e an increased risk of potential delays in foreclosure proceedings and the enforcement of our rights with respect to
loans in default;

e delays in foreclosure proceedings, including moratoriums in some jurisdictions, and the enforcement of our rights
with respect to loans in default; and

e an increased risk of an information or cyber-security incident, fraud, or a failure to maintain the uninterrupted
operation of our information systems, among other things, as a result of an increase in remote work.

To the extent these impacts continue or intensify, or return to the extent they have diminished, we expect our business
and results of operations to be adversely affected.

We experienced an increase in the amount of loans in contractual default and have increased our provision for credit
losses in 2020. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Key Indicators
of Financial Condition and Operating Performance-Credit Quality of our Loan Portfolio” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The pandemic and containment measures have caused us to modify our strategic plans and business practices,
including the amount of capital deployed and the property types that we lend on.

If the impact from the pandemic is prolonged, it could increase the negative impacts to our business and may also
heighten many of the other risks described in this “Risk Factors” section. We do not yet know the full extent of how COVID-19
and the containment measures will affect our business and results of operations, however, the continuing effects are expected to
have a material adverse impact on our business and results of operations.

Our loan origination activities, revenues and profits are limited by available funds. If we do not increase our working capital,
we will not be able to grow our business.

As a commercial real estate finance company, our revenue and net income is limited to interest and fees received or
accrued on our loan portfolio. Our ability to originate real estate loans is limited by the funds at our disposal. We intend to use
the proceeds from the repayment of outstanding loans and any additional capital, raised publicly, privately, or in the Private
REIT to originate real estate loans. We cannot assure you that such funds will be available in sufficient amounts to enable us to
expand our business.

Our inability to manage future growth effectively could have an adverse impact on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Our ability to implement our business strategy and grow our business depends upon our ability to identify and originate
additional mortgage loans that meet our underwriting criteria, which may include making loans in additional geographic areas
where we have little experience and understanding of the market. Additionally, we may not be able to hire and train sufficient
personnel or develop management, information and operating systems suitable for our growth. Any failure to effectively manage
our future growth could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability
to make distributions to our equity holders.
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In the future, we may modify our underwriting standards and methods of obtaining financing to make mortgage loans
without stockholder approval, which may increase the level of risk in an investment in our securities.

While we have no current intention of modifying the historical loan initiation standards in any material manner, we
may do so in the future if we believe it would be favorable to our business. For example, the criteria necessary for a borrower to
qualify for a loan may be made less stringent, which could result in an increased amount of loan defaults. We may also
determine in the future to issue preferred stock and may incur indebtedness to fund an increase of our loan portfolio or for other
working capital purposes. Any such actions may be taken without stockholder approval. Issuing preferred stock or incurring
indebtedness may reduce the amount of capital that will be available for distribution to stockholders and the amount available to
make new loans if the funds are necessary to make required payments under such instruments. Any such changes could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our
equity holders.

We depend on our senior management team based upon their long-standing business relationships, the loss of any of whom
could threaten our ability to operate our business successfully.

Our future success depends, to a significant extent, upon the continued services of our management team. The
mortgage lending experience of our senior management team and the extent and nature of relationships they have developed
with developers and owners of residential and commercial properties are critical to our success. We cannot assure their
continued employment. For example, Adam J. Fountain resigned as our Executive Vice President as of March 31, 2020. The
loss of services of one or more members of our management team could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

We may not be able to hire and retain qualified loan originators or grow and maintain our relationships with key loan
brokers, and if we are unable to do so, our ability to implement our business and growth strategies could be limited.

We depend on our loan originators to generate borrower clients by, among other things, developing relationships with
commercial property owners, real estate agents and brokers, developers and others, which we believe leads to repeat and referral
business. Accordingly, we must be able to attract, motivate and retain skilled loan originators. The market for loan originators is
highly competitive and may lead to increased costs to hire and retain them. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to attract
or retain qualified loan originators. If we cannot attract, motivate or retain a sufficient number of skilled loan originators, at a
reasonable cost or at all, our business could be materially and adversely affected. We also depend on our network of loan
brokers, who generate a significant portion of our loan originations. While we strive to cultivate long-standing relationships that
generate repeat business for us, brokers are free to transact business with other lenders and have done so in the past and will do
so in the future. Our competitors also have relationships with some of our brokers and actively compete with us in bidding on
loans shopped by these brokers. We also cannot guarantee that we will be able to maintain or develop new relationships with
additional brokers.
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Covenants in our credit agreement restrict our activities and could adversely affect our business.

Our credit agreement contains customary covenants that limit our incurrence of indebtedness, liens, asset dispositions,
dividends and distributions to our stockholders, loans, advances and investments, payments to affiliates, optional prepayments
and other modifications of certain other indebtedness, amendments, terminations and waivers of certain material agreements,
and acquisitions, mergers and consolidations. We are also required to comply with a tangible net worth requirement and a total
debt to equity ratio requirement. These covenants limit our operational flexibility and could prevent us from taking advantage of
business opportunities as they arise, growing our business or competing effectively. Among other things, the credit agreement
provides that we may not pay cash dividends that would result in non-compliance with the financial covenants under the credit
agreement or during an event of default under the credit agreement, except in the case of defaults other than payment defaults,
for dividends in amounts necessary to maintain our REIT status. Our ability to meet these requirements may be affected by
events beyond our control and, if we fail to meet the requirements, we may be unable to obtain waivers from the lenders or
amend the covenants. To the extent borrowings are outstanding under our credit agreement at the maturity thereof, we may be
unable to refinance such borrowings or extend the maturity thereof. In such event, our cash flow may not be sufficient to make
distributions to our stockholders and repay our maturing debt and may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.

We may not be able to obtain or maintain required licenses and authorizations to conduct our business and may fail to
comply with various state and U.S. federal laws and regulations applicable to our business.

In general, lending is a highly regulated industry in the United States and we are required to comply with, among other
statutes and regulations, certain provisions of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act that are applicable to commercial loans, the
USA Patriot Act, regulations promulgated by the Office of Foreign Asset Control, and U.S. federal and state securities laws and
regulations. In addition, certain states have adopted laws or regulations that may, among other requirements, require licensing of
lenders and financiers, prescribe disclosures of certain contractual terms, impose limitations on interest rates and other charges,
and limit or prohibit certain collection practices and creditor remedies.

There is no guarantee that we will be able to obtain, maintain or renew any required licenses or authorizations to
conduct our business or that we would not experience significant delays in obtaining these licenses and authorizations. As a
result, we could be delayed in conducting certain business if we were first required to obtain certain licenses or authorizations or
if renewals thereof were delayed. Furthermore, once licenses are issued and authorizations are obtained, we are required to
comply with various information reporting and other regulatory requirements to maintain those licenses and authorizations, and
there is no assurance that we will be able to satisfy those requirements or other regulatory requirements applicable to our
business on an ongoing basis, which may restrict our business and could expose us to penalties or other claims.

Any failure to obtain, maintain or renew required licenses and authorizations or failure to comply with regulatory
requirements that are applicable to our business could result in material fines and disruption to our business and could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results and our ability to make distributions to our equity
holders.
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The accuracy of our financial statements may be materially affected if our estimates, including allowance for credit losses,
prove to be inaccurate.

Financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or
“GAAP,” require the use of estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Different estimates,
judgments and assumptions reasonably could be used that would have a material effect on the financial statements, and changes
in these estimates, judgments and assumptions are likely to occur from period to period in the future. Significant areas of
accounting requiring the application of management’s judgment include but are not limited to assessing the adequacy of the
allowance for credit losses and assessing impairments on real estate held for use or held for sale. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions are inherently uncertain, especially in turbulent economic times, and, if they prove to be wrong, then we face the
risk that charges to income will be required, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

In addition, in June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-13,
“Financial Instruments-Credit Losses, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (Topic 326),” which replaces the
current “incurred loss” model for recognizing credit losses with an “expected loss” model referred to as the Current Expected
Credit Loss model, or CECL. Under the CECL model, which we adopted in the fourth quarter of 2020 for the annual period as
of and ending December 31, 2020 with an adoption date of January 1, 2020, the measurement of expected credit losses is to be
based on information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount. This differs significantly from the “incurred loss” model
previously required under GAAP, which delayed recognition until it was probable a loss had been incurred. The adoption of
CECL may result in a greater impact on our allowance for credit losses than currently anticipated and is likely to result in
greater variability in our allowance for credit losses from period to period.

We may be subject to “lender liability” litigation.

A number of judicial decisions have upheld the right of borrowers to sue lending institutions on the basis of various
legal theories, collectively termed “lender liability.” Generally, lender liability is founded on the premise that a lender has either
violated a duty, whether implied or contractual, of good faith and fair dealing owed to the borrower or has assumed a degree of
control over the borrower resulting in the creation of a fiduciary duty owed to the borrower or its other creditors or stockholders.
From time to time, borrowers or other participants in projects we have financed have threatened lender liability claims against us
and may do so in the future. We cannot assure you that such claims will not arise or that we will not be subject to significant
liability if a claim of this type were to arise.

Several members of our senior management team do not have prior experience in operating a public company.

Our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Credit Officer did not have experience in managing a
publicly traded company prior to the Business Combination. As such, our management team may encounter difficulties in
successfully or effectively complying with our reporting and other obligations under U.S. federal securities laws and other
regulations and in connection with operating as a public company. Our management team has been and may continue to be
required to devote significant time to these activities, which could result in less time being devoted to our management and
growth.
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If members or former members of our management engage in business activities of the types conducted by us, we may be
materially adversely affected.

Certain members and former members of our management and their affiliates have in the past provided management
services to other real estate lending companies that originate and acquire mortgages. In prior years, such persons invested in
second deed of trust liens for their own accounts or for the accounts of others, where we have made a first deed of trust lien, or
in the equity of a borrower or the developer that owns the secured property. Certain members and former members of our
management have entered into restrictive covenant agreements with non-competition provisions. If these agreements are not
effective in preventing these parties from engaging in business activities that are competitive with us, it could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects and our ability to make distributions to our
equity holders.

Market Risks Related to Real Estate Loans

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or severe recession or declining real estate values could impair our loans and
harm our operations.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a recession or declining real estate values could impair the performance of our loans
and harm our financial condition and results of operations and limit our ability to raise capital. As a result, we believe the risks
associated with our business will be more severe during periods of economic slowdown or recession because these periods are
likely to be accompanied by declining real estate values and declining demand for new mortgage loan originations. Declining
real estate values are likely to have one or more of the following adverse consequences:

e reduce the level of new mortgage loan originations since borrowers often use appreciation in the value of their
existing properties to support the purchase or investment in additional properties;

e make it more difficult for existing borrowers to remain current on their payment obligations;

e significantly increase the likelihood that we will incur losses on our loans in the event of default because the value
of collateral may be insufficient to cover our cost on the loan; and

e reduce the speed or ability for our mortgages to be repaid upon their balloons through the sale or refinance of our
collateral.

Any sustained period of increased payment delinquencies, foreclosures or losses could adversely affect both our
interest income from loans in our portfolio as well as our ability to originate new loans, which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and operating results and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

In addition, public health crises, pandemics and epidemics, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, which has broadly
impacted the economy, could have a material adverse effect on economic activity, including our business by reducing the
demand for commercial or residential real estate that our borrowers might have developed or increasing the time and expense of
such development projects.

An increase in interest rates could adversely affect our ability to generate income and pay dividends.

Rising interest rates generally reduce the demand for mortgage loans due to the higher cost of borrowing. The rising
cost of borrowing may cause reduced demand for real estate, possibly resulting in declining real estate values. Declining real
estate values significantly increase the likelihood that we will incur losses on our loans in the event of default. In addition, rising
interest rates may also cause loans that we originated prior to an interest rate increase to provide yields that are below prevailing
market interest rates. These factors could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability
to make distributions to our equity holders.
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We operate in a highly competitive market and competition could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive market and we believe these conditions will persist for the foreseeable future as the
financial services industry continues to consolidate, producing larger, better capitalized and more geographically diverse
companies with broad product and service offerings, and new entrants come into the real estate lending market. As a result, our
profitability depends, in large part, on our ability to compete effectively.

Our existing and potential future competitors include “hard money” lenders, mortgage REITs, specialty finance
companies, savings and loan associations, banks, mortgage banks, credit unions, insurance companies, mutual funds, pension
funds, private equity funds, hedge funds, institutional investors, investment banking firms, non-bank financial institutions,
governmental bodies, family offices and high net worth individuals. We may also compete with companies that partner with
and/or receive financing from the U.S. government. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and have considerably
greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources than we do. In addition, larger and more established competitors may
enjoy significant competitive advantages, including enhanced operating efficiencies, more extensive referral networks, greater
and more favorable access to investment capital and more desirable lending opportunities. Several of these competitors,
including mortgage REITs, have recently raised or are expected to raise significant amounts of capital, which enables them to
make larger loans or a greater number of loans. Some competitors may also have a lower cost of funds and access to funding
sources that may not be available to us, such as funding from various governmental agencies or under various governmental
programs for which we are not eligible. In addition, some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk
assessments, which could allow them to consider a wider variety of possible loan transactions or to offer more favorable
financing terms than we could. For example, we may find that the pool of potential qualified borrowers available to us is
limited. Finally, as a REIT and because we operate in a manner intended to be exempt from the requirements of the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”), we may face further restrictions to which some of our
competitors may not be subject. We cannot assure you that the competitive pressures we face will not have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders. As a
result of these competitive factors, we may not in the future be able to originate and fund mortgage loans on favorable terms,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make
distributions to our equity holders.

Prepayment rates are difficult to predict and may result in excess capital; the inability to redeploy this capital at comparable
yields or risk could result in lower income.

The frequency at which prepayments (including both voluntary prepayments by the borrowers and liquidations due to
defaults and foreclosures) occur on our mortgage loans is difficult to predict and is affected by a variety of factors, including the
prevailing level of interest rates, economic, demographic, tax, social, legal, legislative and other factors. To the extent that faster
prepayment rates occur, the principal payments received from prepayments may be reinvested in lower-yielding mortgage loans,
which may reduce our income in the long run. Therefore, if actual prepayment rates differ from anticipated prepayment rates,
then there could be an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make
distributions to our equity holders.

Risks Related to Our Loan Portfolio

We may be adversely affected by the economies and other conditions of the markets in which we operate, and in particular,
that of certain states in which we have a high concentration of loans.

The geographic distribution of our loan portfolio exposes us to risks associated with the real estate and commercial
lending industry in general, and to a greater extent within the states and regions in which we have concentrated our loans. These
risks include, without limitation:

e declining real estate values;

e overbuilding;
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e cxtended vacancies of properties;

® increases in operating expenses such as property taxes and energy costs;
e changes in zoning laws;

e rising unemployment rates;

e occurrence of environmental events;

e rising casualty or condemnation losses; and

e uninsured damages from floods, hurricanes, earthquakes or other natural disasters.

At December 31, 2020, our mortgage loans were most concentrated in the following six states:

At December 31, 2020

State (dollars in millions) Total Commitment(1) Percent of Total Portfolio

Washington $ 302.8 243 %
Colorado 278.8 22.4 %
Utah 238.2 19.1 %
Texas 207.3 16.6 %
Oregon 88.0 7.1 %
Idaho 46.3 3.7%
Total top six states $ 1,161.4 93.2 %
Other 84.6 6.8 %
Total $ 1,246.0 100.0 %

(1) Includes $37.7 million principal outstanding of Private REIT participations, $40.4 million construction holdbacks and $4.3
million interest reserves on participation interests sold to the Private REIT.

While we make loans in additional markets, we remain particularly subject to the general economic and market
conditions in the six states identified above. The occurrence of any one or more of the above enumerated conditions in such
states could cause a decline in the value of properties securing our loans which would reduce the value of the collateral and the
potential proceeds available to borrowers to repay their loans. For example, COVID-19 may negatively impact the commercial
and residential real estate markets, which could reduce demand and the value for properties and make it less likely that a
borrower can sell or lease the property they are developing in an amount sufficient to repay the borrower’s loan, or that a
developer, who would be our borrower, will elect to go forward with a new project.

In the event that we should foreclose on a property, we may be unable to sell it at a value that would allow us to recoup
the proceeds of the loan. Any such events that would increase volatility of values of residential and commercial properties could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to
our equity holders.

Additionally, other neighboring states may become more attractive for investors, developers, builders and other
commercial borrowers based on favorable costs and other conditions to construct or improve or renovate real estate properties.
Changes in other markets may result in increased development and demand for loans in those markets and result in a
corresponding decrease in development and demand for loans in the markets in which we concentrate our loan activity. Any
adverse economic or real estate developments or any adverse changes in the local business climate in any such states could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our
equity holders.
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Borrowers that incur mortgage loans from us may not qualify for conventional bank financing or would be regarded as
higher risk borrowers, and on such basis, may be more likely to default on repayment of their loans.

Borrowers who are obligated under the mortgage loans that we issue are sometimes persons who do not qualify for
conventional bank financing or who could be regarded to be higher risk borrowers. Consequently, these borrowers are more
likely to default on the repayment of their obligations. In the event of any default under a mortgage loan issued by us, we will
bear a risk of loss to the extent of any deficiency between the value of the collateral and the outstanding principal and accrued
interest of the mortgage loan, and any such losses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

In addition, we extend mortgage loans to borrowers who are not organized as single purpose entities. A single purpose
entity structure can allow a lender to better isolate the borrower and its assets from consolidation into a bankruptcy case filed on
behalf of its affiliates. Because we extend mortgage loans to borrowers not organized as single purpose entities, there could be
an increased risk that we may not be able to maintain our security interest in the mortgage collateral, thereby decreasing
recovery in the event of a default in a mortgage loan.

Short-term loans may involve a greater risk of loss than traditional mortgage loans.

Borrowers usually use the proceeds of a long-term mortgage loan or sale to repay a short-term loan. Typically, we
issue short-term mortgage loans with initial terms less than 18 months, subject to extension at our option. We may therefore
depend on a borrower’s ability to obtain permanent financing or sell the property to repay our loan, which could depend on
market conditions and other factors. In a period of rising interest rates or tightening credit markets, it may be more difficult for
borrowers to obtain long-term financing, which increases the risk of non-payment. Short-term loans are also subject to risks of
borrower defaults, bankruptcies, fraud, losses and special hazard losses that are not covered by standard hazard insurance. In the
event of a default, we bear the risk of loss of principal and non-payment of interest and fees to the extent of any deficiency
between the value of the mortgage collateral and the principal amount and unpaid interest of the loan. To the extent we suffer
any such losses with respect to our mortgage loans, such losses could result in a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

We make construction loans, which are subject to additional risks as compared to loans secured by existing structures or
land.

Substantially all of our loans are construction loans, which are subject to additional risks that may not be applicable to
loans secured by existing structures and land. Construction budgets may be unrealistic or unforeseen variables may arise,
prolonging the development and increasing the costs of the construction project, which may delay the borrower’s ability to sell
or rent the finished property, which could adversely affect repayment of the loan. While we believe we have reasonable
procedures in place to manage construction funding loans, there can be no certainty that we will not suffer losses on
construction loans. In addition, if a builder fails to complete a project, we may be required to complete the project. Any such
default could result in a substantial increase in costs in excess of the original budget and delays in completion of the project.

Furthermore, construction loans are subject to risks of cost overruns and non-completion for construction, renovation,
refurbishment or expansion by a borrower of a mortgaged property. Costs of construction or renovation to bring a property up to
market standards for the intended use of that property may exceed original estimates, possibly making a project uneconomical.
Other risks may include environmental risks, permitting risks, other construction risks, and subsequent leasing of the property not
being completed on schedule or at projected rental rates. If such construction or renovation is not completed in a timely manner,
or if it costs more than expected, the borrower may experience a prolonged reduction of net operating income and may be unable
to make payments of interest or principal to us, which could materially and adversely affect us.
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Additionally, we may make construction loans without having all the funds on hand that will ultimately be required for
final funding of the loan. In the event that we suffer substantial borrower defaults, overestimate the pace of repayments of loans
or are unable to obtain or raise additional capital, we may be unable to fund all of our construction loan commitments. In the
event that we suffer substantial borrower defaults, or are unable to raise additional capital, we may be unable to fund a
performing construction loan.

Any default on a construction loan by a borrower, or our default in funding a construction loan as called for in the loan
agreement, could have a material adverse effect to our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make
distributions to our equity holders.

Loans secured by first deed of trust liens on real estate are subject to increased risk.

None of our loans secured by real property are guaranteed by the U.S. government or any government sponsored
enterprise. Therefore, the value of mortgages on such loans is significantly impacted by the value of the underlying property, the
creditworthiness and financial position of the borrower and the enforceability of the lien. In the event of a foreclosure, we may
assume direct ownership of the underlying collateral. The liquidation proceeds upon sale of such real estate may not be
sufficient to recover our cost basis in the loan, and any costs or delays involved in the foreclosure or liquidation process may
increase losses.

Further, mortgage loans are also subject to “special hazard” risk (property damage caused by hazards, such as
earthquakes or environmental hazards, not covered by standard property insurance policies), and to bankruptcy risk (reduction in
a borrower’s mortgage debt by a bankruptcy court). In addition, claims may be assessed against us on account of our position as a
mortgage holder or property owner, including assignee liability, responsibility for tax payments, environmental hazards and other
liabilities. In some cases, these liabilities may be “recourse liabilities” or may otherwise lead to losses in excess of the purchase
price of the related mortgage or property, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results
of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders. In addition, our loans are or will be illiquid, and if we are
required to liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly less than the value at which we have
previously recorded our investments.

Most of our loans include a balloon payment at maturity, which payment commonly represents the full amount due under
the loan. Failure by borrowers to make the balloon payments when due could have a material adverse impact on our
financial condition.

Our loan payment terms customarily require a balloon payment at maturity. Given the fact that many of the properties
securing our loans are not income producing, and most of the borrowers are entities with no assets other than the single property
that is the subject of the loan, borrowers may have considerable difficulty making the balloon payment at maturity. Borrowers’
inability to repay loans at maturity, together with all the accrued interest thereon, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

Many of the properties securing our mortgage loans are not income producing, thus increasing the risks of delinquency and
foreclosure.

Most of our loans are secured by properties, whether residential or commercial, that are under development,
construction or renovation and are not income producing. The risks of delinquency and foreclosure on these properties may be
greater than similar risks associated with loans made on the security of income producing properties. In the case of income
producing properties, the ability of a borrower to repay the loan typically depends primarily upon the successful operation of
such property. If the net operating income of the subject property is reduced, the borrower’s ability to repay the loan, or our
ability to receive adequate returns on its loans, may be impaired.
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In the case of non-income producing properties, the expectation is that our loans will be repaid out of sale or
refinancing proceeds. Thus, the borrower’s ability to repay our mortgage loans will depend, to a great extent, on the value of the
property at the maturity date of the loan. In the event of any default under a mortgage loan issued by us, we will bear a risk of
loss to the extent of any deficiency between the value of the collateral and the outstanding principal and accrued interest of the
mortgage loan, and any such losses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

In the event of the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan borrower, the mortgage loan to such borrower will be deemed to be
secured only to the extent of the value of the underlying collateral at the time of bankruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy
court), and the lien securing the mortgage loan will be subject to the avoidance powers of the bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-
possession to the extent the lien is unenforceable under state law. Foreclosure of a mortgage loan may be an expensive and
lengthy process, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our
ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

To the extent that our loan documentation or files contain defects, inaccuracies or inconsistencies, or our loan due diligence
processes prove to be inadequate, we could experience decreased recoveries in the event of foreclosure and thereby
potentially reduce the amount of distributions to our common stockholders.

While we endeavor to maintain accurate and complete loan documentation and loan files, from time to time, our loan
documentation and files may contain defects, inaccuracies or inconsistencies, or information that is incorrect or out of date. To
the extent this occurs, or our loan due diligence processes prove to be inadequate, there is a risk that, in the event of a default,
we will not be able to enforce our rights to foreclose upon the collateral securing such defaulted loans. If this were to occur, the
amount available to our common stockholders for distributions could potentially be reduced.

Liability relating to environmental matters may impact the value of properties that we may acquire or the properties
underlying our loans.

Liability relating to environmental matters may decrease the value of the underlying properties securing our loans and
may adversely affect the ability of a person to sell or rent such property or borrow using such property as collateral. Under
various U.S. federal, state and local laws, an owner or operator of real property may become liable for the costs of removal of
certain hazardous substances released on, about, under or in its property. Such laws often impose liability without regard to
whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the release of such hazardous substances. We do not always
conduct a Phase I environmental survey as part of our underwriting process. To the extent that an owner of an underlying
property becomes liable for removal costs, testing, monitoring, remediation, bodily injury or property damage, the ability of the
owner to make debt payments may be reduced, which in turn may adversely affect the value of the relevant mortgage asset
related to such property. If we acquire any properties by foreclosure or otherwise, the presence of hazardous substances on a
property may adversely affect the property’s value and our ability to sell the property. Additionally, we may incur substantial
remediation costs, thereby harming our financial condition. The discovery of environmental liabilities attached to such
properties could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and our ability to
make distributions to our equity holders. Moreover, some U.S. federal, state and local laws provide that, in certain situations, a
secured lender, such as ourselves, may be liable as an “owner” or “operator” of the real property, regardless of whether the
borrower or previous owner caused the environmental damage. Therefore, the presence of hazardous substances on certain
property could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make
distributions to our equity holders.

30




Table of Contents

Declining real estate valuations could result in impairment charges, the determination of which involves a significant
amount of judgment on our part. Any impairment charge could have a material adverse effect on us.

We review our loan portfolio for impairment on a quarterly and annual basis and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Indicators of impairment include, but are not limited to,
a sustained significant decrease in the value of the collateral securing the loan, including the value of the real estate and other
assets pledged to secure the loan as well as personal guarantees by the principals of the borrower, or a borrower’s inability to
stay current with respect to its obligations under the terms of the loan. A significant amount of judgment is involved in
determining the presence of an indicator of impairment. If we determine that the value of the collateral is less than the amount
outstanding on the loan or the amount that may become due upon the maturity of the loan, a loss must be recognized for the
difference between the fair value of the property and the carrying value of the loan. The evaluation of the market value of the
underlying collateral requires a significant amount of judgment on our part. Any impairment charge could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity
holders.

Our reserves for credit losses may prove inadequate, which could have a material adverse effect on us.

We evaluate our loans, and we will evaluate the adequacy of any future reserves for credit losses we are required to
recognize, on a quarterly basis. In the future, we may maintain varying levels of credit loss reserves. Our determination of asset-
specific credit loss reserves may rely on material estimates regarding the fair value of any loan collateral. The estimation of
ultimate credit losses, provision expenses and loss reserves is a complex and subjective process. As such, there can be no
assurance that our judgment will prove to be correct and that any future credit loss reserves will be adequate over time to protect
against losses inherent in our portfolio at any given time. Any such losses could be caused by various factors, including, but not
limited to, unanticipated adverse changes in the economy or events adversely affecting specific assets, borrowers, industries in
which our borrowers operate or markets in which our borrowers or their properties are located. If our future reserves for credit
losses prove inadequate, we may suffer losses, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

Our due diligence may not reveal all of the risks associated with a mortgage loan or the property that will be mortgaged to
secure the loan, which could lead to losses.

Despite our efforts to manage credit risk, there are many aspects of credit risk that we cannot control. Our credit
policies and procedures may not be successful in limiting future delinquencies, defaults and losses, or they may not be cost
effective. Our underwriting reviews and due diligence procedures may not be effective in identifying all potential credit risks.
Borrower and guarantor circumstances could change during the term of the loan. The value of the properties collateralizing or
underlying the loans may decline. The frequency of default and the loss severity on loans upon default may be greater than we
anticipate. If properties securing our mortgage loans become real estate owned as a result of foreclosure, we bear the risk of not
being able to sell the property and recover our investment and of being exposed to the risks attendant to the ownership of real

property.

Before approving and funding a mortgage loan, we undertake due diligence of the borrower, its principals (if the
borrower is not an individual) and the property that will be mortgaged to secure the loan. Such due diligence includes review of
(i) the credit history of the borrower if an individual, and to the extent available and considered materially significant, a business
entity, if applicable, (ii) the borrower and guarantor or guarantors’ financial statements and tax returns, (iii) the independently
appraised value of the property, (iv) legal and lien searches against the borrower, the guarantors and the property, (v) where
deemed appropriate, a certificate or insurance binder of hazard insurance, (vi) a review of the documentation related to the
property, including title information and (vii) other reviews and/or assessments that we may deem appropriate to conduct. There
can be no assurance that we will conduct any specific level of due diligence, or that, among other things, the due diligence
process will uncover all relevant facts, which could result in losses on the loan in question, which, in turn, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity
holders.
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Third-party diligence reports are made as of a point in time and are therefore limited in scope.

Appraisals, engineering, and environmental reports, as well as a variety of other third-party reports, are generally
obtained with respect to each of the mortgaged properties underlying our loans at or about the time of origination. Appraisals are
not guarantees of present or future value. One appraiser may reach a different conclusion than the conclusion that would be
reached if a different appraiser were appraising that property. Moreover, the values of the properties may fluctuate significantly
after the date that appraisals are performed. In addition, any third-party report, including any engineering report, environmental
report, site inspection or appraisal represents only the analysis of the individual consultant, engineer or inspector preparing such
report at the time of such report, and may not reveal all necessary or desirable repairs, maintenance, remediation and capital
improvement items. Any missing or incomplete information in the appraisal and engineering and environmental reports
prepared by third parties may affect our loan underwriting, and if foreclosure on the property became necessary, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our
equity holders.

If casualty insurance is prohibitively expensive or unavailable for certain events, or the borrower were to allow its casualty
insurance to lapse, then, in the event a casualty were to occur, our loan may not be adequately secured.

Our policy is to require fire and/or casualty insurance on property improvements that would be sufficient, together with
the value of the underlying land, to pay off all obligations, including the subject mortgage. There are certain disasters, however,
for which no insurance is available or for which insurance may be deemed to be too expensive (examples would include flood
and earthquake insurance). Furthermore, we have no control over the borrower’s actions or the state of the property that might
reduce available coverage, call for economically prohibitive premiums, or otherwise render the subject real property
uninsurable. In addition, should insurance coverage lapse due to premiums not paid by the borrower, or should a policy be
cancelled for other reasons, we may not be protected unless substitute or new insurance is in force. In this event, we may be
required to pay the premiums to maintain such insurance, to the extent available, which could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

Risks Related to Our REIT Qualification and Investment Management Regulation
We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully manage our business as a REIT.

The Predecessor Company Group had limited experience operating as a REIT. The REIT provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), are complex, and any failure to comply with those provisions in a timely
manner could prevent us from qualifying as a REIT or could force us to pay unexpected taxes and penalties. Failure to qualify as
a REIT would subject us to income taxation (including interest and possibly penalties for prior periods in which we failed to
qualify as a REIT) as a regular “C” corporation, which would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our
stockholders.

Qualifying as a REIT involves highly technical and complex provisions of the Code and therefore, in certain circumstances,
may be subject to uncertainty.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy a number of requirements, including requirements regarding the
composition of our assets, the sources of our income and the diversity of our stock ownership. Also, we generally must make
distributions to our stockholders aggregating annually at least 90% of our “REIT taxable income” (determined without regard to
the dividends paid deduction and excluding net capital gain). Compliance with these requirements and all other requirements for
qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for which there are only
limited judicial and administrative interpretations. Even a technical or inadvertent mistake could jeopardize our REIT status. In
addition, the determination of various factual matters and circumstances relevant to REIT qualification is not entirely within our
control and may affect our ability to qualify as a REIT.
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If we fail to qualify as a REIT, we will be subject to tax as a regular “C” corporation and could face a substantial tax
liability, which would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

We believe that we have been organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for qualification and
taxation as a REIT under the Code for our taxable period ending December 31, 2020, and that our current and proposed method
of operation will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code for
subsequent taxable years. Our continued qualification as a REIT will depend on our ability to meet, on an ongoing basis, various
complex requirements concerning, among other things, the ownership of our outstanding stock, the nature of our assets, the
sources of our income, and the amount of our distributions to our stockholders. Our ability to satisfy the asset tests depends
upon our analysis of the characterization and fair market values of our assets, some of which are not susceptible to a precise
determination, and for which we will not obtain independent appraisals. Our compliance with the annual REIT income and
quarterly asset requirements also depends upon our ability to successfully manage the composition of our income and assets on
an ongoing basis.

If we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT in any taxable year, and we do not qualify for certain statutory relief
provisions, we would be required to pay U.S. federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates, and
distributions to our stockholders would not be deductible by us in determining our taxable income. In such a case, we might
need to borrow money or sell assets in order to pay our taxes. Our payment of income tax would decrease our cash available for
distribution to our stockholders.

Furthermore, if we fail to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we no longer would be required to distribute
substantially all of our taxable income to our stockholders. In addition, unless we were eligible for certain statutory relief
provisions, we could not re-elect to qualify as a REIT until the fifth calendar year following the year in which we failed to
qualify. We would also fail to qualify as a REIT in the event we were treated under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations as a
successor to another REIT whose qualification as a REIT was previously terminated or revoked. If a Predecessor Company
failed to qualify as a REIT prior to the Business Combination, it is possible that we would be treated as a successor REIT under
the foregoing rules and thus be unable to qualify as a REIT.

Our ownership of and relationship with taxable REIT subsidiaries is limited, and a failure to comply with the limits would
jeopardize our REIT qualification, and our transactions with our taxable REIT subsidiaries may result in the application of
a 100% excise tax if such transactions are not conducted on arm’s-length terms.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs”). A TRS may earn
income that would not be qualifying income if earned directly by a REIT. Both the subsidiary and the REIT must jointly elect to
treat the subsidiary as a TRS. Overall, no more than 20% of the value of a REIT’s assets may consist of stock and securities of
one or more TRSs. A domestic TRS will pay U.S. federal, state and local income tax at regular corporate rates on any income
that it earns. In addition, the TRS rules impose a 100% excise tax on certain transactions between a TRS and its parent REIT
that are not conducted on an arm’s-length basis.

Our wholly owned subsidiary that provides certain investment management services with respect to our assets as well
as to third parties has elected to be treated as a TRS. We may elect for certain other of our subsidiaries to be treated as TRSs.
Our TRSs will pay U.S. federal, state and local income tax on their taxable income, and their after-tax income will be available
for distribution to us but will not be required to be distributed to us. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to
comply with the TRS limitations or to avoid application of the 100% excise tax discussed above.

Liquidation of assets may jeopardize our REIT qualification or create additional tax liability for us.
To qualify as a REIT, we must comply with requirements regarding the composition of our assets and our sources of
income. If we are compelled to liquidate our investments for any reason, we may be unable to comply with these requirements,

ultimately jeopardizing our qualification as a REIT, or may be subject to a 100% tax on any resultant gain if we sell assets that
are treated as dealer property or inventory, other than foreclosure property.
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Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may be subject to some taxes that will reduce our cash flow.

Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain U.S. federal, state and local taxes on our
income and assets, including taxes on any undistributed income, taxes on income from some activities conducted or sales made
as a result of a foreclosure, excise taxes, and state or local income, property and transfer taxes, such as mortgage recording
taxes, and other taxes. Moreover, in order to meet the REIT qualification requirements, prevent the recognition of certain types
of non-cash income, or to avert the imposition of a 100% tax that applies to certain gains derived by a REIT from dealer
property or inventory (other than foreclosure property), we may hold some of our assets through a TRS or other subsidiary
corporation that will be subject to corporate level income tax at regular corporate rates. In addition, if a TRS borrows funds
either from us or a third party, such TRS may be unable to deduct all or a portion of the interest paid, resulting in a higher
corporate tax liability. Furthermore, the Code imposes a 100% excise tax on certain transactions between a TRS and a REIT that
are not conducted on an arm’s length basis. We intend to structure any transaction with a TRS on terms that we believe are
arm’s length to avoid incurring this 100% excise tax. There can be no assurances, however, that we will be able to avoid
application of the 100% excise tax. The payment of any of these taxes would reduce our cash flow.

Rapid changes in the values of our assets may make it more difficult for us to maintain our qualification as a REIT.

If the fair market value or income potential of our qualifying assets for purposes of our qualification as a REIT declines
as a result of increased interest rates, changes in prepayment rates, general market conditions, government actions or other
factors, or the fair market value of or income from non-qualifying assets increases, we may need to increase our qualifying real
estate assets and income or liquidate our non-qualifying assets to maintain our REIT qualification. If the change in real estate
asset values or income occurs quickly, this may be especially difficult to accomplish. This difficulty may be exacerbated by the
illiquid nature of any non-qualifying assets we may own. We may have to sell or acquire assets or make other decisions that we
otherwise would not make absent our REIT election.

The REIT distribution requirements could adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan and may force us to incur
debt or sell assets during unfavorable market conditions to make such distributions.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally must distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our “REIT taxable income”
(determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding net capital gain) each year, and we will be subject to
regular corporate income taxes to the extent that we distribute less than 100% of our “REIT taxable income” each year. In
addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount, if any, by which distributions paid by us in any
calendar year are less than the sum of 85% of our ordinary income, 95% of our capital gain net income and 100% of our
undistributed income from prior years. We intend to make distributions to our stockholders to comply with the REIT
distribution requirements.
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Our taxable income may substantially differ from our net income based on U.S. GAAP, and differences in timing
between the recognition of taxable income and the actual receipt of cash may occur. For example, we may recognize interest or
other income on a mortgage loan for U.S. federal income tax purposes before we receive any payments of interest on such
mortgage. We may also hold or acquire distressed debt investments that are subsequently modified by agreement with the
borrower. If the amendments to the outstanding debt are “significant modifications” under the applicable Treasury regulations,
the modified debt may be considered to have been reissued to us at a gain in a debt-for-debt exchange with the borrower, with
gain recognized by us to the extent that the principal amount of the modified debt exceeds our cost of purchasing it prior to
modification. Moreover, under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, or the “TCJA,” we are generally required to take certain amounts into
income no later than the time such amounts are reflected on certain financial statements. Although the precise application of this
rule is unclear at this time, it may require the accrual of income by us earlier than would be the case prior law. However,
recently promulgated Treasury regulations, which are effective for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2021,
generally would exclude, among other items, original issue discount and market discount income from the applicability of this
rule. To the extent that this rule requires the accrual of income earlier than under prior law, it could increase our “phantom
income.” In addition, the TCJA limits the deduction for business interest expense to 30% of “adjusted taxable income,” which
could result in the deduction allowable in the computation of taxable income to be less than the amount of interest payments
actually made during the tax year. Additionally, we may also be required under the terms of indebtedness that we incur to use
cash received from interest payments to make principal payments on that indebtedness.

As a result, we may generate less cash flow than taxable income in a particular year and find it difficult or impossible
in certain circumstances to make distributions sufficient to satisfy the REIT distribution requirements and to avoid corporate
income tax and the 4% excise tax in a particular year. In such circumstances, we may be forced to incur debt on unfavorable
terms, sell assets at disadvantageous prices, distribute amounts that would otherwise have been invested in future loans, or make
a taxable distribution of shares of our common stock, as part of a distribution in which stockholders may elect to receive shares
(subject to a limit measured as a percentage of the total distribution).

We may be required to report taxable income from certain investments in excess of the economic income we ultimately
realize from them.

We may acquire debt instruments in the secondary market for less than their face amount. The discount at which such
debt instruments are acquired may reflect doubts about their ultimate collectability rather than current market interest rates. The
amount of such discount will nevertheless generally be treated as “market discount” for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
Accrued market discount is generally reported as income when, and to the extent that, any payment of principal of the debt
instrument is made or the debt instrument is disposed of or retired. If we collect less on the debt instrument than our purchase
price plus the market discount we had previously reported as income, we may not be able to benefit from any offsetting loss
deductions. In addition, we may hold or acquire distressed debt investments that are subsequently modified by agreement with
the borrower. If the amendments to the outstanding debt are “significant modifications” under applicable Treasury regulations,
the modified debt may be considered to have been reissued to us at a gain in a debt-for-debt exchange with the borrower. In that
event, we may be required to recognize taxable gain to the extent the principal amount of the modified debt exceeds our adjusted
tax basis in the unmodified debt, even if the value of the debt or the payment expectations have not changed. Moreover, debt
instruments that we originate or acquire may be issued with original issue discount. We will be required to report such original
issue discount based on a constant yield method and will be taxed based on the assumption that all future projected payments
due on such debt instruments will be made. If any such debt instrument turns out not to be fully collectable, an offsetting loss
deduction will become available only in the later year that uncollectability is provable.

Additionally, as described above, under the TCJA, we are generally required to take certain amounts into income no
later than the time such amounts are reflected on certain financial statements, although recently promulgated Treasury
regulations provide that this rule does not apply to original discount or market discount income. To the extent that this rule
requires the accrual of income earlier than under the previously applicable general tax rules, it could increase our “phantom
income.”
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Finally, in the event that any debt instruments held or acquired by us are delinquent as to mandatory principal and
interest payments, or in the event payments with respect to a particular debt instrument are not made when due, we may
nonetheless be required to continue to recognize the unpaid interest as taxable income as it accrues, despite doubt as to its
ultimate collectability. In each case, while we would in general ultimately have an offsetting loss deduction available to us when
such interest was determined to be uncollectable, the utility of that deduction could depend on whether such loss is ordinary or
capital and on us having taxable income, in that later year or thereafter.

Our investments in construction loans will require us to make estimates about the fair value of land improvements that may
be challenged by the IRS.

We expect to invest in construction loans, the interest from which will be qualifying income for purposes of the REIT
income tests, provided that the loan value of the real property securing the construction loan is equal to or greater than the
highest outstanding principal amount of the construction loan during any taxable year. For purposes of construction loans, the
loan value of the real property is the fair value of the land plus the reasonably estimated cost of the improvements or
developments (other than personal property) that will secure the loan and that are to be constructed from the proceeds of the
loan. There can be no assurance that the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) would not challenge our estimate of the loan
value of the real property.

If any subsidiary REIT failed to qualify as a REIT, we could be directly or indirectly subject to higher taxes and could fail to
remain qualified as a REIT.

We may directly or indirectly (through disregarded subsidiaries, pass-through entities or a TRS) own shares of a
subsidiary that has elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Any such subsidiary REIT would be
subject to the various REIT qualification requirements and other limitations described herein that are applicable to us. If any
such subsidiary REIT were to fail to qualify as a REIT, then (i) such subsidiary REIT would become subject to U.S. federal
income tax and applicable state and local taxes on its taxable income at regular corporate rates and (ii) our ownership of shares
in such subsidiary REIT would cease to be a qualifying asset for purposes of the asset tests applicable to REITs. If any such
subsidiary REIT not held indirectly through BRMK Management, Corp. or another TRS were to fail to qualify as a REIT, it is
possible that we would fail certain of the asset tests applicable to REITs, in which event we would fail to qualify as a REIT
unless we could avail ourselves of certain relief provisions.

We could have potential deferred and contingent tax liabilities as a result of acquiring assets in the Business Combination
that were previously owned by non-REIT “C” corporations.

Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we will be subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax at the highest regular
rate (currently 21%) on all or a portion of the gain recognized from the disposition of any asset acquired from BRELF III in the
Business Combination occurring within the five-year period following BRELF III’s REIT conversion on January 1, 2019. In
other words, if during the five-year period beginning on January 1, 2019, we recognize gain on the disposition of any asset
BRELF III owned on January 1, 2019, then, to the extent of the excess of (i) the fair market value of such asset as of January 1,
2019, over (ii) BRELF III’s adjusted income tax basis in such asset as of January 1, 2019, we will be required to pay U.S.
federal corporate income tax on this gain at the highest regular rate applicable to corporations. The same treatment would apply,
for a period of as long as five years beginning on the date of the closing of the Business Combination, to any assets acquired in
the Business Combination by us from a Predecessor Company that failed to qualify as a REIT in a taxable year ended on or
prior to the Business Combination. These requirements could limit, delay or impede future sales of certain assets. We currently
do not expect to sell any asset if the sale would result in the imposition of a material tax liability. We cannot, however, assure
you that we will not change our plans in this regard.

36




Table of Contents

We have not established a minimum distribution payment level and we cannot assure you of our ability to pay distributions in
the future.

To maintain our qualification as a REIT and generally not be subject to U.S. federal income and excise tax, we would
generally be required to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income each year, which requirement
we currently intend to satisfy through regular cash distributions to our stockholders out of legally available funds therefor. We
have not, however, established a minimum distribution payment level and our ability to pay distributions may be adversely
affected by a number of factors, including the risk factors described in our filings with the SEC. All distributions will be made at
the discretion of our board and will depend on our earnings, our financial condition, maintenance of our REIT qualification,
restrictions on making distributions under Maryland law and such other factors as our board may deem relevant from time to
time. We may not be able to make distributions in the future and our board may change our distribution policy in the future. We
believe that a change in any one of the following factors, among others, could adversely affect our results of operations and
impair our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders: the profitability of the assets we hold or acquire; the allocation of
assets between our REIT-qualified and non-REIT qualified subsidiaries; our ability to make profitable investments and to realize
profits therefrom; and defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases in the value of our portfolio. As a result, we cannot assure you
that we will achieve results that will allow us to make required cash distributions for any year.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the reduced tax rates available for some dividends, which could depress the
market price of our stock if it is perceived as a less attractive investment.

The maximum tax rate applicable to income from “qualified dividends” payable by non-REIT “C” corporations to U.S.
stockholders that are individuals, trusts and estates generally is 20% (which rate does not include the 3.8% net investment
income tax). Dividends payable by a REIT, however, generally are not eligible for the current reduced rate, except to the extent
that certain holding requirements have been met and the REIT’s dividends are attributable to dividends received by such REIT
from taxable corporations (such as a TRS), to income that was subject to tax at the REIT/corporate level, or to dividends
properly designated by the REIT as “capital gains dividends.” Effective for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2026,
non-corporate U.S. stockholders generally may deduct 20% of their dividends from REITs (excluding “qualified dividend”
income and “capital gains dividends”). To qualify for this deduction, the U.S. stockholder receiving such dividend must hold the
dividend-paying REIT shares for at least 46 days (taking into account certain special holding period rules) of the 91-day period
beginning 45 days before the shares become ex-dividend, and cannot be under an obligation to make related payments with
respect to a position in substantially similar or related property. For those U.S. stockholders in the top marginal tax bracket of
37%, the deduction for applicable REIT dividends yields an effective income tax rate of approximately 30% on such REIT
dividends, which is higher than the 20% tax rate on “qualified dividend” income paid by non-REIT “C” corporations. Although
the reduced rates applicable to dividend income from non-REIT “C” corporations do not adversely affect the taxation of REITs
or dividends payable by REITs, it could cause investors who are non-corporate taxpayers to perceive investments in REITs to be
relatively less attractive than investments in the stock of non-REIT “C” corporations that pay qualified dividends, which could
depress the market price of investments in REITSs, including our stock.
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Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to liquidate or forgo otherwise attractive investment opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT, we must ensure that, at the end of each calendar quarter, at least 75% of the value of our assets
consists of cash, cash items, government securities and “real estate assets” (as defined in the Code), including certain mortgage
loans and securities (the “75% asset test”). The remainder of our investments (other than securities includable in the 75% asset
test) generally cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total
value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer. Additionally, in general, no more than 5% of the value of our total assets
(other than securities includable in the 75% asset test) can consist of the securities of any one issuer, no more than 20% of the
value of our total assets can be represented by securities of one or more TRSs, and debt instruments issued by publicly offered
REITs, to the extent not secured by real property or interests in real property, cannot exceed 25% of the value of our total assets.
If we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, we must correct the failure within 30 days after
the end of the calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT qualification and
suffering adverse tax consequences. As a result, we may be required to liquidate or forgo otherwise attractive investment
opportunities. These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution by us to our
stockholders and the income and amounts available to service our indebtedness, if any.

In addition to the asset tests set forth above, to qualify as a REIT, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among
other things, the sources of our income, the amounts we distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our stock. We may
be required to make distributions to stockholders at disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for
distribution, and we may be unable to pursue investment opportunities that would be otherwise advantageous to us in order to
satisfy the source-of-income or asset-diversification requirements for us to qualify as a REIT. In addition, in certain cases, the
modification of a debt instrument could result in the conversion of the instrument from a qualifying real estate asset to a wholly
or partially non-qualifying asset. Compliance with the source-of-income requirements may also limit our ability to acquire debt
instruments at a discount from their face amount. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make,
or in certain cases, maintain ownership of, certain attractive investments and, thus, reduce our income and amounts available for
distribution or to service our indebtedness, if any.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulatory tax changes that could reduce the market price of our stock.

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of REITs may be modified, possibly with retroactive effect, by
legislative, judicial or administrative action at any time, which could affect the U.S. federal income tax treatment of an
investment in us. The rules dealing with U.S. federal, state, and local taxation are constantly under review by persons involved
in the legislative process and by the IRS, the U.S. Department of the Treasury, and other taxing authorities. Changes to the tax
laws, with or without retroactive application, could have a material adverse effect on us and our stockholders. We cannot predict
how changes in the tax laws might affect us or our stockholders. New legislation, Treasury regulations, administrative
interpretations or court decisions could significantly and negatively affect our ability to remain qualified as a REIT or the tax
consequences of such qualification.
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If we or the Private REIT were deemed to be an investment company under the Investment Company Act, we would be
materially and adversely affected. The Private REIT Manager, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, may become subject
to registration under the Advisers Act in the future, subjecting it to substantial regulations.

If it were established that either the Company or the Private REIT was an unregistered investment company, such
entity could be subject to monetary penalties and injunctive relief in an action brought by the SEC. An unregistered investment
company could be unable to enforce contracts with third parties, and third parties might seek rescission of transactions
undertaken during the period that it was established that the Company or the Private REIT was an unregistered investment
company. In the event that the Company or the Private REIT were required to register as an investment company under the
Investment Company Act, such entity would become subject to substantial regulation with respect to its capital structure,
management, operations, restrictions on transactions with affiliated persons (as defined in the Investment Company Act), and
portfolio composition, including possible constraints on holding illiquid assets, diversification and industry concentration and
other matters. Compliance with the Investment Company Act would, accordingly, limit our and/or the Private REIT’s respective
abilities to conduct business and would require any affected entity to significantly restructure its real estate finance business and
its lending and/or loan participation strategies.

The Private REIT Manager will be required to register with the SEC as an investment adviser under the Investment
Advisers Act if after the Private REIT Manager’s gross assets under management reach $150 million or more, unless another
exemption to registration is available. If required to register as an investment adviser under the Advisers Act, the Private REIT
Manager will become subject to substantial regulation under such act, including the Advisers Act’s compliance policies and
procedures requirements, books and record keeping obligations, and obligation to receive client consent to certain transactions,
including any change in control of the Private REIT Manager.

Risks Related to Taxes and the Business Combination

If the IRS were to determine that the merger of any of the Predecessor Companies in connection with the Business
Combination did not qualify as a tax-free reorganization for U.S. federal income tax purposes with respect to a Predecessor
Company, we may be subject to significant tax liabilities.

If the IRS were to determine that the merger of any of the Predecessor Companies in connection with the Business
Combination failed to qualify as a tax-free reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code with respect to a
Predecessor Company, so long as such Predecessor Company qualified as a REIT at the time of the merger, such Predecessor
Company generally would not have incurred a U.S. federal income tax liability so long as such Predecessor Company made
distributions (which would have been deemed to include for this purpose the fair market value of the shares of our common
stock issued pursuant to the applicable merger) to such Predecessor Company’s members in an amount at least equal to the net
income or gain recognized on the deemed sale of such Predecessor Company’s assets to us. In the event that such distributions
were not sufficient to eliminate all of such Predecessor Company’s tax liability as a result of the deemed sale of its assets to us,
we would be liable for any remaining tax owed by such Predecessor Company as a result of such merger.

If the IRS were to determine that the merger of any of the Predecessor Companies in connection with the Business
Combination failed to qualify as a tax-free reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code with respect to a
Predecessor Company and such Predecessor Company did not qualify as a REIT at the time of such merger, such Predecessor
Company would generally have recognized gain or loss on the deemed transfer of its assets to us, and we would be liable for any
tax imposed on such Predecessor Company, which tax could be significant.
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We may be subject to adverse tax consequences if the IRS were to determine that one or more Predecessor Companies failed
to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

If the IRS were to determine that any Predecessor Company failed to qualify as a REIT through the consummation of
the Business Combination, we may have inherited significant tax liabilities and could fail to qualify as a REIT. Even if we retain
our REIT qualification, if any Predecessor Company did not qualify as a REIT or lost its REIT qualification for a taxable year
ended on or with the Business Combination, we will face serious tax consequences that could substantially reduce our cash
available for distribution to our stockholders because:

o ifany Predecessor Company did not qualify as a REIT at the time of the consummation of the Business
Combination, the merger of such Predecessor Company could have failed to qualify as a “reorganization” under
Section 368(a) of the Code with respect to such Predecessor Company;

® we, as the successor by merger to each Predecessor Company, would have generally inherited any corporate
income, excise and other tax liabilities of the Predecessor Companies, including penalties and interest, which
inherited tax liabilities could be particularly substantial if such merger of such Predecessor Company failed to
qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code with respect to such Predecessor
Company;

e we may be subject to tax on certain built-in gain upon future disposition of each asset of each applicable
Predecessor Company; and

o we could be required to pay a special distribution and/or employ applicable deficiency dividend procedures
(including penalties and interest payments to the IRS) to eliminate any earnings and profits accumulated by each
applicable Predecessor Company during taxable periods that it did not qualify as a REIT.

As a result of these factors, any failure by one or more Predecessor Companies to have qualified as a REIT for any
taxable year ended on or before the consummation of the Business Combination could impair our ability to expand our business
and raise capital and could materially adversely affect the value of our common stock.

We have succeeded to certain of the Predecessor Companies’ tax liabilities.

We generally will take a carryover basis and holding period in the assets transferred in connection with the mergers of
the Predecessor Companies in connection with the Business Combination. As the successor by merger, we generally are
responsible for all of the Predecessor Companies’ liabilities including any unpaid taxes (and penalties and interest, if any),
whether as a result of a failure by any Predecessor Company to have distributed all of its taxable income in any tax period,
including the short taxable period ending on the date of the Business Combination, or taxes that might otherwise have been due
and payable by such Predecessor Company. In addition to us inheriting such tax liabilities, if one or more Predecessor
Companies failed to qualify as a REIT for any period ending on or prior to the Business Combination, the amount of the
applicable Predecessor Companies’ tax liabilities inherited by us as a result of the Business Combination could be substantial.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Securities

Our management team has broad discretion in the use of proceeds of securities offerings and, despite our efforts, we may
invest or spend the proceeds of offerings in ways with which you may not agree or in ways which may not yield a significant
return.

Our management team has broad discretion in the use of proceeds of securities offerings and, despite our efforts, we
may invest or spend the proceeds of offerings in ways with which you may not agree or in ways which may not yield a
significant return. We intend to use net proceeds from offerings for general corporate purposes, including to fund our lending
activities. Our management will have considerable discretion in the application of the net proceeds, and you will not have the
opportunity, as part of your investment decision, to assess whether the proceeds are being used appropriately. As a result, the net
proceeds from offerings may be used for lending activities or other general business purposes that do not increase our operating
results or enhance the value of our common stock.
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Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 could have a material adverse effect on our business and stock price.

Effective internal control over financial reporting is necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and is
important in helping to prevent mistakes in and restatements of our financial statements and financial fraud. A failure to
maintain effective internal control over financial reporting may adversely affect the accuracy and timing of our financial
reporting, we may be unable to maintain compliance with securities law requirements regarding timely filing of periodic reports
in addition to applicable stock exchange listing requirements, we may be unable to prevent fraud, investors may lose confidence
in our financial reporting, and the price of our securities may decline as a result. In addition, we may be subject to lawsuits or
regulatory discipline if we fail to establish and maintain effective internal control over our financial reporting.

We may issue additional shares of common stock upon the exercise of Warrants or for other purposes, which would dilute
your ownership interests and may depress the market price of our common stock.

We currently have warrants outstanding to purchase approximately 15.6 million shares of common stock in the
aggregate at an aggregate purchase price of $11.50 per share. Further, there were approximately 4 million shares of common
stock remaining available for issuance pursuant to equity awards under the Broadmark Realty 2019 Stock Incentive Plan at
December 31, 2020. We may also issue additional shares of common stock or other equity securities in the future in connection
with, among other things, future capital raising and transactions and future acquisitions, without stockholder approval in many
circumstances.

Our issuance of additional shares of common stock or other equity securities would have the following effects:
e  our existing stockholders’ proportionate ownership interest in us may decrease;
e the amount of cash available for payment of dividends may decrease;
e the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding share of common stock may be diminished; and
o the market price of our common stock may decline.

Our stockholders have limited control over changes in our policies and operations, which increases the uncertainty and risks
our stockholders will face.

Our board determines our major policies, including our policies regarding financing, growth and debt capitalization.
Our board may amend or revise these and other policies without a vote of our stockholders. The broad discretion of our board in
setting policies and the inability of our stockholders to exert control over those policies increases the uncertainty and risks such
stockholders will face. In addition, our board may change its investment objectives without seeking stockholder approval.
Although our board has duties to us under Maryland law and intends only to change its investment objectives when our board
determines that a change is in our best interest, a change in our investment objectives could cause a decline in the value of the
stockholders’ investment in us.

41




Table of Contents

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to recover claims against our directors and officers are limited, which could
reduce your and our recovery against them if they negligently cause us to incur losses.

Maryland law provides that a director will not have any liability as a director so long as he or she performs his or her
duties in accordance with the applicable standard of conduct. In addition, Maryland law and our charter provide that no director
or officer shall be liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages unless the director or officer (i) actually received an
improper benefit or profit in money, property or services or (ii) was actively and deliberately dishonest as established by a final
judgment, which was material to the cause of action. Moreover, (i) our charter requires us to indemnify our directors and
officers to the maximum extent permitted under Maryland law and (ii) we have entered into indemnification agreements with
each of our directors and executive officers that provide for indemnification to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law,
except as expressly limited by the indemnification agreements. As a result, we may have more limited rights against our
directors or officers than might otherwise exist under common law, which could reduce your and our recovery from these
persons.

Certain provisions of Maryland law could inhibit changes of control, which may discourage third parties from conducting a
tender offer or seeking other change of control transactions that could involve a premium price for our common stock or that
our stockholders otherwise believe to be in their best interests.

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law (the “MGCL”) may have the effect of inhibiting a third
party from making a proposal to acquire us or of impeding a change of control under circumstances that otherwise could provide
the holders of shares of our common stock with the opportunity to realize a premium over the then-prevailing market price of
such shares, including:

e “Business combination” provisions that, subject to limitations, prohibit certain business combinations between us
and an “interested stockholder” (defined generally as any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the
voting power of our shares or an affiliate thereof or an affiliate or associate of ours who was the beneficial owner,
directly or indirectly, of 10% or more of the voting power of our then outstanding voting stock at any time within
the two-year period immediately prior to the date in question) for five years after the most recent date on which
the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, and thereafter imposes certain fair price and/or supermajority
stockholder voting requirements on these combinations; and

o  “Control share” provisions that provide that holders of our “control shares” (defined as shares that, when
aggregated with other shares controlled by the stockholder, entitle the stockholder to exercise one of three
increasing ranges of voting power in electing directors) acquired in a “control share acquisition” (defined as the
direct or indirect acquisition of ownership or control of issued and outstanding “control shares”) have no voting
rights with respect to their control shares, except to the extent approved by our stockholders by the affirmative
vote of at least two-thirds of all the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding all interested shares.

By resolution of our board, we have opted out of the business combination provisions of the MGCL, which means that
any business combination between us and any other person is exempt from the business combination provisions of the MGCL,
provided that the business combination is first approved by a majority of our directors (including a majority of directors who are
not affiliates or associates of such persons). In addition, pursuant to a provision in our bylaws, we have opted out of the control
share provisions of the MGCL. However, our board may by resolution elect to opt into the business combination provisions of
the MGCL and we may, by amendment to our bylaws, opt into the control share provisions of the MGCL in the future.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, an alteration or repeal of the board resolutions exempting such business combinations will not
have any effect on any business combinations that have been consummated or upon any agreements existing at the time of such
modification or repeal.
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Our charter contains certain provisions restricting the ownership and transfer of our capital stock that may delay, defer or
prevent a change of control transaction that might involve a premium price for holders of our common stock or that our
stockholders otherwise believe to be in their best interests.

Our charter contains certain ownership limits with respect to our capital stock. Our charter, among other restrictions,
prohibits the beneficial or constructive ownership by any person of more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever
is more restrictive, of the outstanding shares of any class or series of our capital stock (including our common stock), excluding
any shares that are not treated as outstanding for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Our board, in its sole and absolute discretion,
may exempt a person, prospectively or retroactively, from this ownership limit if certain conditions are satisfied. This ownership
limit as well as other restrictions on ownership and transfer in our charter may:

e Discourage a tender offer or other transactions or a change in management or of control that might involve a
premium price for holders of our common stock or that our stockholders otherwise believe to be in their best
interests; and

o Result in the transfer of shares acquired in excess of the restrictions to a trust for the benefit of a charitable
beneficiary and, as a result, the forfeiture by the acquirer of certain of the benefits of owning the additional shares.

We could increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of stock, classify and reclassify unissued stock and issue
stock without stockholder approval.

A majority of our entire board, without stockholder approval, has the power under our charter to amend the charter to
increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of stock of any class or series that we are
authorized to issue, to authorize us to issue authorized but unissued shares of our common stock or preferred stock and to
classify or reclassify any unissued shares of our common stock or preferred stock into one or more classes or series of stock and
to set the terms of such newly classified or reclassified shares. As a result, we may issue one or more classes or series of
common stock or preferred stock with preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers or rights, restrictions, limitations as
to dividends or other distributions, qualifications or terms or conditions of redemption that are senior to, or otherwise conflict
with, the rights of our common stockholders. Although our board has no such intention at the present time, it could establish a
class or series of common stock or preferred stock that could, depending on the terms of such class or series, delay, defer or
prevent a transaction or a change of control that might involve a premium price for holders of our common stock or otherwise be
in the best interest of our stockholders.

Our bylaws designate the Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland as the sole and exclusive forum for certain types of
actions and proceedings that may be initiated by our stockholders, which could limit their ability to obtain a favorable
Jjudicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers or employees.

Our bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Circuit Court for
Baltimore City, Maryland, or, if that court does not have jurisdiction, the United States District Court for the District of
Maryland, Northern Division, will be the sole and exclusive forum for (a) any Internal Corporate Claim, as such term is defined
in the MGCL, (b) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf (other than actions arising under U.S. federal
securities laws), (c) any action asserting a claim of breach of any duty owed by any of our directors, officers or other employees
to us or to our stockholders, (d) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our directors, officers or other employees
arising pursuant to any provision of the MGCL or our charter or bylaws or (e) any other action asserting a claim against us or
any of our directors, officers or other employees that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine. This provision does not cover
claims made by stockholders pursuant to the securities laws of the United States, or any rules or regulations promulgated
thereunder. We adopted this provision because we believe it makes it less likely that we will be forced to incur the expense of
defending duplicative actions in multiple forums and less likely that plaintiffs’ attorneys will be able to employ such litigation to
coerce us into otherwise unjustified settlements.
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We are a holding company and our only material asset is our interest in our subsidiaries, and we are accordingly dependent
upon distributions made by our subsidiaries to make payments, pay dividends and pay taxes.

We are a holding company with no material assets other than our ownership of our subsidiaries. As a result, we have no
independent means of generating revenue or cash flow. Our ability to make payments, pay dividends and pay taxes will depend
on the financial results and cash flows of our subsidiaries and the distributions we receive from our subsidiaries. Additionally, to
the extent that we need funds and any of our subsidiaries are restricted from making such distributions under applicable law or
regulation or under the terms of any financing arrangements, or any of our subsidiaries is otherwise unable to provide such
funds, it could materially adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition.

The ability of our subsidiaries to make distributions to us may be subject to various limitations and restrictions
including, but not limited to, restrictions on distributions that would either violate any contract or agreement to which such
subsidiary is then a party, including debt agreements, or any applicable law, or that would have the effect of rendering such
subsidiary insolvent. If our cash resources are insufficient to fund our obligations, we may be required to incur indebtedness to
provide the liquidity needed to make such payments, which could materially adversely affect our liquidity and financial
condition and subject us to various restrictions imposed by any such lenders.

General Risk Factors
Litigation may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are, from time to time, subject to legal proceedings and regulatory requirements applicable to our business and
industry. Litigation can be lengthy, expensive and disruptive to our operations and results cannot be predicted with certainty.
There may also be adverse publicity associated with litigation, regardless of whether the allegations are valid or whether we are
ultimately found not liable. As a result, litigation could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders.

There can be no assurance that our corporate insurance policies will mitigate all insurable losses, costs or damages to our
business.

Based on the history of the Predecessor Company Group and our type of business, we believe that we maintain
adequate insurance coverage to cover probable and reasonably estimable liabilities should they arise. However, there can be no
assurance that these estimates will prove to be sufficient, nor can there be any assurance that the ultimate outcome of any claim
or event will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and ability to make
distributions to our equity holders.
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Cybersecurity threats and other security breaches and disruptions could compromise sensitive information belonging to us or
our employees, borrowers and other counterparties and expose us to liability, which would cause our business and reputation
to suffer.

In the ordinary course of business, we may acquire and store sensitive data on our network, such as our proprietary
business information and personally identifiable information of our prospective and current borrowers, loan guarantors and our
employees. The secure processing and maintenance of this information is critical to our business strategy. Cybersecurity
incidents and cyber-attacks have been occurring globally at a more frequent and severe level and will likely continue to increase
in frequency in the future. Our information and technology systems as well as those of other related parties, such as service
providers, may be vulnerable to damage or interruption from cybersecurity breaches, computer viruses or other malicious code,
network failures, computer and telecommunication failures, infiltration by unauthorized persons and other security breaches,
usage errors by their respective professionals or service providers, power, communications or other service outages and
catastrophic events such as fires, tornadoes, floods, hurricanes and earthquakes. Cyberattacks and other security threats could
originate from a wide variety of sources, including cyber criminals, nation state hackers, hacktivists and other outside parties.
There has been an increase in the frequency and sophistication of the cyber and security threats we face, with attacks ranging
from those common to businesses generally to those that are more advanced and persistent, which may target us because we
hold a significant amount of confidential and sensitive information about our investors, borrowers and potential investments. As
a result, we may face a heightened risk of a security breach or disruption with respect to this information. If successful, these
types of attacks on our network or other systems could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our equity holders, due to, among other things, the loss of investor
or proprietary data, interruptions or delays in the operation of our business and damage to our reputation. There can be no
assurance that measures that we take to ensure the integrity of our systems will provide protection, especially because
cyberattack techniques change frequently or are not recognized until successful.

Our business and operations could be negatively affected if we become subject to any securities litigation or stockholder
activism, which could cause us to incur significant expense, hinder execution of business and growth strategy and impact
our stock price.

In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s securities, securities class action
litigation has often been brought against that company. Stockholder activism, which could take many forms or arise in a variety
of situations, has been increasing recently. Volatility in the price of our common stock or other reasons may in the future cause
us to become the target of securities litigation or stockholder activism. Securities litigation and stockholder activism, including
potential proxy contests, could result in substantial costs and divert management’s and our board’s attention and resources from
our business. Additionally, such securities litigation and stockholder activism could give rise to perceived uncertainties as to our
future, adversely affect our relationships with employees and other service providers and make it more difficult to attract and
retain qualified personnel. It could also negatively impact our ability to generate new loans. Also, we may be required to incur
significant legal fees and other expenses related to any securities litigation and activist stockholder matters. Further, our stock
price could be subject to significant fluctuation or otherwise be adversely affected by the events, risks and uncertainties of any
securities litigation and stockholder activism.

Any projections, forecasts or estimates that we have issued or may issue in the future are subject to significant inherent
uncertainties and may not be realized.

Any financial and other projections and forecasts or estimates that we have issued or may issue from time to time in the
future are necessarily based on numerous assumptions, expectations and other inputs. As a result, they are inherently subject to
significant business, economic, and competitive uncertainties and contingencies and other significant risks, many of which are
beyond our control. Actual results can differ from our expectations, and those differences can be material. Any projections,
forecasts or estimates should not be regarded as a representation by us as to the financial or other matters addressed by such
projections, forecasts or estimates, as there can be no assurance that any of these projections, forecasts or estimates will be
realized. In light of the foregoing, you should not place undue reliance on any projections, forecasts or estimates, which
constitute forward-looking statements and are inherently subject to numerous significant risks and uncertainties.
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The market price and trading volume of our securities may be volatile and could decline significantly.

The public trading markets have from time-to-time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations. The market
price of our securities may be volatile and could decline significantly. In addition, the trading volume in our securities may
fluctuate and cause significant price variations to occur. If the market price of our securities declines significantly, you may be
unable to resell your securities at or above the price you purchased it at, or otherwise at a favorable price. We cannot assure you
that the market price of our common stock will not fluctuate widely or decline significantly in the future in response to a number
of factors, including, among others, the following:

e the realization of any of the risk factors presented in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission;

e actual or anticipated differences in our estimates, or in the estimates of analysts, for our revenues, results of
operations, level of indebtedness, liquidity or financial condition;

e additions and departures of key personnel;

e failure to comply with the requirements of the markets on which our securities are listed;

e failure to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act or other laws or regulations;

e future issuances, sales or resales, or anticipated issuances, sales or resales, of our securities;

e perceptions of the investment opportunity associated with our securities relative to other investment alternatives;
e the performance and market valuations of other similar companies;

e future announcements concerning our business or our competitors’ businesses;

e broad disruptions in the financial markets, including sudden disruptions in the credit markets;

e speculation in the press or investment community;

e actual, potential or perceived control, accounting or reporting problems;

e changes in accounting principles, policies and guidelines; and

e the impact of epidemics, other public health concerns, civil unrest and political uncertainty.

In the past, securities class-action litigation has often been instituted against companies following periods of volatility

in the market price of their securities. This type of litigation could result in substantial costs and divert our management’s
attention and resources, which could have a material adverse effect on us.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research, publish inaccurate or unfavorable research or cease publishing
research about us, the trading price and trading volume of our securities could decline significantly.

The market for our securities may be influenced by the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish
about us or our business. Securities and industry analysts may not continue to publish research on us. If no securities or industry
analysts maintain coverage of us, the market price and liquidity for our securities could be negatively impacted. If one or more
of the analysts who cover us downgrade their opinions about our securities, publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about us,
or cease publishing about us regularly, demand for securities could decrease, which might cause the trading price and trading
volume to decline significantly.
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Future issuances of debt securities and equity securities may adversely affect us, including the market price of our securities
and may be dilutive to existing stockholders.

While we presently have not issued debt securities to finance our business, there is no assurance that we may not issue
debt securities or issue equity ranking senior to our stock. Those securities will generally have priority upon liquidation. Such
securities also may be governed by an indenture or other instrument containing covenants restricting our operating flexibility.
Additionally, any convertible or exchangeable securities that we issue in the future may have rights, preferences and privileges
more favorable than those of our common stock. Because our decision to issue debt or equity in the future will depend on
market conditions and other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing, nature or success of
our future capital raising efforts. As a result, future capital raising efforts may reduce the market price of our common stock and
be dilutive to existing stockholders.

If our common stock becomes subject to the “penny stock” rules of the SEC, the trading market in our common stock may
become significantly more limited, which would make transactions in our common stock cumbersome and may reduce the
value of an investment in our common stock.

Our common stock could be considered a “penny stock” if it trades below $5.00. Under Rule 15g-9 of the Exchange
Act, broker-dealers who recommend low-priced securities to persons other than established customers and accredited investors
must satisfy special sales practice requirements. Such broker-dealer must make an individualized written suitability
determination for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written consent prior to the transaction.

Generally, brokers may be less willing to execute transactions in securities subject to the “penny stock” rules. This may
make it more difficult for investors to dispose of our common stock and cause a decline in the market value of shares of our
common stock.

Disclosure also has to be made about the risks of investing in penny stocks in both public offerings and in secondary
trading and about the commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative, current quotations for the
securities and the rights and remedies available to an investor in cases of fraud in penny stock transactions. Finally, monthly
statements have to be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held in the account and information on the
limited market in penny stocks. Other risks associated with trading in penny stocks could also be price fluctuations and the lack
of a liquid market.

There can be no guarantee that we will make distributions or generate yields comparable to our current or historic levels.
Past distributions and yields are no guarantee of our future performance. Our distributions of dividends are not
guaranteed and will be paid only to the extent earned by us and authorized by our board. Multiple factors could adversely impact
our ability to generate income and pay dividends, such as those set forth under “— Market Risks Related to Real Estate Loans,”
and “— Risks Related to Our Loan Portfolio.” The timing and amount of dividends will be determined by our board. There is no
guarantee that we will achieve results that will allow us to pay a specified level of cash dividends or to increase the level of such

dividends in the future.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal office is located in leased space at 1420 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000, Seattle, Washington 98101.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. We believe that the outcome of
such matters, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “BRMK.” As of February
17, 2020, we had 315 registered holders of our common stock. The 315 holders of record include CEDE & Co., which holds
shares as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, which itself holds shares on behalf of the beneficial owners of our
common stock. Such information was obtained through our registrar and transfer agent, based on the results of a broker search.

We did not purchase any shares of our common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2020.
Stockholder Return Performance

The following stock performance graph is a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return on shares of our
common stock, the Standard & Poor's 500 (the “S&P 500 Index”), and the FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REITs index (“FTSE
NAREIT Index”), a published industry index, from November 15, 2019 (the date on which our common stock became publicly
traded) through December 31, 2020. The graph assumes that $100 was invested on November 15, 2019 in our common stock, the
S&P 500 and the FTSE NAREIT Index and that all dividends were reinvested without the payment of any commissions. There
can be no assurance that the performance of our shares will continue in line with the same or similar trends depicted in the graph

below.
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Period Ending
November 15,2019 December 31,2019 March 31,2020 June 30,2020 September 30, 2020 December 31, 2020
BRMK 100.00 117.53 71.53 91.80 97.32 102.45
FTSE NAREIT Index 100.00 102.87 43.98 59.08 61.76 74.95
S&P 500 100.00 103.54 84.18 99.35 107.77 119.60

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Part I, Item 6 is no longer required as the Company has adopted certain provisions within the amendments to
Regulation S-K that eliminate Item 301.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with
the “Business” section, as well as the consolidated financial statements and related notes in Part I1, Item 8 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. In addition, the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements and involves numerous
risks and uncertainties, including those described under the heading “Risk Factors.” Actual results may differ materially from
those contained in any forward-looking statements. You should read this discussion and analysis together with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Report for the Company and Predecessor Company Group. In
this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” references to the “Predecessor
Company Group,” or the “Predecessor,” refers to the Predecessor Companies and the Predecessor Management Companies
and their respective subsidiaries on a combined basis.

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (“Broadmark Realty” or the “Company”), a Maryland corporation, is an internally
managed commercial real estate finance company that has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. Based in Seattle, Washington, we specialize in underwriting, funding, servicing and managing a
portfolio of short-term, first deed of trust loans to fund the construction and development of, or investment in, residential or
commercial properties. We operate in select states that we believe to have favorable demographic trends and that provide more
efficient and quicker access to collateral in the event of borrower default. In March 2020, we launched a private real estate
investment trust (the “Private REIT”) offered to qualified purchasers that is managed by our subsidiary and that participates in
our loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2020, our portfolio of 204 active loans had approximately $1.2 billion of total
commitments and $860.1 million of principal outstanding across 145 borrowers in 12 states and the District of Columbia, of
which $82.4 million and $37.7 million, respectively, were sold to the Private REIT. We refer to loans that have outstanding
commitments or principal balances that have not been repaid or retired, including by foreclosure, as “active loans.” Total
commitments refer to the aggregate sum of outstanding principal balances, construction holdbacks and committed amounts for
future draws and interest reserves on our loans. To date our loan portfolio has been 100% equity funded, and as of December 31,
2020, we have no outstanding debt. As a public company, we plan to opportunistically raise capital in the public market from
time to time based on market conditions and to execute on cash management tools to fund the business and produce attractive
returns for our stockholders. On February 19, 2021, we closed on a $135.0 million revolving credit facility, which we expect will
enable us to use a larger percentage of our cash balances for lending activities without planning to incur debt in the ordinary
course of business.
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Properties securing our loans are generally classified as residential properties, commercial properties or undeveloped
land, and are typically not income producing. Each loan is secured by a first deed of trust lien on real estate. Our lending policy
limits the committed amount of each loan to a maximum loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio of up to 65% of the “as-complete”
appraised value of the underlying collateral as determined by an independent appraiser at the time of the loan origination. Our
lending policy also limits the initial outstanding principal balance of each loan to a maximum LTV of up to 65% of the “as-is”
appraised value of the underlying collateral as determined by an independent appraiser at the time of the loan origination. At the
time of origination, the difference between the initial outstanding principal and the total commitment is the amount held back for
future release subject to property inspections, progress reports and other conditions in accordance with the loan documents.
Unless otherwise indicated, LTV is measured by the total commitment amount of the loan at origination divided by the “as-
complete” appraisal. LTVs do not reflect interim activity such as construction draws or interest payments capitalized to loans, or
partial repayments of the loan. As of December 31, 2020, the weighted average LTV was 59.4% across our active loan portfolio
based on the total commitment of the loan and “as-complete” appraisals. In addition, each loan is also personally guaranteed on a
recourse basis by the principals of the borrower, and/or others at our discretion to provide further credit support for the loan. The
personal guarantee may be collaterally secured by a pledge of the guarantor’s interest in the borrower or other real estate or assets
owned by the guarantor.

Our loans typically range from $0.1 to $40 million in total commitment at origination, generally bear interest at a fixed
annual rate of 10% to 13% and have initial terms typically ranging from five to 18 months in duration based on the size of the
project and expected timeline for completion of construction, which we often elect to extend for several months based on our
evaluation of the project. As of December 31, 2020, the average total commitment of our active loans was $6.1 million and the
weighted average remaining term to contractual maturity of our active loans was approximately seven months. We usually
receive loan origination fees, or “points,” typically ranging from 4% to 5% of the total commitment at origination, along with
loan amendment and extension fees, each of which varies in amount based upon the term of the loan and the quality of the
borrower and the underlying collateral. In addition, we charge fees on past due receivables and receive reimbursements from
borrowers for costs associated with services provided by us, such as closing costs, collection costs on defaulted loans and
construction draw inspection fees.

In addition to the natural seasonality inherent in our business whereby winter months are typically less favorable to
construction, restrictions related to the Business Combination decreased the amount of our loan originations for the second half of
2019 and early 2020. The pending Business Combination required us to essentially pause our ability to raise capital and in turn
originate new loans for most of the second half of 2019. In the first quarter of 2020, we focused on rebuilding our pipeline and
began to strategically deploy the proceeds from the Business Combination; these rebuilding efforts began to slow in March due to
the uncertainty associated with the impacts of COVID-19. In March 2020, we launched the Private REIT to provide access to an
additional source of capital and fund participations in loans originated by Broadmark Realty. We believe the Private REIT
enhances our ability to increase originations and grow our asset base, subject to market conditions. As of December 31, 2020, the
Private REIT’s participation in the total principal balance funded and outstanding was approximately $37.7 million.
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The COVID-19 pandemic is significantly affecting, and can be expected to continue to impact, the capital markets and
the construction lending market, at least in the near term. While we have implemented a variety of business continuity initiatives,
restrictions imposed in connection with COVID-19 or the impact on key employees, could create significant challenges for our
operations. We have experienced an adverse impact on our loan portfolio primarily in the form of a significant increase in
defaulted loans, a slow-down in construction progress and an expected reduction in demand for and the value of commercial and
residential real estate properties. For example, delays in local government permitting and inspections arising from measures to
limit the spread of COVID-19 have delayed some projects, adversely affecting the ability of borrowers to complete the projects in
accordance with the terms of the loans. Similarly, the COVID-19 pandemic and containment measures have contributed to,
among other things, adverse impacts on demand for and the value of commercial and residential real estate that our borrowers
have developed that make it less likely that a borrower can sell or lease the property it is developing in an amount sufficient to
repay the borrower’s loan, or that a developer, who would be our borrower, will elect to go forward with a new project. As a
result, during the first half of 2020, we saw an increase in delinquencies and requests for extensions or forbearance, which
declined during the second half of 2020. In addition, market conditions, and in some cases moratoriums on the foreclosure
process have increased the timeline to resolve non-performing loans. Delays in repayment of our outstanding loans or sales of
foreclosed properties reduce the capital available for future loan originations. If the pandemic is prolonged, it could increase the
adverse impact on our business and results of operations.

Key Indicators of Financial Condition and Operating Performance

In assessing the performance of our business, we consider a variety of financial and operating metrics, which include
both GAAP and non-GAAP metrics, including the following:

Interest income earned on our loans. A primary source of our revenue is interest income earned on our loan portfolio.
Our loans typically bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 10% to 13%, paid monthly, primarily from interest reserves and, to a
lesser extent, cash payments. As we have historically had no debt outstanding, we have had no borrowing costs and accordingly
our gross interest income earned on our loans has been equivalent to net interest income.

Fees and other revenue recognized from originating and servicing our loans. Fee income is comprised of loan
origination fees, loan renewal fees and inspection fees. The majority of fee income is comprised of loan origination fees, or
“points,” which typically range from 4% to 5%, on an annualized basis, of the total commitment at origination. In addition to
origination fees, we earn loan extension fees when maturing loans are renewed or extended and amendment fees when loan terms
are modified, such as increases in interest reserves and construction holdbacks in line with our underwriting criteria or upon
modification of a loan for the transition from horizontal development to vertical construction. Loans are generally only renewed
or extended if the loan is not in default and satisfies our underwriting criteria, including our maximum LTV ratio of up to 65% of
the appraised value as determined by an independent appraiser at the time of loan origination, or based on an updated appraisal if
required.

Loan originations. Our operating performance is heavily dependent upon our ability to originate new loans to invest
new capital and re-invest returning capital from the repayment of loans. The dollar amounts of loan originations reflect the total
commitment at origination and loan repayments reflect the total commitment at payoff. Given the short-term nature of our loans,
loan principal is generally repaid on a faster basis than to other types of lenders, making redeployment of capital through our
originations process an important factor in our success.

The following tables contains the total amount of our loan originations and repayments for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
(dollars in millions) December 31, 2020
Loans originated $ 475.6
Loans repaid $ 324.0
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Credit quality of our loan portfolio. All of our loans are construction loans secured by residential or commercial real
estate and, in assessing estimated credit losses, we evaluate various metrics, including, but not limited to, construction type,

collateral type, LTV, market conditions of property location and borrower experience and financial strength.

The following tables allocate the carrying value of our loan portfolio based on our internal credit quality indicators used

in assessing estimated credit losses and vintage of origination at the dates indicated:

At December 31, 2020

Year Originated (D

(dollars in thousands) Carrying Value % of Portfolio 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior
Construction Type
Vertical Construction $ 514,136 63.5 % $ 354,012 $§ 57,090 $ 6,853 $ 88,655 7,526 $ —
Horizontal Development 153,345 19.0 129,607 15,028 283 — 8,427 —
Investment 141,595 17.5 98,146 18,657 7,259 16,444 — 1,089
Total $ 809,076 100.0 % $ 581,765 $ 90,775 $ 14,395 $ 105,099 15953 § 1,089
CECL allowance (10,590)
Carrying value, net $ 798486
(1) Represents the year of origination or amendment where the loan incurred a full re-underwriting.

At December 31, 2020 Year Originated (V
(dollars in thousands) Carrying Value % of Portfolio 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior
Collateral Type
Apartments $ 129,588 16.0 % $ 79931 $ 18953 § — $§ 24232 6,472 $ —
Residential Lots 124,548 15.4 105,830 10,291 — — 8,427 —
Condos 92,245 11.4 52,714 3,106 4,405 32,020 — —
Single family housing 90,131 11.1 69,438 8,839 1,028 10,103 — 723
Land 72,913 9.0 48,844 — 7,259 16,444 — 366
Townhomes 72,773 9.0 47,391 1,061 1,703 21,564 1,054 —
Mixed Use 66,092 8.2 60,232 5,860 — — — —
Hotel 51,115 6.3 42,874 8,241 — — — —
Senior Housing 34,283 4.2 34,283 — — — — —
Offices 29,540 3.7 8,495 21,045 — — — —
Commercial Lots 15,683 1.9 15,683 — — — — —
Retail 11,397 1.4 9,500 1,897 — — — —
Industrial 11,309 14 704 10,605 — — — —
Quadplex 5,592 0.7 5,592 — — — — —
Commercial 877 0.1 — 877 — — — —
Duplex 736 0.1 — — — 736 — —
Commercial other 254 0.1 254 — — — — —
Total $ 809,076 1000%  $ 581,765 $ 90,775 $ 14,395 $ 105,099 15953 $ 1,089
CECL allowance (10,590)
Carrying value, net $§ 798486

(1) Represents the year of origination or amendment where the loan incurred a full re-underwriting.
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At December 31, 2020 Year Originated (V
(dollars in thousands) Carrying Value % of Portfolio 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior
LTV ®
0 - 40% $ 22,601 28% $ 18,112 § — $ 3862 § 261§ — 8 366
41 -45% 68,263 8.4 44,683 20,183 3,397 — — —
46 - 50% 23,864 2.9 15,917 7,224 — — — 723
51-55% 76,539 9.5 57,583 2,774 — 16,182 — —
56 - 60% 135,170 16.7 117,309 3,106 — 9,639 5,116 —
61 - 65% 450,253 55.7 301,964 57,488 7,136 76,139 7,526 —
66 - 70% 9,416 1.2 9,416 — — — — —
71 -75% 1,983 0.2 1,983 — — — — —
76 - 80% 14,544 1.8 14,544 — — — — —
Above 80% 6,443 0.8 254 — — 2,878 3,311 —
Total $ 809,076 100.0 % $ 581,765 $ 90,775 $ 14,395 § 105,099 $ 15953 § 1,089
CECL allowance (10,590)
Carrying value, net $§ 798486

(1) Represents the year of origination or amendment where the loan incurred a full re-underwriting.

(2) Represents LTV as of origination or latest amendment. LTVs above 65% generally represent loans in contractual default
status where we have agreed to extend funds to the borrower above 65% in order to support timely successful completion of
the construction and return of capital.

Dividends Declared. The following table summarizes the declared cash dividends per common share activity for the
year ended December 31, 2020:

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

Dividends declared per common share $ 0.78

Earnings per Common Share. The following table summarizes the earnings (GAAP) and distributable earnings (non-
GAAP) per common share activity for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Year Ended
December 31, 2020
Earnings per common share, basic $ 0.68
Earnings per common share, diluted 0.68
Distributable earnings per common share, basic 0.76
Distributable earnings per common share, diluted S 0.75

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Distributable Earnings

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2020, and for all subsequent reporting periods ending on or after December 31, 2020,
to more appropriately reflect the principal purpose of the measure, we have elected to present “distributable earnings”, a
supplemental non-GAAP financial measure used by management to evaluate our operating performance. Distributable earnings
replaces our prior presentation of “core earnings”. We define distributable earnings as net income attributable to common
stockholders adjusted for: (i) impairment recorded on our investments; (ii) unrealized gains or losses on our investments
(including provision for credit losses); (iii) non-capitalized transaction-related expenses and first year public company transition
expenses; (iv) non-cash stock-based compensation; (v) depreciation and amortization of our intangible assets; and (vi) deferred
taxes, which are subject to variability and generally not indicative of future economic performance or representative of current
operations.
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, we recorded a $4.5 million increase in the CECL allowance through
provision expense, which has been excluded from distributable earnings consistent with other unrealized gains (losses) pursuant
to our policy for reporting core earnings. Unlike in our historic presentation of core earnings, we expect to recognize such
potential credit losses in distributable earnings if and when such amounts are deemed nonrecoverable upon a realization event.
This is generally upon charge-off of principal at the time of loan repayment or upon sale of real property owned by us and the
amount of proceeds is less than the principal outstanding at the time of foreclosure.

Management believes that the adjustments to compute “distributable earnings” specified above allow investors and
analysts to readily identify and track the operating performance of our assets, assist in comparing the operating results between
periods, and enable investors to evaluate our current performance using the same measure that management uses to operate the
business. Distributable earnings excludes certain recurring items, such as unrealized gains and losses (including provision for
credit losses) and non-capitalized transaction-related expenses, because they are not considered by management to be part of our
primary operations for the reasons described herein. As such, distributable earnings is not intended to reflect all of our activity
and should be considered as only one of the factors used by management in assessing our performance, along with GAAP net
income which is inclusive of all of our activities.

As a REIT, we are required to distribute at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable income and to pay tax at regular
corporate rates to the extent that we annually distribute less than 100% of such taxable income. Given these requirements and our
belief that dividends are generally one of the principal reasons that stockholders invest in our common stock, we generally intend
to attempt to pay dividends to our stockholders in an amount equal to our net taxable income, if and to the extent authorized by
our board of directors. Distributable earnings is one of many factors considered by our board of directors in declaring dividends
and, while not a direct measure of taxable income, over time, the measure can be considered a useful indicator of our dividends.

Distributable earnings does not represent and should not be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, net income or

as a substitute for, or superior to, cash flows from operating activities, each as determined in accordance with GAAP, and our
calculation of this measure may not be comparable to similarly entitled measures reported by other companies.
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The table below is a reconciliation of distributable earnings to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure:

Three Months Ended Year Ended

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share data) December 31,2020  December 31, 2020
Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 22,414 $ 90,231
Adjustments for non-distributable earnings:
Stock-based compensation expense 1,073 4,867
First year public company transition expenses (1) 1,955 4,705
Non-capitalized transaction-related expenses 181 181
Change in fair value of optional subscription liabilities (398) (5,492)
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets 124 (558)
Provision for credit losses, net 998 6,722
Total adjustments: 3,933 10,425
Distributable earnings prior to realized loss on investments $ 26,347 $ 100,656
Realized credit losses (2) (189) (1,057)
Distributable earnings $ 26,158 $ 99,599
Distributable earnings per diluted share of common stock prior to realized loss on
investments $ 020 $ 0.76
Distributable earnings per diluted share of common stock $ 020 $ 0.75
Weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding, diluted 132,667,837 132,261,113

(1) Expenses directly related to first year of public company reporting and compliance, primarily professional fees in connection
with the design and implementation of internal controls and procedures under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

(2) Represents credit losses recorded in the provision for credit losses and recognized in distributable earnings upon charge-off
of principal at the time of loan repayment or upon sale of real property where proceeds received are less than the principal
outstanding. This item was not recognized in our historic presentation of core earnings.

Segment Reporting
We operate our business as one reportable segment.
Principal Factors Affecting the Comparability of our Results of Operations

As a commercial real estate finance company, our results are affected by factors such as changes in economic climate,
demand for housing, population trends, construction costs and the availability of alternative real estate financing from other
lenders. These factors may have an impact on our ability to originate new loans or the performance of our existing loan portfolio.

From November 15, 2019, our consolidated financial statements reflect BRELF II, one of the Predecessor Companies,
as the accounting acquirer and Successor entity, acquiring the other three Predecessor Companies, the four Predecessor
Management Companies, and Trinity in the Successor period. The Business Combination transaction reflects a change in
accounting basis for the Predecessor Company Group (other than BRELF 1II). As Trinity was a special purpose acquisition
company, its acquisition is reflected as the issuance of shares for cash. For periods prior to November 15, 2019, in lieu of
presenting separate financial statements of each of the Predecessor Companies and Predecessor Management Companies,
consolidated financial statements have been presented, as these entities were under common management. Broadmark Realty is
the successor issuer to Trinity.

As a result of the Business Combination, beginning from November 15, 2019, our consolidated financial statements are
presented on a new basis of accounting pursuant to ASC 805, Business Combinations to reflect BRELF II acquiring the other
entities within the Predecessor Company Group and Trinity. For more information refer to “Note 3 — Business Combination” to
the financial statements included in this Report.
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Results from Operations

The period-to-period comparison of results is not necessarily indicative of results for future periods. The tables below
set forth the results of our operations and the results of the operations of our Predecessor for the periods presented, both in dollars
and as a percentage of revenue (amounts in thousands, except percentage data):

Successor Successor Predecessor Predecessor
Year Ended Period from November 15, Period from January 1, 2019 Year Ended
December 31, 2019 through December 31, through November 14, December 31,
Statements of Operations Data: 2020 2019 2019 @ 2018 @
Revenues
Interest income $ 93,869 $ 13,207 $ 82,225 $ 58,429
Fee income 28,489 2,767 32,785 37,417
Total Revenue 122,358 15,974 115,010 95,846
Other Income (Expense):
Change in fair value of optional
subscription liabilities 5,492 (4,924) — —
Expenses
Impairment:
Provision for credit losses, net 6,722 — 3,342 1,783
Operating expenses:
Compensation and employee
benefits 17,506 2,527 5,554 3,945
General and administrative 13,391 2,843 10,402 8,278
Transaction costs — 367 25,789 —
Total Expenses 37,619 5,737 45,087 14,006
Income before income taxes 90,231 5,313 69,923 81,840
Income tax provision — — — 90
Net income $ 90,231 $ 5,313 $ 69,923 $ 81,750
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Successor Successor Predecessor Predecessor
Year Ended Period from November 15, Period from January 1, 2019 Year Ended
December 31, 2019 through December 31, through November 14, December 31,
Percentage of Revenue: 2020 2019 2019 @ 2018 @
Revenues
Interest income 77 % 83 % 71 % 61 %
Fee income 23 17 29 39
Total Revenue 100 100 100 100
Other Income (Expense):
Change in fair value of
optional subscription
liabilities 4 (€2))] — —
Expenses
Impairment:
Provision for credit losses, net 5 — 3 2
Operating expenses:
Compensation and employee
benefits 14 16 5 4
General and administrative 11 18 9 9
Transaction costs — 2 22 —
Total Expenses 30 36 39 15
Income before income taxes 74 33 61 85
Income tax provision 0 0 0 0
Net income 74 % 33 % 61 % 85 %

Comparison of Results of Operations

Unless otherwise stated, for purposes of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations, in the comparison of the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020 and year ended December 31,
2019, the “2020 Successor Period” refers to the year ended December 31, 2020 and the “2019 Successor Period” refers to the
period from November 15 through December 31, 2019, and the “2019 Predecessor Period” refer to the period from January 1
through November 14, 2019, and for the discussion of the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019 and year
ended December 31, 2018, the “2018 Predecessor Period” refers to the year ended December 31, 2018.

Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Successor) Compared to Period from November 15, 2019 through December 31, 2019
(Successor) and Period from January 1, 2019 through November 14, 2019 (Predecessor)

Revenue

Total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020 (the “2020 Successor Period””) compared to the periods from
November 15 through December 31, 2019 (the “2019 Successor Period”) and January 1 through November 14, 2019 (the “2019
Predecessor Period”) were $122.4 million and $131.0 million, respectively, a decrease of $8.6 million. The decrease relates to a
decrease in interest and fee income relative to the 2019 Successor Period and 2019 Predecessor Period and is discussed below.

Expenses
Total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the periods from November 15 through December
31,2019 and January 1 through November 14, 2019 were $37.6 million and $50.8 million, respectively. The decrease relates to a

decrease in transaction costs relative to the 2019 Successor Period and 2019 Predecessor Period, partially offset by an increase in
provision for credit losses and compensation and employee benefits expense, which is discussed below.
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Interest Income

Interest income decreased by $1.6 million or 1.6% for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the periods from
November 15 through December 31, 2019 and January 1 through November 14, 2019. The decrease resulted primarily from the
increase in loans in contractual default and placed on non-accrual status primarily as a result of the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on our borrowers’ ability to complete projects in the timeframe originally contemplated. The decreases in interest
income were partially offset by increase in interest income resulting from a net increase in the average size of our loan portfolio
of approximately 13.4% in the 2020 Successor Period compared to the 2019 Successor Period and 2019 Predecessor Period.

Fee Income

Fee income decreased by $7.1 million or 19.9% for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the periods from
November 15 through December 31, 2019 and January 1 through November 14, 2019 primarily attributable to a decrease in loan
fee income relative to the 2019 Predecessor Period as a result of the Company beginning to defer and amortize loan origination
and amendment fees on November 15, 2019 whereas in the past, the Predecessor’s accounting policy was to record the loan fees
when billed.

Other Income (Expense)

The change in fair value of the optional subscription liability is an unrealized gain or loss based on the fair value of an
optional subscription of up to $25 million of additional common stock issued as a part of the Business Combination (the
“Optional Subscription Liability””). The Optional Subscription Liability warrants contained a cash settlement feature, which
required accounting for the fair value of the liability at each reporting period. The Optional Subscription Liability was measured
at a fair value of $5.5 million as of December 31, 2019 and other income of $5.5 million was recognized during the 2020
Successor Period resulting from the expiration of the unexercised optional subscription warrants in November 2020.

Provision for credit losses, net

The provision for credit losses increased $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the periods
from November 15 through December 31, 2019 and January 1 through November 14, 2019. The increase resulted primarily from
an increase in loans in contractual defaults associated with the current economic environment primarily related to the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic and adoption of the CECL Standard.

Compensation and Employee Benefits

Compensation and employee benefits expense increased by $9.4 million or 116.6% for the year ended December 31,
2020 compared to the periods from November 15 through December 31, 2019 and January 1 through November 14, 2019
primarily due to an increase of $6.4 million related to an increase in employee headcount and a change in the compensation
structure for executives who were compensated previously as partners through distribution of earnings during the 2019
Predecessor Period and an increase of $3.0 million in stock-based compensation expense in the 2020 Successor Period compared
to the 2019 Successor Period and 2019 Predecessor Period.
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General and Administrative

General and administrative expense increased by $0.1 million or 1.1% for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared
to the periods from November 15 through December 31, 2019 and January 1 through November 14, 2019. This increase is
primarily a result of an increase in accounting and legal fees of $7.3 million associated with being a new public company,
including certain non-recurring expenses, such as design and implementation of internal controls and procedures under Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The increase was almost entirely offset by a decrease of $5.5 million of non-recurring broker
commissions associated with growth in the loan portfolio during the 2019 Predecessor Period and a $1.7 million decrease in
amortization expense that resulted from a reversal of amortization of $0.7 million during the 2020 Successor Period that was
originally recognized in the 2019 Successor Period but was a measurement period adjustment when the preliminary valuation of
intangible assets was decreased.

Transaction Costs
The $26.2 million of transaction costs for the periods from November 15 through December 31, 2019 and January 1
through November 14, 2019, include fees paid to investment banks, legal counsel and accounting firms as well as one-time

payments associated with the Business Combination.

Period from November 15, 2019 through December 31, 2019 (Successor) and Period from January 1, 2019 through November
14, 2019 (Predecessor) Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2018 (Predecessor)

A discussion regarding the results of operations for the period from November 15 2019 through December 31, 2019
(Successor) and the period from January 1, 2019 through November 14 2019 (Predecessor) compared to the year ended
December 31, 2018 (Predecessor) can be found under Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations in our annual report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on
March 16, 2020, which is available on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Our primary liquidity needs include ongoing commitments to fund our lending activities and future funding obligations
for our existing loan portfolio, paying dividends and funding other general business needs. Our primary sources of liquidity and
capital resources to date have been derived from the capital contributions from members of the Predecessor Companies, cash
flow from operations and payoffs of loans in our existing portfolio. Neither the Successor nor the Predecessor, has utilized any
borrowings since inception. As of December 31, 2020, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $223.4 million.

We seek to meet our long-term liquidity requirements, such as real estate lending needs, including future construction
draw commitments through our existing cash resources and return of capital from investments, including loan repayments.
Additionally, going forward, we intend to fund our growth through the issuance of common stock, the sale of participation
interests in loans we originate to the Private REIT, fee income from the Private REIT, and the use of our revolving credit facility
as a cash management tool. As of December 31, 2020, we had $1.2 billion of total commitments outstanding, of which our
portion and the Private REIT’s portion of the total principal balance funded and outstanding were $822.4 million and $37.7
million, respectively.

On February 19, 2021, we entered into a credit agreement with a syndicate of lenders and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
as administrative agent for the lenders, providing for a $135.0 million revolving credit facility. By providing backup liquidity for
future draws, we expect the availability of the revolving credit facility will enable us to use a larger percentage of our cash
balances for lending activities without planning to incur debt in the ordinary course of business.
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Our obligations under the revolving credit facility are secured by substantially all of our Company’s assets. The
revolving credit facility contains covenants customary for financings of this type, including limitations on the incurrence of
indebtedness, liens, asset dispositions, acquisitions, mergers and consolidations, certain dividends, distributions and other
payments, advances and investments, payments to affiliates, optional prepayments and other modifications of certain other
indebtedness, and amendments, terminations and waivers of certain material agreements, as well as a minimum tangible net
worth and a total debt to equity ratio requirement. Among other things, the credit agreement provides that we may not pay cash
dividends that would result in non-compliance with the financial covenants under the credit agreement or during an event of
default under the credit agreement, except in the case of defaults other than payment defaults, for dividends in the amounts
necessary to maintain our REIT status. The revolving credit facility contains events of default customary for financings of this
type, including failure to pay principal, interest and other amounts, materially incorrect representations or warranties, failure to
observe covenants and other terms of the revolving credit facility, cross-defaults to other indebtedness, bankruptcy, insolvency,
material judgments, certain ERISA violations, changes in control and failure to maintain REIT status, in some cases subject to
customary grace periods.

We believe our existing sources of liquidity are sufficient to fund our existing commitments. However, we are
continuing to monitor the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on us, our borrowers and the economy as a whole. Because the
magnitude, duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and its economic consequences are uncertain, rapidly changing and
difficult to predict, the pandemic’s impact on our operations and liquidity remains uncertain and difficult to predict. We
anticipate the pandemic may continue to slow the pace of repayments of our outstanding loans, which would reduce the capital
available to fund new loans. As a result, we seek to fund new loans in the near term through the sale of participation interests in
new mortgage loans to the Private REIT, which will depend on the ability of the Private REIT to raise capital. To the extent funds
available for new loans are limited, we will manage our capital deployment based on the receipt of payoffs. In the longer term,
we plan to raise equity capital from time to time as a key component of our growth strategy, subject to market conditions.

As a REIT, we are required to distribute at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable income to our stockholders, including
taxable income where Broadmark Realty does not receive corresponding cash. We intend to distribute all or substantially all of
our REIT taxable income in order to comply with the REIT distribution requirements of the Code and to avoid U.S. federal
income tax and the non-deductible excise tax.

Sources and Uses of Cash

The following table sets forth changes in cash and cash equivalents for year ended December 31, 2020, periods ended
December 31, 2019 and November 14, 2019, and the year ended December 31, 2018:

Successor Successor Predecessor Predecessor
Year Ended Period from November 15, | Period from January 1,2019  Year Ended
December 31, 2019 through December 31, through November 14, December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2020 2019 2019 2018
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 61,341 $ 5,640 | $ 91,498 §$ 81,502
Investing activities 34,884 (25,892) (216,391)  (275,650)
Financing activities (111,064) 258,396 101,235 240,235
Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash
equivalents $ (14,839) $ 238,144 | $ (23,658) $ 46,087
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Comparison of Results of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Successor) and the Period from November 15,
2019 through December 31, 2019 (Successor) and Period from January 1, 2019 through November 14, 2019 (Predecessor)

Net cash provided by operating activities was $61.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 and $5.6 million for
the period from November 15 through December 31, 2019 and $91.5 million for the period from January 1 through November
14, 2019 for a combined total of $97.1 million. The $35.8 million decrease partially resulted from the subtraction of $23.1 million
of accretion of deferred origination and amendment fees within the adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities for the 2020 Successor Period with no corresponding amount for the 2019 Successor and 2019 Predecessor
Periods. We began to defer and amortize loan origination and amendment fees on November 15, 2019 upon consummation of the
Business Combination for our consolidated financial reporting. Under the business model used by the Predecessor entities (whose
financial results were not consolidated but are being presented on a combined basis for the period from January 1 through
November 14, 2019), 80% of the loan origination and amendment fees were paid to the Predecessor management entities. The
Predecessor management entities classified the management fees received as cash provided by operating activities. The 20% of
loan origination and amendment fees retained by the Predecessor lending entities were included in the total for cash flows
provided by operating activities instead of being included in cash flows from investing activities, but the impact to the statement
of cash flows of this treatment is immaterial to the statement of cash flows for the 2019 Successor and Predecessor Periods. The
decrease in cash flow from operations partially resulted from a $8.5 million change in the amount of increases in operating assets
related to receivables and other assets, $12.5 million decreases in operating liabilities and the $5.5 million of noncash other
income for the change in the fair value of optional subscription liabilities in the 2020 Successor Period with $4.9 million of non-
cash other expense related to the increase in the fair value of optional subscription liabilities in the 2019 Successor Period. These
decreases were partially offset by an increase in net income of $15.0 million, $3.0 million increase in stock-based compensation
and $3.4 million increase in the provision for credit losses, which are discussed above in Comparison of Results of Operations —
Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Successor) Compared to Period from November 15, 2019 through December 31, 2019
(Successor) and Period from January 1, 2019 through November 14, 2019 (Predecessor).

Net cash provided by investing activities was $34.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 and net cash used in
investing activities of $25.9 million for the period from November 15 through December 31, 2019 and $216.4 million for the
period from January 1 through November 14, 2019 for a combined total of $242.3 million. The increase in cash provided by
investing activities was primarily due to a small decrease in the size of our loan portfolio from December 31, 2019 through
December 31, 2020 compared to a much larger increase in the loan portfolio experienced in the 2019 Successor Period and
Predecessor Period. The increase in size of the loan portfolio in the Predecessor Period was due in part from capital available for
making loans from the $101.2 million of net contributions received from members in the 2019 Predecessor Period.

Net cash used in financing activities was $111.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 and net cash provided by
financing activities of $258.4 million for the period from November 15 through December 31, 2019 and $101.2 million for the
period from January 1 through November 14, 2019 for a combined total of $359.6 million. Dividend paid are entirely the cash
used in financing during the 2020 Successor Period. The increases in the 2019 Successor and 2019 Predecessor Periods were
primarily due to the proceeds from the capitalization with Trinity Merger Sub I, Inc. of $327.1 million partially offset by the
consent fee paid to holders of publicly held warrants of $66.7 million and $101.2 million related to member contributions net of
distributions and redemptions.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table illustrates our contractual obligations by due date as of December 31, 2020:

Less than 1 More than
(dollars in thousands) Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Construction holdbacks (1) 356,026 229,431 126,595 — —
Operating lease obligations $ 11,848  § 647 $ 1,893 §$ 2,008 $ 7,300
Total $ 367,874 $ 230,078 $ 128,488 $ 2,008 $ 7,300

(1) Includes construction holdbacks of $40.4 million on participating interests sold to the Private REIT as of December 31,
2020.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not participate in transactions that create relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships,
often referred to as variable interest entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements. Finally, we have not entered into any off-balance sheet financing arrangements, established any special purpose
entities, guaranteed any debt or commitments of other entities, or purchased any non-financial assets as of December 31, 2020.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The most significant accounting estimates involve a high degree of judgment or complexity. Management believes the
estimates and judgments most critical to the preparation of our consolidated financial statements and to the understanding of our
reported financial results include those made in connection with loan impairment and valuation of investments in real estate and
taxable income. Management evaluates our policies and assumptions on an ongoing basis.

For a description of our significant accounting policies related to these accounts in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements, see “Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of our consolidated financial statements
included in this Report.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

For a description of our adoption of new accounting pronouncements and the impact thereof on our business, see

"Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" of our consolidated financial statements included in this Report.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
At December 31, 2020, we did not have any outstanding “market risk sensitive instruments,” as such term is used within

the meaning of Item 305 of SEC Regulation S-K. However, we are subject to other types of business risk described below and
under “Market Risks Related to Real Estate Loans” in Item 1A. Risk Factors above.
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Interest Rate Risk

While all our loans bear a fixed rate of interest and we do not have any interest-rate sensitive instruments obligations
outstanding, the nature of our business exposes us to business risk arising from changes in interest rates. Interest rates are highly
sensitive to many factors, including governmental, monetary and tax policies, domestic and international economic and political
considerations and other factors beyond our control. An increase or decrease in interest rates would not impact the interest
charged on our then existing loan portfolio, as our loans bear fixed rates of interest. However, a rapid significant increase in
interest rates may reduce the demand for mortgage loans due to the higher cost of borrowing, potentially resulting in a reduced
demand for real estate, declining real estate values and higher default rates. Alternatively, a significant rapid decline in interest
rates may negatively affect the amount of interest that we may charge on new loans, including those that are made with capital
received as outstanding loans mature. Additionally, declining interest rates may also result in prepayments of existing loans,
which may also result in the redeployment of capital in new loans bearing lower interest rates. See Item 1A above.

Credit Risk

Our loans are subject to credit risk. Credit risk is the exposure to loss from loan defaults. Default rates are subject to a
wide variety of factors, including, but not limited to, borrower financial condition, property performance, property management,
supply and demand factors, construction trends, consumer behavior, regional economics, interest rates, the strength of the U.S.
economy and other factors beyond our control. All loans are subject to a certain possibility of default. We seek to mitigate credit
risk by originating loans which are secured by first position liens on real estate with a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 65%. We
also undertake extensive due diligence of the property that will be mortgaged to secure the loans, including review of third-party
appraisals on the property.

Risks Related to Real Estate

Residential and commercial property values are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by a number of
factors, including, but not limited to, events such as natural disasters, including hurricanes and earthquakes, acts of war and
terrorism, national, regional and local economic conditions (which may be adversely affected by industry slowdowns and other
factors); local real estate conditions (such as an oversupply of housing, retail, industrial, office or other commercial space);
changes or continued weakness in specific industry segments; construction quality, construction cost, age and design;
demographic factors; retroactive changes to building or similar codes; and increases in operating expenses (such as energy costs).
In addition, decreases in property values reduce the value of the collateral and the potential proceeds available to a borrower to
repay the loans, which could also cause us to suffer losses. These factors could adversely affect our business, financial condition,
results of operations and ability to make distributions to its members.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this item and the reports of the independent accountants thereon required by

Item 14(a)(2) appear on pages F-1 to F-34. See accompanying Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-1.
The supplementary financial data required by Item 302 of Regulation S-K appears in Note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report. The
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be
disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2020.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act as a
process designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and effected
by the Company’s board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP and include
those policies and procedures that:

e Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

® Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

® Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their control
objectives. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).

Based on this assessment, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2020 and that the material weaknesses described below have been remediated.

Moss Adams LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report, has audited the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2020. Their audit report is included with our financial statements, and expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting at December 31, 2020.
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Prior Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

As previously disclosed in the Company’s Form S-4 related to the Business Combination, the Predecessor Company
Group reported certain material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the audit of
the members of the Predecessor Company Groups’ financial statements at December 31, 2018. The Company reported in its
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 that the material weakness previously identified remained as of December 31,
2019.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weaknesses previously identified included (i) lack of formalized internal
control policies and procedures as it relates to financial reporting and (ii) insufficient resources to provide appropriate segregation
of duties related to the preparation and review of information used in financial reporting, as well as review controls over the
financial statement reporting process.

The Company executed the following steps to remediate the aforementioned material weaknesses in internal control
over financial reporting:

e Enhanced internal control policies and procedures developed and implemented during 2020 and 2019 to ensure that
a robust and effective internal control environment exists and persists across the organization; including ensuring
effective risk assessments are performed to identify and assess necessary changes in the application of GAAP,
financial reporting processes and the design and effective operation of internal controls.

e Attracted, trained and retained individuals that have the appropriate skills and experience related to complex
accounting matters and financial reporting;

e Implemented enhanced accounting and financial reporting software; and

e  Continued to report regularly to the Company’s audit committee on the progress and results of the remediation
plan, including the identification, status and resolution of internal control deficiencies.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the quarter ended December 31, 2020, we successfully completed the testing of internal controls over financial
reporting. Except as set forth above, there were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such
terms are defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended December 31, 2020 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART III.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference to the definitive Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. Proxy
Statement to be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the definitive Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. Proxy
Statement to be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the definitive Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. Proxy
Statement to be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the definitive Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. Proxy
Statement to be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the definitive Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. Proxy
Statement to be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

PART IV.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) and (2) Financial Statements and Schedules.

See “Index to Financial Statements and Schedules” on page F-1.

(3) Exhibits

Exhibit Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 9, 2019, by and among Trinity Merger Corp., Broadmark Realty
Capital Inc., Trinity Merger Sub I, Inc., Trinity Merger Sub II, LLC. PBRELF I, LLC, BRELF II, LLC, BRELF IiI,
LLC, BRELF IV, LLC, Pyatt Broadmark Management, LLC, Broadmark Real Estate Management II, LLC,
Broadmark Real Estate Management I1I, LLC, and Broadmark Real Estate Management IV, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Annex A to the joint proxy statement/prospectus contained in Broadmark Realty’s Amendment No. 2 to
the registration statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-233214), filed with the SEC on October 15, 2019).

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on November 20, 2019).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on November 20, 2019).

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-A12B (File No.
001-39134), filed with the SEC on November 14, 2019).
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Specimen Warrant Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-A12B (File
No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on November 14, 2019).

Warrant Agreement, dated as of May 14, 2018, between Trinity Merger Corp. and Continental Stock Transfer &
Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-A12B (File No. 001-
39134). filed with the SEC on November 14, 2019).

Amendment to Warrant Agreement, dated November 14, 2019, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and
Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Co. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K
(File No. 001-39134). filed with the SEC on November 20, 2019).

Second Amendment to Warrant Agreement, dated November 14, 2019, by and among Broadmark Realty Capital
Inc., Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Co., and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on November

20, 2019).

Description of Securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.*

Emplovment Agreement, dated August 9, 2019, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and Jeffrey Pvatt
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the
SEC on November 20, 2019).+

Emplovment Agreement, dated November 14, 2019, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and David
Schneider (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed
with the SEC on November 20, 2019).+

Emplovment Agreement, dated September 5, 2020, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and Nevin
Boparai (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-39134). filed
with the SEC on November 9. 2020). +

Emplovment Agreement, dated November 3, 2020, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and Linda Koa.
*+

Emplovment Agreement, dated November 19, 2020, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and Daniel
Hirsty. *+

Form of Subscription Agreement, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc., Trinity Merger Corp., Farallon
Capital Partners, L.P., Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., Farallon Capital Institutional Partners II, L.P.,

Farallon Capital Institutional Partners Ill, L.P., Four Crossings Institutional Partners V, L.P., and Farallon
Capital (AM) Investors, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No.
001-39134), filed with the SEC on November 20. 2019).

Form of Amendment to Subscription Agreement, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc., Trinity Merger
Corp., Farallon Capital Partners, L.P., Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., Farallon Capital Institutional
Partners I, L.P., Farallon Capital Institutional Partners III, L.P., Four Crossings Institutional Partners V, L.P.,
and Farallon Capital (AM) Investors, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Broadmark Realty’s Form
8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on November 20, 2019).

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. 2019 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Broadmark
Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on November 20, 2019).+
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10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

21.1

22.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K
(File No. 001-39134). filed with the SEC on November 20, 2019).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Broadmark Realty’s
Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on February 7, 2020).+

2020 Annual Cash Bonus Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 10-Q
(File No. 001-39134). filed with the SEC on November 9, 2020).+

Consulting Agreement, dated August 9, 2019, by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and Joseph L.
Schocken (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Broadmark Realty’s Form S-4 (File No. 001-39134). filed
with the SEC on August 12, 2019).+

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. Executive Officer Annual Cash Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on January 27. 2021).+

Credit Agreement, dated February 19, 2021, by and among Broadmark Realty Capital Inc., the Lenders party
thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.. as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Broadmark Realty’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-39134), filed with the SEC on February 25, 2021).

List of Subsidiaries. *

List of Guarantor Subsidiaries of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.*

Consent of Moss Adams LLP.*

Rulel3a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.*

Rulel3a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.*

Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. *

Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. *

*Exhibits that are filed or furnished herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.

ITEM 16.

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 1st day of March 2021.

BROADMARK REALTY CAPITAL INC.
By: /s/ Jeftrey B. Pyatt

Name: Jeffrey Pyatt
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Position Date

/s/ Joseph L. Schocken Chairman of the Board and Director March 1, 2021
Joseph L. Schocken

/s/ Jeffrey B. Pyatt President and Chief Executive Officer and Director March 1, 2021
Jeffrey B. Pyatt (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ David Schneider Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 1, 2021
David Schneider Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Stephen G. Haggerty Director March 1, 2021

Stephen G. Haggerty

/s/ Daniel J. Hirsch Director March 1, 2021
Daniel J. Hirsch

/s/ David A. Karp Director March 1, 2021
David A. Karp
/s/ Norma J. Lawrence Director March 1, 2021

Norma J. Lawrence

/s/ Kevin M. Luebbers Director March 1, 2021
Kevin M. Luebbers
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Members and the Board of Directors of
Broadmark Realty Capital, Inc. (the “Predecessor Company Group”)

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined statements of income, members’ equity, and cash flows of the Predecessor
Company Group, as defined in Note 1, (collectively, the “Predecessor”) for the period from January 1, 2019 to November 14,
2019, and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”) . In
our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
period from January 1, 2019 to November 14, 2019 and for the year ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Predecessor’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Predecessor’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Predecessor in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. The Predecessor is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Predecessor’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures to respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Everett, Washington
March 1, 2021

We have served as the Predecessor’s auditor since 2019.
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Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of
Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

and subsidiaries (the “Company” or “Successor”) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2020, and for the period from November 15, 2019
to December 31, 2019, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™). We also have
audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Successor as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the period from November 15, 2019 to December 31, 2019, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326). As explained below, auditing the Company’s allowance for credit
losses was a critical audit matter.

Basis for Opinions

The Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting included in Item 94. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with
the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures to respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Allowances for Credit Losses

The Company’s outstanding loans totaled $822 million as of December 31, 2020 and the associated allowance for credit losses
(“ACL”) on loans was $10.6 million. As discussed in Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the allowance for
credit losses is a contra-asset valuation account, calculated in accordance with Topic 326 that is deducted from the outstanding
mortgage notes receivable balance to present the net amount expected to be collected.

The ACL represented management’s best estimate of current expected credit losses on mortgage notes receivable, considering all
available information, from internal and external sources, relevant to assessing exposure to credit loss over the contractual term
of the loan portfolio. Loans were segmented into pools based upon similar collateral types. For each loan pool, management
measured expected credit losses over the life of each loan utilizing models (the “Models”) that measure a probability of default
(“PD”) and loss given default (“LGD”). Expected credit losses were calculated as the product of PD and LGD. PD’s and LGD’s
were estimated by utilizing both internally sourced data, based on historical performance of each loan pool over the Company’s
lending history, and externally sourced PD and LGD information by collateral types. A combination of the internal and external
information was utilized by management within the Models to calculate the ACL. PD and LGD information was adjusted to
reflect the current impact of certain macroeconomic variables as well as expected changes over a reasonable and supportable
forecast period, which was consistent with contractual term of the loan portfolio. Auditing management’s estimate of the ACL
involved a high degree of subjectivity due to the use of a combination of both internally and externally sourced loan data. We
identified management’s conclusion on the extent of the use of internal PD and LGD information and externally sourced PD and
LGD information to be a critical audit matter.
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The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included:

e  Testing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of controls relating to management’s adoption of Topic
326 and the calculation of the allowance for credit losses on loans, including controls over the reliability and accuracy of
the data used in the Models, the accuracy of the calculation of the ACL, including determination of the assumptions
used in the Models, and extent of the use of internal PD and LGD information and externally sourced PD and LGD
information.

Testing the appropriateness of the methodology and assumptions used in the calculation of the ACL.
Testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculation itself, including completeness and accuracy of the data used in the
calculation.

o Involving internal specialists to evaluate the PD and LGD models and to perform procedures over inputs used in
determining PD and LGD information used to calculate the ACL.

e  Evaluated the appropriateness of the extent to which internal and external information is used in calculating the ACL,
including performing an independent sensitivity analysis to evaluate the reasonableness of management’s conclusions.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Everett, Washington
March 1, 2021

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2019.
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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Successor). Period from November 15,
2019 through December 31. 2019 (Successor). Period from January 1. 2019 through November 14. 2019
(Predecessor). and Year Ended December 31, 2018 (Predecessor).

Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity for the Period from January 1. 2019 through November 14, 2019
(Predecessor) and Year Ended December 31, 2018 (Predecessor).

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Successor) and Period from

November 15, 2019 through December 31, 2019 (Successor)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 (Successor). Period from November

15,2019 through December 31, 2019 (Successor). Period from January 1, 2019 through November 14, 2019
(Predecessor), and Year Ended December 31, 2018 (Predecessor).

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share data)

December 31, 2020 December 31,2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 223,375  $ 238,214
Mortgage notes receivable, net 798,486 821,589
Interest and fees receivable, net 14,357 4,108
Investment in real property, net 8,473 5,837
Intangible assets, net 621 4,970
Goodwill 136,965 131,965
Other assets 5,042 2,046
Total assets $ 1,187,319  §$ 1,208,729
Liabilities and Equity
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4,946 $ 8,415
Dividends payable 7,952 15,842
Total liabilities $ 12,898  $ 24,257
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2020 and 2019 — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 132,532,383
and 132,015,635 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively 132 132
Additional Paid in Capital 1,213,987 1,209,120
Accumulated deficit (39,698) (24,780)
Total equity 1,174,421 1,184,472
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,187,319  $ 1,208,729

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Successor Successor Predecessor Predecessor
Year Ended Period from November 15, Period from January 1, 2019 Year Ended
December 31, 2019 through December 31, through November 14, December 31,
2020 2019 2019 @ 2018 @
Revenues
Interest income $ 93,869 § 13,207 |$ 82,225 58,429
Fee income 28,489 2,767 32,785 37,417
Total Revenue 122,358 15,974 115,010 95,846
Other Income (Expense):
Change in fair value of optional
subscription liabilities 5,492 (4,924) — —
Expenses
Impairment:
Provision for credit losses, net 6,722 — 3,342 1,783
Operating expenses:
Compensation and employee
benefits 17,506 2,527 5,554 3,945
General and administrative 13,391 2,843 10,402 8,278
Transaction costs — 367 25,789 —
Total Expenses 37,619 5,737 45,087 14,006
Income before income taxes 90,231 5,313 69,923 81,840
Income tax provision — — — 90
Net income $ 90,231 § 5,313 [$ 69,923 81,750
Earnings per common share: (1)
Basic $ 068 $ 0.04
Diluted $ 068 $ 0.04
Weighted-average shares of
common stock outstanding,
basic and diluted
Basic 132,209,495 132,111,329
Diluted 132,261,113 132,499,386

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

M

@

The Company determined that earnings per unit in the Predecessor periods would not be meaningful to the users of this
filing, given the different unit holders and members' equity structures of each individual entity in the Predecessor Company

Group.

Predecessor periods are combined as disclosed in Note 1.
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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Members' Equity

(in thousands, except share data)

Class A Units Class P Units Preferred Units Additional Retained Earnings

Units Amount Units Amount Units (D Amount  Paid-in Capital (Accumulated Deficit) Total
Balances as of
December 31,2017
(Predecessor)® 19,500 $ 1 — 3 — — $ 382595 $ 256 $ (461) $ 382,391
Contributions — — — — 308,426,581 308,426 — — 308,426
Reinvestments — — — — 21,477,478 21,478 — — 21,478
Net Income — — — — — — — 81,750 81,750
Distributions — — — — — — — (81,926) (81,926)
Redemptions — — — — (27,520,106) (27,520) — — (27,520)
REIT Conversion, net®) (295,566,252)
Compensation expense
related to grant of
profits interest (50) — 50 — — — 259 — 259
Grants of restricted
units 1,500 — — — — — 252 — 252
Balances as of
December 31, 2018
(Predecessor)® 20,950 $ 1 50§ — 6,817,701 $ 684979 § 767 § (637) § 685,110
Contributions 850 — — — 3,563,859 356,386 — — 356,386
Reinvestments — — — — 336,366 33,637 — — 33,637
Net Income — — — — — — — 69,923 69,923
Distributions — — — — — — — (102,204)  (102,204)
Redemptions — — — — (1,555,623)  (155,744) — — (155,744)
Compensation expense
related to grant of
profits interest (100) — 100 — — — 734 — 734
Grants of restricted
units 150 — — — — — 474 — 474
Balances as of
November 14, 2019
(Predecessor);, 21,850 $ 1 150 § — 9,162,303 $ 919,258 § 1,975 § (32,918) $ 888316

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(1) Previous years equity classification differs from current year presentation due to change from prior capital structure. Portions of
prior years' equity have been reclassed to retained earnings to conform with current year presentation. No change to total equity.

(2)  Certain companies of the Predecessor converted to a REIT during 2018 and the previous equity structure was converted.

() Predecessor periods are combined as disclosed in Note 1.
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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity

Balances as of November 14, 2019
BRELF II, LLC

Recapitalization of BRELF II, LLC
and Broadmark

Consent fee paid to warrant holders
Issuance of shares in connection with
Business Combination

Issuance of shares for exercised
warrants

Net Income

Dividends

Stock-based compensation expense
for restricted stock units

Balances as of December 31, 2019
(Successor)

Adoption of ASU 2016-13

Issuance of shares for vested
restricted stock units

Issuance of shares for exercised
warrants

Net Income

Dividends

Stock-based compensation expense
for restricted stock units

Balances as of December 31, 2020
(Successor)

(in thousands, except share data)

Preferred Common stock Additional
Shares Amount Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Accumulated Deficit Total
4,655,758 $ 467,235 — § — — 3 (12,259) $ 454,976
(4,655,758) (467,235) 86,118,101 86 794,798 (1,992) 325,657
— — — (66,679) — (66,679)
— 45,896,534 46 479,573 — 479,619
— 1,000 — 11 — 11
— — — — 5,313 5,313
— — — — (15,842) (15,842)
— — — 1,417 — 1,417
— 132,015,635 $§ 132 § 1,209,120  $ (24,780) $ 1,184,472
— — — — (1,975) (1,975)
— 516,723 — — — —
_ 25 _ _ _ _
— — — — 90,231 90,231
— — — — (103,174) (103,174)
— — — 4,867 — 4,867
— 8 132,532,383 $§ 132 § 1,213,987  § (39,698) $ 1,174,421

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Successor

(in thousands)

Successor

Year Ended Period from November 15, 2019

December 31, 2020

through December 31, 2019

Predecessor
Period from January 1, 2019

Predecessor
Year Ended

through November 14, 20190 December 31, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Accretion of deferred origination and
amendment fees

Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation

Compensation expense related to grant
of profits interest

Stock-based compensation expense for
restricted stock units

Compensation expense related to grant
of Class A units

Grants of restricted units

Provision for credit losses, net

Gain on sale of real property

Write down of investment in real
property

Change in unrealized loss on
investments in real property

Change in fair value of optional
subscription liabilities

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:

Change in fees receivable from escrow
Interest and fees receivable, net
Change in other assets

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

Net cash provided by operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash
acquired

Investments in fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of real property
Improvements to investments in real
property

Change in mortgage notes receivable,
net

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from recapitalization with
Trinity Merger Sub

Contributions from members
Contributions received in advance
Dividends paid

Distributions

Redemptions of members

Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Consent fee paid to holders of Public
Warrants

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

$

90,231 $

5,313

$ 69,923 $

81,750

(23,114)
(651)
93

4,867

6,722

(5,492)

(10,249)
(3,089)

2,023

1,030

4,924

1,908
(1,291)

(7,669)

111

734
474
3,342

179

(5,134)
(290)

22,158

252
1,783
(317)

167

(319)
(882)
(2,388)

1,100

61,341

5,640

91,498

81,502

6,356
(119)

28,647

(13,740)
2,577

(14,729)

(268)
6,363

(308)

(222,178)

(261)
6,970

(1,790)

(280,569)

34,884

(25,892)

(216,391)

(275,650)

(111,064)

327,056

(1,992)
11

(66,679)

356,386
(24,507)
(74,900)

(155,744)

308,426
17,137
2,640
(60,448)
(27,520)

(111,064)

258,396

101,235

240,235

(14,839)
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Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

period 238,214 70 112,234 66,147
Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period $ 223375 $ 238,214 |$ 88,576 $ 112,234

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash
investing and financing activities — — — —
Common stock issued in connection with

the Business Combination — 479,619 — —
Common stock issued in connection with
the Recapitalization of BRELF II — 495,496 — —

Common stock issued for transaction
expenses in connection with Business
Combination and Recapitalization — 1,391 — —
Assumption of consent fee liability in

connection with the recapitalization with

Trinity Merger Sub 1, Inc. — 66,679 — —
Dividends payable 7,952 15,842 — —
Reinvested distributions — — 33,637 21,478
Measurement period adjustment to

goodwill and intangible assets 5,000
Mortgage notes receivable converted to

real property owned $ 8,873 3 — 1 2,046 s 7,316

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

(1) Predecessor periods are combined as disclosed in Note 1.

F-7




Table of Contents

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 - Organization and business

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (“Broadmark Realty,” the “Company,” “Successor,” “we,” “us” and “our”) is an
internally managed commercial real estate finance company that provides secured financing to real estate investors and
developers. Broadmark Realty’s objective is to preserve and protect shareholder capital while producing attractive risk-adjusted
returns primarily through dividends generated from current income from its loan portfolio. Broadmark Realty operates in select
states that it believes to have favorable demographic trends and provide Broadmark Realty the ability to efficiently access the
underlying collateral in the event of borrower default.

On November 14, 2019 (the “Closing Date”), Broadmark Realty Capital Inc., a Maryland corporation (formerly named
Trinity Sub Inc.) (“Broadmark Realty”), consummated a business combination (the “Business Combination”) pursuant to an
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 9, 2019 (the “Merger Agreement”), by and among the Company, Trinity Merger
Corp. (“Trinity”), Trinity Merger Sub I, Inc. (“Merger Sub I”’), Trinity Merger Sub II, LLC (“Merger Sub II”” and together with
Trinity and Merger Sub I, the “Trinity Parties”), PBRELF I, LLC (“PBRELF”), BRELF II, LLC (“BRELF II”’), BRELF III, LLC
(“BRELF III”), BRELF IV, LLC (“BRELF IV” and, together with PBRELF, BRELF II and BRELF III, the “Predecessor
Companies” and each a “Predecessor Company”), Pyatt Broadmark Management, LLC (“MgCo I”’), Broadmark Real Estate
Management II, LLC (“MgCo II”), Broadmark Real Estate Management III, LLC (“MgCo III”’), and Broadmark Real Estate
Management IV, LLC (“MgCo IV” and, together with MgCo I, MgCo II and MgCo III, the “Predecessor Management
Companies” and each a “Predecessor Management Company,” and the Predecessor Management Companies, together with the
Predecessor Companies and their subsidiaries, the “Predecessor Company Group”). Pursuant to the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, (i) Merger Sub I merged with and into Trinity, with Trinity being the surviving
entity of such merger (the “Trinity Merger”), (ii) immediately following the Trinity Merger, each of the Predecessor Companies
merged with and into Merger Sub II, with Merger Sub II being the surviving entity of such merger (the “Company Merger”), and
(ii1) immediately following the Company Merger, each of the Predecessor Management Companies merged with and into Trinity,
with Trinity being the surviving entity of such merger (the “Management Company Merger” and, together with the Trinity
Merger and the Company Merger, the “Mergers”). As a result of the Mergers, Merger Sub II and Trinity became wholly owned
subsidiaries of Broadmark Realty.

The consolidated subsidiaries of Broadmark Realty after the Business Combination include BRMK Lending, LLC,
BRMK Management, Corp., and Broadmark Private REIT Management, LLC. BRMK Lending, LLC originates short-term loans
secured by first deed of trust liens on residential and commercial real estate. BRMK Management, Corp. (the “Manager”)
manages the underwriting, closing, servicing and disposition of mortgage notes, and performs all general and administrative
duties for Broadmark Realty. Broadmark Private REIT Management, LLC (the “Private REIT Manager”) manages Broadmark
Private REIT, LLC (the “Private REIT”), an unconsolidated affiliate of the Company that primarily participates in loans
originated, underwritten, and serviced by a subsidiary of Broadmark Realty.

Broadmark Realty has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) for U.S. federal income tax
purposes commencing with the tax period ending December 31, 2019. Broadmark Realty generally will not be subject to U.S.
federal corporate income tax on that portion of its net income that is distributed to stockholders if it distributes at least 90% of its
REIT taxable income to its stockholders by prescribed dates and complies with various other requirements. The Company also
operates its business in a manner that permits it to maintain an exclusion from registration under the Investment Company Act of
1940. As a REIT, Broadmark Realty may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs”),
which may earn income that would not be qualifying income if earned directly by a REIT. The Manager is a TRS and this
election applies to the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Manager, including the Private REIT Manager.

Unless the context otherwise requires, references to “Broadmark Realty,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” in the
remainder of this report refer to Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries after the Business Combination,
and refer to the Predecessor Company Group for periods prior to the Business Combination.
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Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of Presentation

For periods prior to November 15, 2019, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not represent the
financial position and results of operations of one controlling legal entity, but rather a combination of the historical results of the
Predecessor Company Group, which was under common management. Therefore, any reference herein to the Predecessor
financial statements are made on a combined basis. For periods from November 15, 2019 on, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements represent the consolidated financial statements of the Company, beginning with BRELF II as the accounting
acquirer and successor entity. In addition, as a result of the Business Combination, the consolidated financial statements for
periods from November 15, 2019 on, are presented on a new basis of accounting pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification
("ASC") 805, Business Combinations (refer to Note 3) to reflect BRELF II acquiring the other entities within the Predecessor
Company Group and Trinity in the successor period.

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("GAAP").

The presentation of each Predecessor period has been conformed to the current period's presentation for the purposes of
these consolidated financial statements. Additionally, certain balance sheet captions as of December 31, 2019 have been
reclassified to conform to the current period's presentation.

Principles of Consolidation

For the Predecessor period, all significant intra-entity accounts, balances, and transactions have been eliminated in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Beginning November 15, 2019, all significant intercompany accounts,
balances, and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Broadmark Realty consolidates those entities in which it has
control over significant operating, financial and investing decisions of the entity, as well as those entities deemed to be variable
interest entities (“VIEs”), if any, in which Broadmark Realty is determined to be the primary beneficiary. Broadmark Realty is
not the primary beneficiary of, and therefore does not consolidate, any VIEs at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The Private REIT was determined to be a voting interest entity for which we, through our wholly owned subsidiary
acting as manager with no significant equity investment, do not hold a controlling interest in and do not consolidate. Furthermore,
the Private REIT participation in loans originated by us meets the characteristics of a participating interest in accordance with
GAAP and therefore, is treated as a sale of mortgage notes receivable and is derecognized from our consolidated financial
statements.

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

In the normal course of business, we encounter one primary type of economic risk in the form of credit risk. Credit risk
is the risk of default on our investment in mortgage notes receivable resulting from a borrower’s inability or unwillingness to
make contractually required payments. We believe that the carrying values of our loans reasonably consider this credit risk.

In addition, we are subject to significant tax risks. If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we would

be subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax, which could be material.

F-9




Table of Contents

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

We operate in a dynamic industry and, accordingly, can be affected by a variety of factors. For example, we believe that
changes in any of the following areas could have a significant negative effect on us in terms of our future financial position,
results of operations or cash flows: public health crises, like the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic; the economy in the
areas we operate; competition in our market; the stability of the real estate market and the impact of interest rate changes;
changes in government regulation affecting our business; natural disasters and catastrophic events; our ability to attract and retain
qualified employees and key personnel; and protection of customers’ information and other privacy concerns, among other
things.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The most significant estimates relate to the expected credit losses
on our loans and the fair value of financial instruments, such as investments in real property. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates. The COVID-19 pandemic has introduced significant additional uncertainty with respect to estimates,
judgments and assumptions, which may materially impact the estimates previously listed, among others.

Reportable Segments

We operate the business as one operating and reportable segment, which originates, underwrites and services
construction loans.

BALANCE SHEET MEASUREMENT
Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less at the date of purchase to be cash
equivalents. We have a cash management sweep account repurchase agreement whereby our bank nightly sweeps cash in excess
of $750,000, sells us specific U.S. Government Agency securities and then repurchases these securities the next day.

We maintain our cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions. At times, such amounts may exceed federally
insured limits. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the uninsured cash and cash equivalents balance was $222.4 million and
$236.7 million, respectively. There were no restrictions on cash as of December 31, 2020 or 2019.

Mortgage Notes Receivable

Mortgage notes receivable (referred to herein as “mortgage notes receivable”, “construction loans”, “loans”, or “notes’)
are classified as held for investment as we have the intent and ability to hold until maturity or payoff and are carried in the
consolidated balance sheets at amortized cost, net of construction holdbacks, interest reserves, allowance for credit losses and
deferred origination and amendment fees.
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Participations in mortgage notes receivables are accounted for as sales and derecognized from the balance sheet when
control over the transferred assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when: (1) a
group of financial assets or a participating interest in an entire financial asset has been isolated from the Company, (2) the
transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right, beyond a more than trivial
benefit) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. If the sales do not meet these criteria, the sale
of the participation is treated as a secured borrowing. As of December 31, 2020, all participations in mortgage notes receivable
sold to the Private REIT have achieved sale accounting. There were no participations as of December 31, 2019.

Deferred Income

Deferred income represents the amount of our origination and amendment fees that have been deferred and will be
recognized in income over the contractual maturity of the underlying loan. Origination fees are included in the total commitment
to the borrower and financed at the time of loan origination. Amendment fees are either included in the total commitment to the
borrower and financed at the time of the loan amendment or are billed to the borrower when the loan is amended and not
capitalized into the principal outstanding. Deferred origination and amendment fees capitalized into the principal outstanding are
included within mortgage notes receivable, net on the consolidated balance sheets. Deferred amendment fees that are not
capitalized into the principal outstanding are presented within interest and fees receivable, net on the consolidated balance
sheets.

Interest and Fees Receivable

Interest on performing loans is accrued and recognized as interest income at the contractual rate of interest, or at the
contractual rate of monthly minimum interest. Extension fees are charged when we agree to extend the maturity dates of loans. In
addition, late fees are changed when borrower payments are contractually past due. Extension and late fees represent an
outstanding fee receivable that is generally collected at loan pay off. We monitor each note’s outstanding interest and fee
receivables and, based on historical performance, generally reserve against the balance after a receivable is greater than 60 days
past due unless collectability of all amounts due is reasonably assured.

We have made an accounting policy election to exclude accrued interest and fee receivables from the amortized cost
basis of the related mortgage notes receivable in determining the CECL allowance as any uncollected accrued interest receivable
is written off in a timely manner.

Real property

Real property owned by us consists of real estate acquired in settlement of loans. Real estate acquired through
foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure is recorded at fair market value at the time of acquisition, which generally approximates
the carrying value of the loan secured by such property. Costs related to acquisition, development, construction and
improvements are capitalized to the extent the investment in the real property does not exceed the fair value less estimated costs
to sell. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, we owned three and two real properties, respectively.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of net assets acquired in connection with the
Business Combination in November 2019. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in October or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate potential impairment. In testing goodwill for impairment, we follow ASC 350, Intangibles—
Goodwill and Other, which permits a qualitative assessment of whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying value including goodwill. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount,
including goodwill, exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value.

Intangible Assets

As a result of the Business Combination in November 2019, we identified intangible assets in the form of customer
relationships. We recorded the intangible assets at fair value at the acquisition date and are amortizing the value of these finite
lived intangibles into expense over the expected useful life.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, which are included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation. Repairs and maintenance to these assets are charged to expense as incurred; major improvements
enhancing the function and/or useful life are capitalized. When items are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gains or losses arising from such transactions are recognized. Depreciation is
recorded on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets, which ranges from three to seven years.

Other Assets

Other assets primarily consist of prepaid insurance, right-of-use asset and other operating receivables. In connection
with the Business Combination, we entered into an arrangement to sublease an operating lease and have recorded a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability in the amount of $0.4 million, representing the present value of the remaining payments under the lease
discounted based on our incremental borrowing rate as of November 14, 2019. As of December 31, 2020, the remaining right-of-
use asset and a lease liability are not significant to the consolidated balance sheet. We will record a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability upon commencement of our new ten-year lease in 2021.

INCOME RECOGNITION
Interest Income

Interest income on mortgage notes receivable is accrued based on contractual rates applied to the principal balance
outstanding, unless there is a minimum interest provision in the mortgage note. Many construction loans provide for minimum

interest provisions, under which the contractual rate applies to, which are typically between 50% and 70% of the face amount of
the note until the actual outstanding principal exceeds the minimum threshold.
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Mortgage notes receivable can be placed in contractual default status for any of the following reasons: (1) an interest
payment is more than 30 days past due; (2) a note matures and the borrower fails to make payment of all amounts owed or extend
the loan; or (3) the collateral becomes impaired in such a way that the ultimate collection of the note is doubtful. The accrual of
interest income is suspended when a loan is in contractual default unless the interest is paid in cash or collectability of all
amounts due is reasonably assured. In addition, in certain instances, where the interest reserve on a current loan has been fully
depleted and the interest payment is not expected to be collected from the borrower, we may place a current loan on non-accrual
status and recognize interest income on a cash-basis. Interest previously accrued may be reversed at that time, and such reversal
is offset against interest income. The accrual of interest income resumes only when the suspended loan becomes contractually
current or a credit analysis supports the ability to collect in accordance with the terms of the loan.

Fee Income

We charge loan origination fees in conjunction with origination. Amendment fees are charged when loan terms are
modified, such as increases in interest reserves and construction holdbacks in line with our underwriting criteria or upon
modification of a loan for the transition from horizontal development to vertical construction. We defer and amortize loan
origination and amendment fees over the contractual terms of the loans. Extension fees are charged when we agree to extend the
maturity dates of loans and we charge fees on past due receivables. Extension and late fees are recognized when billed to the
borrower. The Predecessor Companies did not defer loan origination and amendment fees, rather, loan fee income at origination
or amendment due to the short-term nature of the loans, and the difference in accounting policy is not considered significant.

We charge inspection fees, which we use to hire independent inspectors to report on the status of construction projects.
These fees are earned and recognized upon each construction draw request.

Impairment of Loans — Current Expected Credit Losses

For the year ended December 31, 2020, we adopted the current expected credit loss (“CECL Standard”) on January 1,
2020. The CECL Standard replaced the incurred loss model under existing guidance with an expected loss model for instruments
measured at amortized cost. We now record an allowance for credit losses in accordance with the CECL Standard on our loan
portfolio on a collective basis by assets with similar risk characteristics. In addition, for assets that are classified as collateral
dependent based on foreclosure being probable, we continue to record loan specific allowances based on the fair value of the
collateral for expected credit losses under the CECL Standard. Given the short-term nature of our loans, we evaluate the most
recent external appraisal and depending on the age of the appraisal, may order a new appraisal or, where available, will evaluate
against existing comparable sales or other pertinent information to estimate the fair value of the collateral for such loans.

The CECL Standard requires an entity to consider historical loss experience, current conditions, and a reasonable and
supportable forecasts of the economic environment. The Company utilizes a probability of default/loss given default (“PD/LGD”)
method approach for estimating current expected credit losses.

In accordance with the PD/LGD method, an annual historical loss rate is applied to the amortized cost of an asset or
pool of assets over the remaining expected life. The PD/LGD method requires consideration of the timing of expected future
funding of existing commitments and repayments over each asset’s remaining life. An annual loss factor, adjusted for
macroeconomic estimates, is applied over each subsequent period and aggregated to arrive at the CECL allowance.
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In determining the CECL allowance, we considered various factors including (i) historical loss experience in our
portfolio (ii) historical loss experience in the commercial real estate lending market, (iii) timing of expected pay offs including
prepayments and extensions where reasonably expected, and (iv) our current and future view of the macroeconomic environment.
We utilize a reasonable and supportable forecast period equal to the contractual term of the loan plus short-term extensions of one
to three months that are reasonably expected for construction loans.

Management estimates the allowance for credit losses using relevant information, from internal and external sources,
relating to past events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The allowance for credit losses is maintained
at a level sufficient to provide for expected credit losses over the life of the loan based on evaluating historical credit loss
experience and making adjustments to historical loss information for differences in the specific risk characteristics in the current
loan portfolio. Refer to “Note 4 — Mortgage Notes Receivable” for further information regarding the CECL allowance.

We have made an accounting policy election to exclude accrued interest receivable, included in interest and fees
receivable, net on our consolidated balance sheets, from the amortized cost basis of the related mortgage notes receivable in
determining the CECL allowance as any uncollected accrued interest receivable is written off in a timely manner. No interest
income is recognized on mortgage notes receivable that are in contractual default unless the interest is paid in cash or
collectability of all amounts due is reasonably assured. In addition, in certain instances, where the interest reserve on a current
loan has been fully depleted and the interest payment is not expected to be collected from the borrower, we may place a current
loan on non-accrual status and recognize interest income on a cash-basis.

Impairment of Loans-Incurred Loss Model

For the periods ended December 31, 2019 and November 14, 2019, and the year ended December 31, 2018, we
evaluated loans designated as non-performing for impairment as we had some expectation that the repayment of loan, including
both contractual interest and principal payments, may not be realized in full. We designated loans as non-performing at such time
as (1) the borrower failed to make the required monthly interest-only loan payments; (2) the loan had a maturity default; or (3) in
the opinion of management, it was probable we would be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the loan.

The allowance for credit losses reflected our estimate of incurred loan losses in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet
date. The allowance increased or decreased by recording the loan loss provision or recovery in our consolidated statements of
income and decreased by charge-offs when losses were confirmed through the receipt of assets, such as in a pre-foreclosure sale
or upon ownership control of the underlying collateral in full satisfaction of the loan upon foreclosure or when significant
collection efforts had ceased. The allowance for credit losses was determined on an asset-specific basis.

The asset-specific allowance related to estimated losses on individual impaired loans. This assessment was based on
factors such as payment status, lien position, borrower financial resources and investment collateral, collateral type, project
economics and geographic location as well as national and regional economic factors.

For impaired loans, impairment was measured using the estimated fair value of collateral less the estimated cost to sell
in comparison to the carrying value. Valuations were performed or obtained at the time a loan was determined to be impaired and
designated as non-performing, and they are updated if circumstances indicate that a significant change in value has occurred.
Given the short-term nature of our loans, we evaluate the most recent external appraisal and depending on the age of the
appraisal, may order a new appraisal or, where available, will evaluate against existing comparable sales or other pertinent
information to estimate the fair value of the collateral for such loans. As of December 31, 2019, all of our allowance for loan
losses represented an asset-specific allowance.
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EXPENSE RECOGNITION
Share-Based Payments

We measure compensation expense for all share-based awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognize
compensation expense over the service period on a straight-line basis for awards expected to vest, which is generally three years
for employees and one year for directors. Share-based awards are issued under the Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. 2019 Stock
Incentive Plan.

Awards made to our employees and directors, typically consist of restricted stock units and fair value is based on the
grant date closing price of our common stock. All share based awards granted from December 31, 2020 have been awards with
periodic vesting and we recognize the related expense on a straight -line basis over the requisite service period for the entire
award, subject to periodic adjustments to ensure that the cumulative amount of expense recognized through the end of any
reporting period is at least equal to the portion of the grant date value of the award that has vested through that date. We account
for forfeitures prospectively as they occur. If there are any modifications or cancellations of the underlying unvested share-based
awards, we may be required to accelerate or increase any remaining unrecognized or previously recorded stock-based
compensation expense.

Profit Interests (Predecessor)

The Predecessor Management Companies’ profits interests were accounted for as share-based compensation. The
Predecessor Management Companies’ expensed the fair value of profits interests granted to its employees and directors over the
period each award vested. Compensation cost was measured using the Black-Scholes model. All unvested profits interests vested
at the time of the Business Combination.

Income Taxes (Successor)

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for U.S. federal income
tax purposes (the “Code”). As a REIT, we generally are not subject to U.S. federal income taxes on net income we distribute to
our shareholders. We intend to make timely distributions sufficient to satisfy the annual distribution requirements. If we fail to
qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate
tax rates. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income and property
and U.S. federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed income. Our TRSs are subject to U.S. federal income taxes.

Income Taxes (Predecessor)

The Predecessor Companies were taxed as partnerships and REITs under provisions of the Code. As such, the tax
attributes of the partnerships are included in the individual tax returns of its members for partnerships and not for the Predecessor
Company Group as the REIT entities met the qualifications to be taxed as REITs. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated
statement of income for the period ending November 14, 2019 includes no provision for income taxes for the Predecessor
Company Group.
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Earnings per Share

We follow the accounting guidance in ASC 260, Earnings Per Share, which requires the use of the two-class method of
computing earnings per share for all periods presented for each class of common stock and participating securities as if all
earnings for the period had been distributed. Under the two-class method, net income is first reduced for dividends declared on all
classes of securities to arrive at undistributed earnings. During periods of net losses, the net loss is reduced for dividends declared
on participating securities only if the security has the right to participate in the earnings of the company and an objectively
determinable contractual obligation to share in net losses of the company. The remaining earnings are allocated to common
stockholders and participating securities to the extent that each security shares in earnings as if all of the earnings for the period
had been distributed. Each total is then divided by the applicable weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period to arrive at basic earnings per share. For the diluted earnings, the denominator includes all outstanding shares of
common stock and all potential shares of common stock assumed issued if they are dilutive.

For purposes of the Predecessor period which includes the financial results of the Predecessor Company Group, we
determined that earnings per unit would not be meaningful to the users of this filing, given the different unitholders and
members’ equity structures of each individual entity in the Predecessor Company Group.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

As a former emerging growth company, the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (“JOBS Act”) permitted us an
extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards affecting public companies. Through the third
quarter of 2020, we elected to use this extended transition period and adopt certain new accounting standards on the private
company timeline, which meant that our financial statements may not have been comparable to the financial statements of public
companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards on a non-delayed basis. We ceased to qualify as an
emerging growth company effective December 31, 2020.

As discussed above under “Impairment of Loans-Current Expected Credit Losses”, we adopted the CECL Standard for
the year ended December 31, 2020. This adoption was required when we ceased to qualify as an emerging growth company as of
December 31, 2020, but the standard was then applicable for all of the year ended December 31, 2020. Accordingly, our
previously reported quarterly net income for 2020 was adjusted for changes to our provision for credit losses. The CECL
Standard required an initial effect of adoption to be recorded through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of
January 1, 2020. Subsequent changes to the CECL allowance are recognized as a provision for credit losses through net income
(loss).

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test
for Goodwill Impairment, which simplifies how an entity is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from
the goodwill impairment test. Step 2 measures a goodwill impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of a reporting
unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. Under the amendments in ASU 2017-04, an entity should recognize an
impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value; however, the loss
recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The updated guidance requires
prospective adoption. We adopted the standard on January 1, 2020 and there was no material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.
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In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820), which (1) adds incremental
requirements for entities to disclose (a) the amount of total gains or losses for the period recognized in other comprehensive
income that is attributable to fair value changes in assets and liabilities held as of the balance sheet date and categorized within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (b) the range and weighted average used to develop significant unobservable inputs and (c)
how the weighted average was calculated for fair value measurements categorized within Level of the fair value hierarchy and (2)
eliminates disclosure requirements for (a) transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and (b) valuation processes for Level 3 fair
value measurements. We adopted the standard on January 1, 2020 and there was no material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

Note 3 — Business Combination

As discussed in Note 1, the Company entered into a Merger Agreement with Trinity, the Trinity Parties, the Predecessor
Companies and the Predecessor Management Companies. The Business Combination was accounted for in accordance with ASC
805, Business Combinations. The Company determined that BRELF II was the accounting acquirer. As such, the Business
Combination culminated in two steps: the merger of the Trinity Parties with and into BRELF II as a recapitalization and
simultaneous capital issuance, and the acquisition of 100% of the remaining entities within the Predecessor Company Group by
BRELF II. In accordance with ASC 805, the merger of the Trinity Parties into BRELF II was accounted for as a recapitalization
and is reflected as the issuance of shares for cash. The acquisition of the remaining entities within the Predecessor Company
Group by BRELF II was accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC 805 using the acquisition method of
accounting. Cash proceeds from the recapitalization with Trinity Merger Sub I, Inc. were $327.1 million, partially offset by the
consent fee paid to holders of public warrants in the amount of $66.7 million, for net proceeds of $260.4 million. The cash
proceeds from the recapitalization with Trinity Merger Sub I, Inc. were used, in part, to pay cash consideration for the acquisition
of the Predecessor Company Group and transaction costs (as further described below), leaving approximately $146.9 million
remaining.

Separately, the cash and equity consideration transferred per the Merger Agreement was allocated between the legal
amounts issued for the recapitalization of BRELF II and the cash and equity issued for the acquisition of the Predecessor
Company Group. Given that the Merger Agreement was negotiated at arm’s length and based on the fair value of the entities, the
legal consideration best depicted the relative fair value of separating the acquisitions from the recapitalization. The amount of
common stock issued in the transaction that was attributable to the recapitalization of BRELF II was $495.5 million, along with
$12.7 million of transaction costs, which were recorded as operating expenses and were settled in cash of $11.3 million and
common stock of $1.4 million.

Total consideration allocated to the Business Combination under ASC 805 is $581.9 million, which was measured at its
acquisition date fair value, consisting of $102.2 million in cash and $479.6 million of the Company common stock. Such amounts
are inclusive of seller-transaction costs of $13.5 million, settled by the acquirer at closing in cash of $11.9 million and common
stock of $1.6 million.

The purchase price allocation of assets acquired, and liabilities assumed have been recorded at their preliminary fair

values as of the closing of November 14, 2019, the date of acquisition. The difference between the fair value of net assets
acquired, including the value of intangible assets acquired, and the consideration was recorded as goodwill.
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The fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed by BRELF II on November 14, 2019 are as follows:

Consideration paid: $ (in thousands)

Cash $ 102,245
Common stock 479,619
Total consideration paid $ 581,864

Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents 88,505
Investment in real property 8,413
Mortgage notes receivable 344,837
Interest and fees receivable 2,743
Intangible assets 1,000
Other assets 174
Total Assets 445,672

Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable and accrued liability 205
Other liabilities 568
Total Liabilities 773
Net assets acquired 444,899
Goodwill $ 136,965

In the first quarter of 2020, based on additional information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of
November 14, 2019, we recorded a measurement period adjustment to reduce the fair value of intangible assets in the form of
customer relationships from $6.0 to $1.0 million. This adjustment increased the preliminary amount of goodwill previously
recorded by $5.0 million.

The purchase price for the acquisition was determined based on our expectations of future earnings and cash flows,
resulting in the recognition of goodwill. Goodwill predominantly relates to the value of the assembled workforce and intangible
assets that do not qualify for separate recognition at the time of the acquisition. Purchased goodwill is deductible for income tax
purposes over 15 years.

The fair value of the customer relationships was determined using the replacement cost approach. The cost provides a
systematic framework for estimating the value of the intangible asset based on the economic principle of substitution. Under this
approach, value is estimated by developing the cost to either replace or reproduce (replicate) the asset as if new. The preliminary
useful lives for customer relationships were determined based upon the remaining useful economic lives of the assets that are
expected to contribute to future cash flows and approximates between two to five years. Amortization expense is recorded on a
straight-line method, refer to Note 6 for further information on the estimated useful lives and amortization related to the acquired
intangible assets.
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As described above, the Company incurred a total of $26.2 million of transaction-related costs for both the Business
Combination and the recapitalization of BRELF II, of which $25.8 million was incurred and expensed in the Predecessor period
and $0.4 million was incurred and expensed in the Successor period. Transaction-related expenses are comprised primarily of
transaction fees, including legal, finance, consulting, professional fees and other third-party costs. These amounts were recorded
as operating expenses in the consolidated statements of income in the periods incurred. At the closing of the transaction in the
Successor period, the acquirer directly paid (or repaid to the sellers) the amounts owed for such expenses, settling them in a
combination of cash and equity. From the perspective of the Successor entity, the settlement of these amounts by the acquirer at
closing were allocated between purchase price for the business combination and recapitalization of BRELF II, using a
methodology consistent with the allocation of the overall consideration transferred.

Included within the transaction-related expenses referred to above, is a termination fee of $10.0 million related to the
termination of certain referral agreements the Predecessor Management Companies had in place with a related entity, which
settled in $7.0 million of cash and $3.0 million of the Company common stock at closing.

Supplemental pro forma financial information

When giving effect to the Business Combination as if it closed on January 1, 2019, there are no material differences
between historical revenue and earnings of the Company and results on a pro forma basis, except for the timing of transaction
costs and amortization expense related to intangible assets, which would have been incurred as of an earlier date.

Note 4 - Mortgage notes receivable

The stated principal amount of mortgage notes receivable in our portfolio represents our interest in loans secured by first
deeds of trust, security agreements or legal title to real estate located in the United States. Our lending standards require that all
mortgage notes receivable be secured by a first deed of trust lien on real estate and that the maximum loan to value ratio (“LTV”)
be no greater than 65%. The LTV is calculated on an “as-complete” appraised value of the underlying collateral as determined by
an independent appraiser at the time of the loan origination. The lending standards also limit the initial outstanding principal
balance of the loan to a maximum LTV of up to 65% of the “as-is” appraised value of the underlying collateral as determined by
an independent appraiser at the time of the loan origination. Unless otherwise indicated, LTV is measured by the total
commitment amount of the loan divided by the “as-complete” appraisal. LTVs do not reflect interim loan activity such as
construction draws or interest payments capitalized to loans, or partial repayments of the loan. The maximum amount of a single
loan may not exceed 10% of our total assets and the maximum amount to a single borrower may not exceed 15% of our total
assets. We consider the maximum LTV as an indicator for the credit quality of a mortgage note receivable.

Mortgage notes receivable are considered to be short-term financings, with initial terms typically ranging from five to
18 months in duration based on the size of the project and expected timeline for completion of construction, which we often elect
to extend for several months based on our evaluation of the project. All loans require monthly interest only payments and interest
rates generally range from a fixed annual rate of 10% to 13%. Most loans are structured with an interest reserve holdback that
covers the interest payments for most of the initial term of the loan. Once the interest reserve is depleted, borrowers are expected
to pay their monthly interest payment within 10 days of month end.
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Mortgage notes receivable are presented net of construction holdbacks, interest reserves, allowance for credit losses and
deferred origination and amendment fee income in the consolidated balance sheets. The construction holdback represents
amounts withheld from the funding of construction loans until we deem construction to be sufficiently completed. The interest
reserve represents amounts withheld from the funding of certain mortgage notes receivable for the purpose of satisfying monthly
interest payments over all or part of the term of the related note. Accrued interest is paid out of the interest reserve and
recognized as interest income at the end of each month. The deferred origination and amendment fee income represents amounts
that will be recognized over the contractual life of the underlying mortgage notes receivable.

The following table reconciles outstanding mortgage loan commitments to outstanding balance of mortgage notes
receivable as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Total loan commitments $ 1,245,963 $ 1,101,275
Less:

Construction holdbacks (1) 356,026 253,708
Interest reserves (1) 29,817 18,601
Private REIT participation () 37,729 _
Total principal outstanding for our mortgage notes receivable 822,391 828,966
Less:

Allowance for credit losses 10,590 4,096
Deferred origination and amendment fees 13,315 3,281
Mortgage notes receivable, net $ 798,486 $ 821,589

(1) Includes construction holdbacks of $40.4 million and interest reserves of $4.3 million on participating interests sold to the
Private REIT as of December 31, 2020.

(2) The Private REIT’s participations in loans originated by us meet the characteristics of participating interests and, therefore,
are treated as sales of mortgage notes receivable and are derecognized from our consolidated financial statements.

Non-accrual status

As of December 31, 2020, the principal outstanding on loans placed on non-accrual status was $126.8 million and all
these loans had an allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2020. As of December 31, 2019, the principal outstanding on
loans placed on non-accrual status was $32.9 million and these loans were evaluated for impairment based on the incurred loss
model. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the principal outstanding on loans placed on non-accrual status and the average
recorded investments in loans placed on non-accrual status was $16.9 million.

Current Expected Credit Losses

In assessing the CECL allowance, we consider historical loss experience, current conditions, and a reasonable and
supportable forecast of the macroeconomic environment. We derived an annual historical loss rate based on the Company’s
historical loss experience in our portfolio and historical loss experience in the commercial real estate industry provided by a third
party adjusted to reflect our expectations of the macroeconomic environment based on forecast data per the Federal Reserve.

At adoption on January 1, 2020, the CECL allowance was $6.1 million, an increase of $2.0 million to the allowance for

credit losses as of December 31, 2019. Accordingly, a cumulative-effect adjustment of $2.0 million was recorded to accumulated
deficit in our consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity.
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The CECL allowance increased from initial adoption on January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020. The increase is
driven by a change in our view of estimated future macroeconomic conditions in the backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic and

an increase in the remaining expected term of certain loans in our portfolio in contractual default status as of December 31, 2020.

The following table summarizes the activity in the CECL Allowance from adoption on January 1, 2020 to December 31,

2020:

(dollars in thousands) CECL Allowance®

Loan loss reserve as of December 31, 2019 $ 4,096

Adoption of ASU 2016-13, see Note 2 1,975

Charge-offs(2) (2,203)
Increase in CECL reserve 6,722

CECL reserve as of December 31, 2020 $ 10,590

(1) As of December 31, 2019, amount represents specific loan loss provisions recorded on individual loans before the adoption
of the CECL Standard.

(2) Represents expected credit losses previously reserved for and confirmed upon loan repayment or upon foreclosure and
transfer to real property owned where the amount of proceeds or fair value of the underlying collateral received is less than
the principal outstanding.

In determining our CECL allowance, we segment loans with similar characteristics. All of our loans are construction
loans secured by residential or commercial real estate and, in assessing estimated credit losses, we evaluate various metrics,
including, but not limited to, construction type, collateral type, LTV, market conditions of property location and borrower
experience and financial strength.

The following tables allocate the carrying value of our loan portfolio based on our internal credit quality indicators in
assessing estimated credit losses and vintage of origination at the dates indicated:

At December 31, 2020 Year Originated (D
(dollars in thousands) Carrying Value % of Portfolio 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior
Construction Type
Vertical Construction $ 514,136 63.5 % $ 354012 $ 57090 $ 6,853 $ 88,655 $ 7,526 $ —
Horizontal Development 153,345 19.0 129,607 15,028 283 — 8,427 —
Investment 141,595 17.5 98,146 18,657 7,259 16,444 — 1,089
Total $ 809,076 100.0 % $ 581,765 $ 90,775 $ 14,395 §$ 105,099 $ 15953 § 1,089
CECL allowance (10,590)
Carrying value, net $ 798,486

(1) Represents the year of origination or amendment where the loan incurred a full re-underwriting.

F-21




Table of Contents

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

At December 31, 2020 Year Originated (U
(dollars in thousands) Carrying Value % of Portfolio 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior
Collateral Type
Apartments $ 129,588 160% $ 79,931 $ 18953 § — $ 24232 § 6472 $ —
Residential Lots 124,548 15.4 105,830 10,291 — — 8,427 —
Condos 92,245 11.4 52,714 3,106 4,405 32,020 — —
Single family housing 90,131 11.1 69,438 8,839 1,028 10,103 — 723
Land 72,913 9.0 48,844 — 7,259 16,444 — 366
Townhomes 72,773 9.0 47,391 1,061 1,703 21,564 1,054 —
Mixed Use 66,092 8.2 60,232 5,860 — — — —
Hotel 51,115 6.3 42,874 8,241 — — — —
Senior Housing 34,283 42 34,283 — — — — —
Offices 29,540 37 8,495 21,045 — — _ —
Commercial Lots 15,683 1.9 15,683 — — — — —
Retail 11,397 1.4 9,500 1,897 — — — —
Industrial 11,309 1.4 704 10,605 — — — —
Quadplex 5,592 0.7 5,592 — — — — —
Commercial 877 0.1 — 877 — — — —
Duplex 736 0.1 — — — 736 — —
Commercial other 254 0.1 254 — — — — —
Total $ 809,076 100.0 % $ 581,765 $ 90,775 $ 14,395 $ 105,099 §$ 15953 § 1,089
CECL allowance (10,590)
Carrying value, net $ 798,486
(1) Represents the year of origination or amendment where the loan incurred a full re-underwriting.

At December 31, 2020 Year Originated ()
(dollars in thousands) Carrying Value % of Portfolio 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior
LTV ®
0-40% $ 22,601 28% $ 18,112 § — § 3862 § 261 § — 3 366
41 - 45% 68,263 8.4 44,683 20,183 3,397 — — —
46 - 50% 23,864 2.9 15,917 7,224 — — — 723
51-55% 76,539 9.5 57,583 2,774 — 16,182 — —
56 - 60% 135,170 16.7 117,309 3,106 — 9,639 5,116 —
61 -65% 450,253 55.7 301,964 57,488 7,136 76,139 7,526 —
66 - 70% 9,416 1.2 9,416 — — — — —
71 -75% 1,983 0.2 1,983 — — — — —
76 - 80% 14,544 1.8 14,544 — — — — —
Above 80% 6,443 0.8 254 — — 2,878 3,311 —
Total $ 809,076 100.0 % $ 581,765 $ 90,775 $ 14,395 § 105,099 $ 15953 § 1,089
CECL allowance (10,590)
Carrying value, net $ 798486

(1) Represents the year of origination or amendment where the loan incurred a full re-underwriting.

(2) Represents LTV as of origination or latest amendment. LTVs above 65% generally represent loans in contractual default
status where we have agreed to extend funds to the borrower above 65% in order to ensure successful completion of the
construction and return of capital.
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Impaired mortgage notes receivable

Prior to the adoption of the CECL Standard, for the periods ended December 31, 2019 and November 14, 2019, and the
year ended December 31, 2018, we evaluated each loan for impairment based on the incurred loss model. Loans in contractual
default were designated as non-performing and were considered impaired as we had some expectation that the repayment of the
loan, including both contractual interest and principal payments, may not be realized in full. Placing a loan in contractual default
did not in and of itself result in an impairment if we deemed it probable that we would ultimately collect all amounts due. If a
loan was determined to have impairment, we recorded an allowance through the provision for loan losses to reduce the carrying
value of the loan to the fair value of the collateral less estimated costs to sell, as all of our loans were classified as collateral
dependent as repayment was expected solely from the collateral.

As of December 31, 2019, the principal outstanding on impaired loans and loans with impairment was $32.9 and $18.7
million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the average recorded investment in loans with impairment was
$16.1 million.

All of the allowance for loan losses relates to loans deemed to be impaired. The following table summarizes the activity
in the allowance for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Successor Predecessor Predecessor
Period from November 15,2019 Period from January 1, 2019 Year Ended
(dollars in thousands) through December 31, 2019 1) through November 14,2019 December 31, 2018
Beginning $ 4,096 $ 1,704 $ —
Provision for loan losses — 3,342 1,783
Charge offs — (452) (340)
Recoveries — 261
Ending $ 4,096 $ 4,594 $ 1,704

(1) The beginning balance on November 15, 2019 (Successor) represents the allowance of the acquirer, BRELF II.
Note 5 — Fair value measurements

The following tables present estimated fair values of our financial instruments as of the period indicated, whether or not
recognized or recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at the period indicated:

December 31, 2020 Fair Value Measurements Using

Carrying Estimated
(dollars in thousands) Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 223375 $ 223375 $ 223375 $ — 3 —
Mortgage notes receivable, net 798,486 798,486 — 798,486
Interest and fees receivable, net 14,357 14,357 — 14,357 —
Investment in real property, net 8,473 8,473 — — 8,473
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4946 $ 4,946 $ $ 4,946 $ =
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December 31, 2019 Fair Value Measurements Using

Carrying Estimated
(dollars in thousands) Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 238214 $ 238214 $ 238214 $ — 3 —
Mortgage notes receivable, net 821,589 821,589 — — 821,589
Interest and fees receivable 4,108 4,108 — 4,108 —
Investment in real property, net 5,837 5,837 — — 5,837
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1) $ 8415 $ 8415 $ — 2,923 § 5,492

(1) Includes the level 3 valuation of the optional subscription liability derivative measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

We follow the accounting guidance in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which requires the

categorization of fair value measurement into three broad levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active

markets.

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the

financial instrument.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The following table sets forth assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring
basis, as well as for which fair value is only disclosed, as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. All of these fair values are categorized
as Level 3. The table also contains information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets that are measured at fair

value and categorized within Level 3 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Level 3 Valuation Unobservable Range of

(dollars in thousands) December 31,2020 December 31, 2019 technique inputs inputs
Optional subscription liability()  § — 5,492 Valuation model  Refer to Note 7 for assumptions 0-5%
Real property® 8,473 5,837 Collateral valuations Discount to appraised value based on 0-1009,

comparable market prices
Collateral dependent loans, net of 30,920 — Collateral valuations Discount to appraised value based on 0-109,
allowance for credit losses®) comparable market prices
Impaired loans, net of allowance — 28,853 Collateral valuations Discount to appraised value based on 0-109,
for loan losses(®) comparable market prices
Total $ 39,393 § 40,182

(1) Optional subscription liability derivative measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Expired in November 2020.
(2) Real property is stated at lower of cost or fair value, a non-recurring measurement of fair value.

(3) Post CECL adoption on January 1, 2020, loans meeting the revised definition of collateral dependent are measured at the fair value less
the costs to sell the underlying property. The carrying value of the collateral dependent loans, net of the allowance for credit losses,

approximates fair value.

(4) Prior to CECL adoption, for impaired loans, the fair value is based on the fair value less the costs to sell the underlying property. The

carrying value of the impaired loans, net of the allowance for loan losses, approximates fair value.
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Fair value on a recurring basis

In connection with the Mergers, we issued $75 million of common stock, along with 7.2 million warrants and an
optional subscription of up to $25 million of additional common stock (the “Optional Subscription Liability”) in a private
placement transaction with certain entities affiliated with Farallon Capital Management, LLC (the “Farallon Entities”), which
transaction is described in further detail in Note 11. The optional subscription expired unexercised on November 14, 2020. We
accounted for the Optional Subscription Liability as a derivative and, accordingly, we measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
The value of this Optional Subscription Liability was included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2019. The $5.5 million decrease in the liability for the year ended December 31,
2020 was recorded as other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of income. The Optional Subscription Liability
was valued using a lattice model that primarily incorporated observable inputs such as our common stock price, exercise price
term of the option and the risk-free rate, however, it also incorporated an assumption for equity volatility based on the volatility
of the common stock of comparable public companies. As the result of using unobservable inputs in the valuation, we classified
the Optional Subscription Liability as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value on a nonrecurring basis

Investments in real properties are initially recorded at the acquisition cost less estimated costs to sell, which
approximates fair value. Upon transfer from mortgage notes receivable to investment in real estate property, the fair value less
costs to sell becomes the new cost for the property. Costs related to acquisition, development, construction and improvements are
capitalized. At each reporting date, the fair value of real properties is based upon the most recent independent third-party
appraisals of value discounted based upon our experience with actual liquidation values. These discounts to the appraisals
generally range from 0% to 10%. As the result of using unobservable inputs in the valuation, we classify investments in real
properties as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

For collateral dependent and impaired loans, fair values are based on the value of the underlying collateral less the costs
to sell. At each reporting date, these loans are evaluated based upon the most recent independent third-party appraisals of value
discounted based upon our experience with actual liquidation values. These discounts to the appraisals generally range from 0%
to 10%. As the result of using unobservable inputs in the valuation, we classify collateral dependent and impaired loans as Level
3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value disclosure only

For certain of our financial instruments, including cash equivalents, interest and fees receivable, other receivables,
accounts payable, and accrued liabilities, which are classified under Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to their short-term maturities.

The mortgage notes receivable are secured by first deeds of trust, security agreements or legal title to real estate located
in the United States. The mortgage notes receivable generally have initial terms ranging between five and 18 months based on the
size of the project and expected timeline for completion of construction and may be extended by paying additional fees. Upon
adoption of the CECL Standard on January 1, 2020, all loans are pooled and evaluated for expected credit losses and mortgage
notes receivable are presented net of an allowance for credit losses. Due to the short-term maturity of the mortgage notes
receivable, a premium or discount is not material and the carrying value approximates fair value. Prior to the adoption of the
CECL Standard, mortgage notes receivable other than loans in contractual default where the estimated fair value of collateral was
less than amortized cost, did not have an allowance and we believed carrying value approximated fair value. We believe that our
mortgage notes receivable net of the CECL allowance continues to approximate fair value of the portfolio. As a result of the use
of unobservable inputs, including third-party appraisals for estimating as-complete appraised values, we classify mortgage notes
receivable as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
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Note 6 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

All of our goodwill relates to the Business Combination. As discussed in Note 3, in the first quarter of 2020, we
recorded a measurement period adjustment to reduce the preliminary fair value of intangible assets in the form of customer
relationships by $5.0 million and increased our preliminary value of goodwill by $5.0 million resulting in $137.0 million of
goodwill as of September 30, 2020. As a result of this adjustment to preliminary values, $0.9 million of amortization of
intangible assets recorded in 2019 was reversed in the first quarter of 2020.

We continuously evaluate the presence of triggering events that require an impairment test. An impairment loss is
recognized to the extent that the carrying amount, including goodwill, exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value. In the first quarter
0f 2020, we determined that COVID-19 was a triggering event based on the adverse impact on our business and results of
operations. Specifically, we noted that COVID-19 and containment measures have contributed to, among other things, adverse
impacts on the progress of construction on our borrowers’ projects, the demand for and value of commercial and residential real
estate that our borrowers have developed, the creditworthiness of our borrowers and other counterparties, the capital and credit
market conditions and potential delays in foreclosure proceedings. We performed a quantitative assessment of our goodwill based
on both the market and income approach and determined that, as of March 31, 2020, the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded
the carrying value and there was no goodwill impairment. During the second and third quarters of 2020, we continued to monitor
the impact of COVID-19 and determined there were no new triggering events to warrant updating our quantitative assessment of
goodwill performed as of March 31, 2020. We continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19 and reevaluated the fair value of the
reporting unit during our annual assessment in October 2020 and the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded the carrying value
and there was no goodwill impairment.

Intangible Assets

All of our intangible assets relate to the Business Combination, specifically the value of customer relationships. The
following table summarizes the balances of intangible assets as of December 31, 2020:

Acquired
(dollars in thousands) Intangibles
Asset Type
Customer relationships $ 1,000
Less: Accumulated amortization 379
Intangible assets, net $ 621

The weighted average life remaining of the intangible assets is approximately 1.8 years. Amortization expense for the
next three years, based on preliminary valuations and determinations of useful lives, is expected to be as follows:

Year ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2021 2022

Estimated future intangible amortization expense $ 339 $ 282
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Note 7 - Stockholders’ Equity and Members’ Equity
Stockholders’ Equity

The Company is authorized to issue 500,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.001 per share and
100,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.001 per share. Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote
for each share. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were 132,532,383 and 132,015,635 shares of common stock issued and
outstanding, respectively, and no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were 41.7 million public warrants outstanding to acquire one-fourth of a share
of common stock at a price of $2.875 (the “Public Warrants™), and 5.2 million warrants outstanding to acquire one share of our
common stock at a price of $11.50 per share (the “Private Warrants”). In the aggregate, we have outstanding warrants to purchase
approximately 15.6 million shares of common stock at a price of $11.50 per whole share.

As part of the PIPE Investment (for further details, refer to Note 11), the Farallon Entities had an option (the “Optional
Subscription™) to purchase up to $25 million of additional shares of common stock, which were exercisable during the 365-day
period following the consummation of the Business Combination at $10.45352229 (the “Reference Price”). The Optional
Subscription expired unexercised on November 14, 2020. The Farallon Entities were entitled to cash settle, in whole or in part,
the exercise of the Optional Subscription, and therefore, the Optional Subscription did not meet the requirements for equity
classification and was assumed to be settled in cash and classified as a liability in our consolidated balance sheet. The liability
was $0 and $5.5 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and was included in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

The fair value of the Optional Subscription Liability was estimated using a lattice model using the assumptions noted
below in the following table. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of a peer group of public companies. The
risk-free interest rate is based on the US Treasury Constant Maturity curve, commensurate with the time to expiry of warrants.

As of December 31, 2020 As of December 31, 2019
Expected volatility N/A 13.0 %
Expected dividend yield N/A 73 %
Expected life (in years) N/A 0.9
Risk-free interest rate N/A 1.6 %
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Earnings per Share

We present both basic and diluted earnings per common share (“EPS”) amounts in our consolidated financial
statements. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-
average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the maximum potential dilution that
could occur from our outstanding warrants and restricted stock units. We considered the treasury stock method to measure
dilution to earnings per share in calculating the net number of shares that would be issued assuming any related proceeds are used
to buy back outstanding shares. As of December 31, 2020, the two-class method was no longer applicable as we no longer have
any instruments that are dilutive since the Optional Subscription expired unexercised on November 14, 2020. In accordance with
GAAP, our policy is to apply the more dilutive methodology upon issuance of such instruments. The table below presents the
computation of basic and diluted net income per share of common stock for the following periods:

Successor Successor

Year Ended Period from November 15, 2019

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share data): December 31, 2020 through December 31, 2019
Net income $ 90,231 $ 5,313
Basic weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 132,209,495 132,111,329
Dilutive effect of share-based compensation 51,618 388,057
Diluted weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding (1) 132,261,113 132,499,386
Basic earnings per share $ 0.68 § 0.04
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.68 $ 0.04

(1) We exclude anti-dilutive shares from calculation of weighted-average shares for diluted earnings per share. There were 15.6
million shares related to the Public Warrants and Private Warrants for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the period
from November 15 through December 31, 2019, unvested restricted stock unit awards of 315,260 shares for the year ended
December 31, 2020, and 2.4 million shares related to the Optional Subscription which had a cash settlement feature at the
option of the holder for the period from November 15 through December 31, 2019, which are not included in the above
calculation of diluted earnings per share because in doing so they would be anti-dilutive.

Members’ Equity (Predecessor)

Members’ Equity is presented on a consolidated basis for the Predecessor Company Group, which includes the
consolidated preferred units for the Predecessor Companies and the total consolidated Class A and Class P units for the
Predecessor Management Companies. The applicable Predecessor Management Company was the sole common unit holder of
the Predecessor Company it managed, and, therefore all common units have been eliminated in the preparation of the
consolidated Predecessor Company Group financial statements, as they represent intra-entity balances between entities within the
consolidated Predecessor Company Group.

Earnings Per Unit (Predecessor)

We determined that earnings per unit would not be meaningful to the users of these financial statements for the
Predecessor period.
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Note 8 - Income Taxes

For the Successor period, the Manager has elected to be treated as a TRS and this election applies to the wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Manager, including the Private REIT Manager. Having TRSs permit us to participate in certain activities from
which REITs are generally precluded, as long as these activities meet specific criteria, are conducted within the parameters of
certain limitations established by the Code and are conducted in entities which elect to be treated as taxable subsidiaries under the
Code. To the extent these criteria are met, we will continue to maintain the qualification as a REIT.

We generally must distribute annually at least 90% of our net taxable income, subject to certain adjustments and
excluding any net capital gain, in order for U.S. federal income tax not to apply to our earnings that we distribute. To the extent
that we satisfy this distribution requirement but distribute less than 100% of our net taxable income, we will be subject to U.S.
federal income tax on our undistributed taxable income. In addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise tax if the
actual amount that we pay out to our stockholders in a calendar year is less than a minimum amount specified under U.S. federal
tax laws.

Our qualification as a REIT also depends on our ability to meet various other requirements imposed by the Code, which
relate to organizational structure, diversity of stock ownership, and certain restrictions with regard to the nature of assets and the
sources of income. Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may be subject to certain U.S. federal income and excise taxes and state and
local taxes on our income and assets. If we fail to maintain our qualification as a REIT for any taxable year, we may be subject to
material penalties as well as U.S. federal, state, and local income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and we
would not be able to qualify as a REIT for the subsequent four full taxable years. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, we were in
compliance with all REIT requirements.

Based on our evaluation, we concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in our
consolidated financial statements of a contingent tax liability for uncertain tax positions. Additionally, there were no amounts
accrued for penalties or interest as of or during the periods presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which we are subject to tax-filing obligations recognize our status as a REIT,
and therefore, we generally do not pay income tax in such jurisdictions. We may, however, be subject to certain minimum state
and local tax filing fees as well as certain excise or business taxes. Our TRSs are subject to U.S. federal, state and local income
taxes.

Note 9 - Equity Incentive Plan
Stock Incentive Plan (Successor)

On November 14, 2019, we established the Broadmark Realty 2019 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan’), which allows for
the issuance of up to 5,000,000 stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units or other
equity-based awards or any combination thereof to the directors, employees, consultants or any other party providing services to
us. The Plan is administered by the compensation committee of the Company’s board of directors.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 4,049,134 and 4,569,378 share awards, respectively, were available to be issued

under the Plan. The restricted stock units (“RSUs”) granted under the Plan generally vest from one to three years depending on
the terms of the specific award.
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All RSUs awarded will be settled upon vesting in shares of our common stock. If (1) the recipient becomes disabled and
the recipient’s employment or service is terminated as a result, (2) the recipient dies during the vesting period, or (3) the
recipient’s employment is terminated without cause (as defined in the Plan) in connection with, or in certain cases within a
specified period following a change in control (as defined in the Plan), then the vesting of the RSUs will fully accelerate as of the
date of termination of employment.

Dividend equivalents are not accrued or paid on RSUs granted to employees, executive officers and directors and
accordingly those RSUs are not considered participating securities.

If an award granted under the Plan expires or terminates, the shares subject to any portion of the award that expires or
terminates without having been exercised or paid will again become available for the issuance of additional awards.

The following table summarizes the activity related to RSUs during 2020:

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Shares Market Value
Unvested RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2019 (Successor) 334,928
Granted 520,244 10.91
Vested (421,029) $ 11.28
Unvested RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2020 (Successor) 434,143

For the year ended December 31, 2020, we recognized compensation related to RSUs of $4.9 million based on
amortizing the fair value of the awards over the service (vesting) period. As of December 31, 2020, there was $4.1 million of net
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock-based compensation arrangements. This compensation cost is
recognized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average period of 1.9 years.

Profits Interests and Equity Compensation (Predecessor)

The Predecessor Company Group expensed the fair value of share-based compensation awards granted to employees
and directors over the period each award vests. Compensation cost was measured using the Black-Scholes model. The
Predecessor Company Group expensed the fair value of restricted unit awards granted to employees over the period each award
vested. There were 150 units granted during the period from January 1, 2019 through November 14, 2019 at $11,717 per unit,
which were to vest ratably over 48 months. The fair value of restricted unit awards was equal to the fair value of the Predecessor
Company’s units at the date of grant. The units were valued using an internal model with market inputs available on the date of
grant. The restricted units were settled as part of the Business Combination.

Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies

The following table illustrates our contractual obligations and commercial commitments by due date as of December 31,

2020:

Less than 1 More than
(dollars in thousands) Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Construction holdbacks (1) 356,026 229,431 126,595 — —
Operating lease obligations $ 11,848  § 647 $ 1,893  § 2,008 $ 7,300
Total $ 367,874 $ 230,078 $ 128,488 $ 2,008 $ 7,300

(1) Includes construction holdbacks of $40.4 million on participating interests sold to the Private REIT as of December 31,
2020.
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Our commitments and contingencies include usual obligations incurred by real estate lending companies in the normal
course of business, including construction holdbacks as disclosed in Note 4.

In addition, on March 18, 2020, we signed a new ten-year lease agreement for our Seattle headquarters, which was
expected to commence in the first quarter of 2021 upon completion of tenant improvements and is included in the above table.
Progress on the tenant improvements was impacted by COVID-19 and the lease commencement was in February 2021.

From time to time, we are named as a defendant in legal actions relating to transactions conducted in the ordinary course
of business. Although there can be no assurance of the outcome of such legal actions, in the opinion of management, we do not
have a potential liability related to any current legal proceeding or claim that would individually or in the aggregate materially
affect our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Concentration Risk

Our portfolio of active loans is mainly secured by first deed of trust liens on residential and commercial real estate
located in 12 states and the District of Columbia. Our loan portfolio is also concentrated within ten counties, the largest being Salt
Lake, Utah. As of December 31, 2020, the top ten counties make up 43.2% of the total committed amount of loans in our total
portfolio.

Note 11 - Related party transactions
Private Placement with Farallon

In connection with the Business Combination and concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, the
Company entered into certain subscription agreements with the Farallon Entities for a private placement (the “PIPE Investment”)
of the Company’s shares of common stock, pursuant to which, immediately prior to the consummation of the Business
Combination, the Company issued and sold to the Farallon Entities an aggregate of 7,174,163 shares of common stock for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $75.0 million at a price per share equal to the Reference Price. In addition, pursuant to
the subscription agreements, the Farallon Entities had an option to purchase up to $25.0 million of additional shares of common
stock, exercisable at the Reference Price. This option expired on November 14, 2020. In connection with the PIPE Investment,
the Company issued to the Farallon Entities an aggregate of 7,174,163 Public Warrants. The Farallon Entities received a fee for
each warrant equal to the cash payable per each warrant held by unaffiliated Public Warrant holders in connection with the
warrant amendment proposal approved as part of the Business Combination, in an amount equal to $1.60 per warrant. In addition,
the Farallon Entities were entitled to cash settle, in whole or in part, the exercise of their option to purchase up to $25.0 million of
additional shares of common stock to the extent the delivery of the additional shares to the Farallon Entities would result,
together with their affiliates and any other persons whose beneficial ownership of shares of common stock would be aggregated
with the Farallon Entities or their affiliates for purpose of Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), in beneficial ownership in excess of 9.9% of the shares of common stock outstanding immediately after giving
effect to such issuance of the shares of common stock. As a result of the PIPE Investment, the Farallon Entities own more than
5% of our outstanding common stock.

The Company also provided the Farallon Entities with certain registration rights in connection with the PIPE

Investment, pursuant to which we registered in December 2019 the shares of our common stock, Public Warrants and shares
issuable upon exercise of the option and Public Warrants under the Securities Act.
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Under Financial Advisory/Investment Banking Agreements between Tranceka Capital and certain of the Predecessor
Management Companies, Tranceka Capital provided services to the applicable Predecessor Management Company related to
raising capital for the applicable Predecessor Company. Under these agreements, Tranceka Capital was paid a commission from
the Company of 1% in the month capital was raised, and after 12 months also received a “tail” commission of 0.5% per year,
payable in quarterly installments. These agreements terminated on November 14, 2019. These commissions totaled $5.7 million
for January 1, 2019 through November 14, 2019 and $4.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Broadmark Private REIT, LLC

The Private REIT is a private real estate finance company that primarily participates in short-term, first deed of trust
loans secured by real estate that are originated, underwritten and serviced by Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. The Private REIT is
managed by our subsidiary in accordance with a market-based arrangement and was determined to be a voting interest entity. We
do not directly or indirectly control the Private REIT and own only a nominal interest in the Private REIT’s common units and,
therefore, we do not consolidate the Private REIT. Furthermore, the Private REIT’s participations in loans originated by us meet
the characteristics of participating interests and therefore, are treated as sales of mortgage notes receivable and are derecognized
from our consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2020, the Private REIT’s participation in the total principal
balance funded and outstanding was approximately $37.7 million.

Note 12 - Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following tables summarize selected three months ended financial data for periods presented:

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
(dollars and shares in thousands except per share
amounts) Successor
2020:
Revenue $ 32,537 $ 28,983 § 29,070 $ 31,768
Net income(D) 22,414 25,504 15,844 26,469
Earnings per common share data:
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.19 § 0.12 § 0.20
Weighted average number of common
shares:
Basic 132,537 132,282 132,165 132,111
Diluted 132,668 132,317 132,165 132,336

(1) Net income for the quarters ended September 30, June 30, and March 31, 2020 includes additional provision for (reversals
of) credit losses of $(2.3), $3.9 and $0.8 million, respectively, associated with the adoption of the CECL Standard. Refer to
Note 2 for further discussion.
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The combined statements of income prior to November 14, 2019 represented the activity of the Predecessor Company.
We determined that earnings per unit would not be meaningful to the users of this filing, given the different unit holders and
members’ equity structures of each individual entity in the Predecessor Company Group.

Period from Period from
November 15 to October 1 to Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

December 31, November 14, September 30, June 30, March 31,
(dollars and shares in thousands except
per share amounts) Successor Predecessor
2019:
Revenue $ 15,974 $ 14,073 $ 34,581 $ 36,573 § 29,783
Net income 5,313 (12,125) 25,856 31,202 24,990

Earnings per common share data:

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted $ 0.04 $ — 3 — 8 — —
Weighted average number of

common shares:

Basic 132,111 — — — —
Diluted 132,499 — — — —

Note 13 - Subsequent events
Dividend Declaration

On January 11, 2021, our board of directors declared a cash dividend of $0.07 per common share payable on February
12, 2021 to stockholders of record as of January 29, 2021, and on February 16, 2021, our board of directors declared a cash
dividend of $0.07 per common share payable on March 15, 2021 to stockholders of record as of February 26, 2021.

Credit Facility

On February 19, 2021, we entered into a credit agreement with a syndicate of lenders and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
as administrative agent for the lenders, providing for a $135.0 million revolving credit facility. By providing backup liquidity for
future draws, we expect the availability of the revolving credit facility will enable us to use a larger percentage of our cash
balances for lending activities without planning to incur debt in the ordinary course of business.

Our obligations under the revolving credit facility are secured by substantially all of our Company’s assets, The
revolving credit facility contains covenants customary for financings of this type, including limitations on the incurrence of
indebtedness, liens, asset dispositions, acquisitions, mergers and consolidations, certain dividends, distributions and other
payments, advances and investments, payments to affiliates, optional prepayments and other modifications of certain other
indebtedness, and amendments, terminations and waivers of certain material agreements, as well as a minimum tangible net
worth and a total debt to equity ratio requirement. Among other things, the credit agreement provides that we may not pay cash
dividends that would result in non-compliance with the financial covenants under the credit agreement or during an event of
default under the credit agreement, except in the case of defaults other than payment defaults, for dividends in amounts necessary
to maintain our REIT status. The revolving credit facility contains events of default customary for financings of this type,
including failure to pay principal, interest and other amounts, materially incorrect representations or warranties, failure to observe
covenants and other terms of the revolving credit facility, cross-defaults to other indebtedness, bankruptcy, insolvency, material
judgments, certain ERISA violations, changes in control and failure to maintain REIT status, in some cases subject to customary
grace periods.
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Exhibit 4.6

DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
As of December 31, 2020, Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (“Company,” “we,” “us” and “our”) has two classes of securities registered
under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”): (1) our common stock, par value $0.001 per share
(“Common Stock™), and (2) warrants scheduled to expire on November 14, 2024 (“Warrants”™).

9 .
s

Common Stock

The following description of the material terms of our Common Stock is qualified by reference to the provisions of our charter (the
“Charter”) and Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “Bylaws”), each of which are incorporated by reference as an exhibit to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K of which this Exhibit is a part.

General

We have authorized for issuance a total of 600,000,000 shares of stock, consisting of 500,000,000 shares of Common Stock, and
100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share. Our Charter authorizes our Board of Directors (the “Board”), with the
approval of a majority of the entire Board and without any action by our stockholders, to amend our Charter to increase or decrease the
aggregate number of authorized shares of stock or the number of authorized shares of stock of any class or series. Under Maryland law,
stockholders generally are not liable for a corporation’s debts or obligations.

Common Stock

Subject to the preferential rights, if any, of holders of any other class or series of stock (including preferred stock) and to the provisions
of our Charter regarding restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock, holders of our Common Stock have the right to receive ratably any
distributions from funds legally available therefor, when, as and if authorized by our Board and declared by us, and are entitled to share ratably
in our assets legally available for distribution to the holders of Common Stock in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
affairs.

There generally are no redemption, sinking fund, conversion, preemptive or appraisal rights with respect to the Common Stock.

Subject to the provisions of our Charter regarding restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock and except as may otherwise be
specified in the terms of any class or series of stock, each outstanding share of Common Stock entitles the holder to one vote on all matters
submitted to a vote of our stockholders, including the election of directors and, except as may be provided with respect to any other class or
series of stock, the holders of such shares will possess the exclusive voting power.

Power to Reclassify and Issue Stock

Our Board may classify any unissued shares of preferred stock, and reclassify any unissued shares of Common Stock or any previously
classified but unissued shares of any preferred stock into other classes or series of stock, including one or more classes or series of stock that
have priority over Common Stock with respect to voting rights or distributions or upon liquidation, and authorize us to issue the newly
classified shares. Prior to the issuance of shares of each class or series, our Board is required by the Maryland General Corporation Law (the
“MGCL”) and our Charter to set, subject to the provisions of our Charter regarding the restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock, the
preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends or other distributions, qualifications and terms
and conditions of redemption for each such class or series. These actions can be taken without stockholder approval, unless stockholder
approval is required by applicable law, the terms of any other class or series of our stock, or the rules of any stock exchange or automated
quotation system on which our stock may be then listed or quoted.




Power to Increase or Decrease Authorized Stock and Issue Additional Shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock

The power of our Board to increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of stock and to classify or reclassify unissued shares
of Common Stock or our preferred stock and thereafter to cause us to issue such shares of stock will provide us with increased flexibility in
structuring possible future financings and acquisitions and in meeting other needs which might arise. The additional classes or series, as well as
the additional shares of stock, will be available for future issuance without further action by our stockholders, unless such action is required by
applicable law, the terms of any other class or series of stock or the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on which our
securities may be listed or traded. Our Board could authorize us to issue a class or series of stock that could, depending upon the terms of the
particular class or series, delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change in control of us that might involve a premium price for shares of
Common Stock owned by our stockholders or otherwise be in their best interests.

Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

In order to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), our shares of Common Stock must
be beneficially owned by 100 or more persons during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 12 months (other than the first year for which an
election to be a REIT has been made) or during a proportionate part of a shorter taxable year. Also, not more than 50% of the value of the
outstanding shares of our capital stock may be owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include
certain entities) during the last half of a taxable year (other than the first year for which an election to be a REIT has been made). Our Charter
contains restrictions on the ownership and transfer of our stock that are intended to assist us in complying with these requirements and
qualifying as a REIT, among other reasons. The relevant sections of our Charter provide that, subject to the exceptions described below, no
person or entity may actually or beneficially own, or be deemed to own by virtue of the applicable constructive ownership provisions of the
Code, more than 9.8% (in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of the outstanding shares of any class or series of our
capital stock, excluding any shares of stock that are not treated as outstanding for federal income tax purposes. This restriction is referred to
herein as the “ownership limit.” A person or entity that would have acquired actual, beneficial or constructive ownership of our stock but for the
application of the ownership limit or any of the other restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock discussed below is referred to as a
“prohibited owner.”

The constructive ownership rules under the Code are complex and may cause stock owned actually or constructively by a group of
related individuals and/or entities to be owned constructively by one individual or entity. As a result, the acquisition of less than 9.8% of any
class or series of our capital stock (or the acquisition of an interest in an entity that owns, actually or constructively, any class or series of our
capital stock) by an individual or entity could, nevertheless, cause that individual or entity, or another individual or entity, to own constructively
in excess of 9.8% (in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of the outstanding shares of such class or series of our capital
stock and thereby violate the ownership limit.

Our Charter provides that our Board, subject to certain limits, upon receipt of a request that complies with the requirements of our
Charter and any policy adopted by our Board, may retroactively or prospectively exempt a person from the ownership limit and establish a
different limit on ownership for such person.

As a condition of the exception, our Board may require (i) such representations and/or undertakings as it may deem necessary or
prudent; and (ii) an opinion of counsel or IRS ruling, in either case in form and substance satisfactory to it, in order to protect, determine or
ensure our status as a REIT. Notwithstanding the receipt of any ruling or opinion, our Board may impose such conditions or restrictions as it
deems appropriate in connection with such an exception.




Our Board may increase or decrease the ownership limit of any class or series of our capital stock for one or more persons, except that
a decreased ownership limit will not be effective for any person whose actual, beneficial or constructive ownership of our stock exceeds the
decreased ownership limit at the time of the decrease until the person’s actual, beneficial or constructive ownership of the applicable class or
series of our capital stock equals or falls below the decreased ownership limit, although any further acquisition of such class or series of our
capital stock (other than by a previously exempted person) will violate the decreased ownership limit. Our Board may not increase or decrease
the ownership limit if the new ownership limit would allow five or fewer persons to actually or beneficially own in the aggregate more than
49.9% in value of our outstanding stock or could cause us to be “closely held” under Section 856(h) of the Code (without regard to whether the
ownership interest is held during the last half of a taxable year) or otherwise cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT.

The Charter further prohibits any person from:

e beneficially or constructively owning shares of our capital stock to the extent that such beneficial or constructive ownership would
result in us being “closely held” within the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code (without regard to whether the ownership interest is
held during the last half of the taxable year);

e transferring shares of our capital stock to the extent that such transfer would result in shares of our capital stock being beneficially
owned by fewer than 100 persons (determined under the principles of Section 856(a)(5) of the Code); or

e beneficially or constructively owning or transferring shares of our capital stock if such beneficial or constructive ownership or transfer
would otherwise cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT under the Code.

Any attempted transfer of shares of our capital stock or other event which, if effective, would violate any of the restrictions described
above will result in the number of shares of our capital stock causing the violation (rounded up to the nearest whole share) to be automatically
transferred to a trust for the exclusive benefit of one or more charitable beneficiaries, except that any transfer that results in the violation of the
restriction relating to shares of our capital stock being beneficially owned by fewer than 100 persons will be void ab initio. In either case, the
prohibited owner will not acquire any rights in those shares. The automatic transfer will be deemed to be effective as of the close of business on
the business day prior to the date of the purported transfer or other event that results in the transfer to the trust. Shares held in the trust will be
issued and outstanding shares. The prohibited owner will not benefit economically from ownership of any shares held in the trust, will have no
rights to dividends or other distributions and will have no rights to vote or other rights attributable to the shares held in the trust. The trustee of
the trust will have all voting rights and rights to dividends or other distributions with respect to shares held in the trust. These rights will be
exercised for the exclusive benefit of the charitable beneficiary. Any dividend or other distribution paid prior to our discovery that shares have
been transferred to the trust will be paid by the recipient to the trustee upon demand. Any dividend or other distribution authorized but unpaid
will be paid when due to the trustee. Any dividend or other distribution paid to the trustee will be held in trust for the charitable beneficiary.
Subject to Maryland law, effective as of the date the shares are transferred to the trust, the trustee will have the authority (at the trustee’s sole
and absolute discretion) (i) to rescind as void any vote cast by the prohibited owner prior to our discovery that the shares have been transferred
to the trust and (ii) to recast the vote in accordance with the desires of the trustee acting for the benefit of the charitable beneficiary. However, if
we have already taken irreversible corporate action, then the trustee will not have the authority to rescind and recast the vote.

Within 20 days of receiving notice from us that shares of our stock have been transferred to the trust, the trustee will sell the shares to a
person, designated by the trustee, whose ownership of the shares will not violate the above ownership limitations. Upon the sale, the interest of
the charitable beneficiary in the shares sold will terminate and the trustee will distribute the net proceeds of the sale to the prohibited owner and
to the charitable beneficiary as follows. The prohibited owner will receive the lesser of (i) the price paid by the prohibited owner for the shares
or, if the prohibited owner did not give value for the shares in connection with the event causing the shares to be held in the trust (e.g., a gift,
devise or other similar transaction), the market price (as defined in the Charter) of the shares on the day of the event causing the shares to be
held in the trust and (ii) the price per share received by the trustee (net of any commission and other expenses of sale) from the sale or other
disposition of the shares. The trustee may reduce the amount payable to the prohibited owner by the amount of dividends or other distributions
paid to the prohibited owner and owed by the prohibited owner to the trustee. Any net sale proceeds in excess of the amount payable to the
prohibited owner will be paid immediately to the charitable beneficiary. If, prior to our discovery that shares of our stock have been transferred
to the trustee, the shares are sold by the prohibited owner, then (i) the shares shall be deemed to have been sold on behalf of the trust and (ii) to
the extent that the prohibited owner received an amount for the shares that exceeds the amount he, she or it was entitled to receive, the excess
shall be paid to the trustee upon demand.




In addition, shares of our stock held in the trust will be deemed to have been offered for sale to us, or our designee, at a price per share
equal to the lesser of (i) the price per share in the transaction that resulted in the transfer to the trust (or, in the case of a devise or gift, the
market price at the time of the devise or gift) and (ii) the market price on the date we, or our designee, accepts the offer, which we may reduce
by the amount of dividends and distributions paid to the prohibited owner and owed by the prohibited owner to the trustee. We may pay the
amount of such reduction to the trustee for the benefit of the charitable beneficiary. We will have the right to accept the offer until the trustee
has sold the shares. Upon a sale to us or our designee, the interest of the charitable beneficiary in the shares sold will terminate and the trustee
will distribute the net proceeds of the sale to the prohibited owner.

If a transfer to a charitable trust, as described above, would be ineffective for any reason to prevent a violation of the ownership and
transfer restrictions, the transfer that would have resulted in a violation will be void ab initio, and the prohibited owner shall acquire no rights in
those shares.

Any certificate representing shares of our capital stock, and any notices delivered in lieu of certificates with respect to the issuance or
transfer of uncertificated shares, will (i) bear a legend referring to the restrictions described above or (ii) state that we will furnish a full
statement about the above restrictions on ownership and transfer to a stockholder on request and without charge.

Any person who acquires or attempts or intends to acquire beneficial or constructive ownership of shares of our capital stock that will
or may violate any of the foregoing restrictions on transferability and ownership, or any person who would have owned shares of our capital
stock that resulted in a transfer of shares to a charitable trust, is required to give written notice immediately to us or, in the case of a proposed or
attempted transaction, to give at least 15 days’ prior written notice, and provide us with such other information as we may request in order to
determine the effect, if any, of the transfer on our status as a REIT. The foregoing restrictions on transferability and ownership will not apply if
our Board determines that it is no longer in our best interests to attempt to qualify, or to continue to qualify, as a REIT.

Every beneficial owner of 5% or more (or any lower percentage as required by the Code or the regulations promulgated thereunder) of
the outstanding shares of our capital stock, within 30 days after the end of each taxable year, is required to give us written notice stating his, her
or its name and address, the number of shares of each class and series of shares of our capital stock that he, she or it beneficially owns and a
description of the manner in which the shares are held. Each of these owners must provide us with additional information that we may request in
order to determine the effect, if any, of his, her or its beneficial ownership on our status as a REIT and to ensure compliance with the ownership
limit. In addition, each stockholder (including the stockholder of record) will, upon demand, be required to provide us with information we may
request in order to determine our status as a REIT and to comply with the requirements of any taxing authority or governmental authority or to
determine our compliance.

These ownership limitations could delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change in control of us that might involve a premium price
for shares of Common Stock owned by our stockholders or otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders.

Transfer Agent

The transfer agent for the Common Stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC.




Warrants

We have 46,861,189 Warrants issued and outstanding, including (1) 5,186,676 Private Warrants held by HN Investors LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (the “Trinity Sponsor”), and (2) 41,674,513 Public Warrants, of which (a) 34,499,900 Public Warrants are
held by the holders of the public warrants issued in connection with Trinity Merger Corp.’s (“Trinity”) initial public offering, completed on
May 17, 2018, and (b) 7,174,613 Public Warrants held by the Farallon Entities, with each of which we entered into a subscription agreement,
whereby we agreed to issue and sell to the Farallon Entities an aggregate of 7,174,613 shares of Common Stock (for an aggregate purchase
price of approximately $75.0 million) and an aggregate amount of Public Warrants equal to such aggregate amount of shares of Common Stock
issued to and purchased by the Farallon Entities.

The Warrants will expire November 14, 2024, which is the date five years after the completion of our initial business combination (the
“Business Combination”), at 5:00 pm., New York City time, or earlier upon redemption or liquidation.

We may call the Warrants for redemption:
e in whole and not in part;
e ata price of $0.01 per Warrant;
e upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption (the “30-day redemption period”) to each Warrant holder; and

e if, and only if, the reported last sale price of the Common Stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock
dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending three business
days before we send the notice of redemption to the Warrant holders.

If and when the Warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise our redemption right even if we are unable to register or qualify
the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws.

If we issue a notice of redemption of the Warrants, each Warrant holder will be entitled to exercise its Warrant prior to the scheduled
redemption date.

If we call the Warrants for redemption as described above, we will have the option to require any holder that wishes to exercise its
Warrant to do so on a “cashless basis.” If we take advantage of this option, all holders of Warrants would pay the exercise price by surrendering
their Warrants for that number of shares of Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of
Common Stock underlying the Warrants, multiplied by the difference between the exercise price of the Warrants and the “fair market value”
(defined below) by (y) the fair market value. The “fair market value” shall mean the average reported last sale price of the Common Stock for
the 10 trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the notice of redemption is sent to the holders of Warrants. If our
management takes advantage of this option, the notice of redemption will contain the information necessary to calculate the number of shares of
Common Stock to be received upon exercise of the Warrants, including the “fair market value” in such case. If we require cashless exercise in
this manner, we will not receive cash proceeds in connection with the Warrant exercises; however, the number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of the Warrants would be reduced and thereby lessen the dilutive effect of a Warrant redemption.

A holder of a Warrant may notify us in writing in the event it elects to be subject to a requirement that such holder will not have the
right to exercise such Warrant, to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, such person (together with such person’s affiliates), to the
Warrant agent’s actual knowledge, would beneficially own in excess of 9.8% (or such other amount as a holder may specify) of the shares of
Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise.




If the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock is increased by a stock dividend payable in shares of Common Stock, or by a
split-up of shares of Common Stock or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such stock dividend, split-up or similar event, the
number of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of each Warrant will be increased in proportion to such increase in the outstanding
shares of Common Stock. A rights offering to holders of Common Stock entitling holders to purchase shares of Common Stock at a price less
than the fair market value will be deemed a stock dividend of a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the product of (i) the number of
shares of Common Stock actually sold in such rights offering (or issuable under any other equity securities sold in such rights offering that are
convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock) and (ii) one (1) minus the quotient of (x) the price per share of Common Stock paid in such
rights offering divided by (y) the fair market value. For these purposes (i) if the rights offering is for securities convertible into or exercisable
for Common Stock, in determining the price payable for Common Stock, there will be taken into account any consideration received for such
rights, as well as any additional amount payable upon exercise or conversion and (ii) fair market value means the volume weighted average
price of Common Stock as reported during the ten (10) trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the first date on which the shares of
Common Stock trade on the applicable exchange or in the applicable market, regular way, without the right to receive such rights.

In addition, if we, at any time while the Warrants are outstanding and unexpired, pay a dividend or make a distribution in cash,
securities or other assets to the holders of Common Stock on account of such shares of Common Stock (or other shares of our capital stock into
which the Warrants are convertible), other than (a) as described in the preceding paragraph, (b) regular monthly, quarterly or other periodic cash
dividends or cash distributions, or (c) any other cash dividend or distribution required to be paid in order for us to qualify or maintain our status
as a REIT within the meaning of the Code, or otherwise avoid the imposition of U.S. federal and state income and excise taxes, so long as we
qualify or are seeking to maintain our status as a REIT at the time of such cash dividend or distribution, then the Warrant exercise price will be
decreased, effective immediately after the effective date of such event, by the amount of cash and/or the fair market value of any securities or
other assets paid on each share of Common Stock in respect of such event.

If the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock is decreased by a consolidation, combination, reverse stock split or
reclassification of shares of Common Stock or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such consolidation, combination, reverse stock
split, reclassification or similar event, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of each Warrant will be decreased in
proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares of Common Stock.

Whenever the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants is adjusted, as described above, the
Warrant exercise price will be adjusted by multiplying the Warrant exercise price immediately prior to such adjustment by a fraction (x) the
numerator of which will be the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants immediately prior to such
adjustment, and (y) the denominator of which will be the number of shares of Common Stock so purchasable immediately thereafter.

In case of any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (other than those described above or that
solely affects the par value of such shares of Common Stock), or in the case of any merger or consolidation of us with or into another
corporation (other than a consolidation or merger in which we are the continuing corporation and that does not result in any reclassification or
reorganization of our outstanding shares of Common Stock), or in the case of any sale or conveyance to another corporation or entity of the
assets or other property of ours as an entirety or substantially as an entirety in connection with which we dissolved, the holders of the Warrants
will thereafter have the right to purchase and receive, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified in the Warrants and in lieu of
the shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable upon the exercise of the rights represented thereby, the kind
and amount of shares of stock or other securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such reclassification, reorganization, merger or
consolidation, or upon a dissolution following any such sale or transfer, that the holder of the Warrants would have received if such holder had
exercised their Warrants immediately prior to such event. If less than 70% of the consideration receivable by the holders of Common Stock in
such a transaction is payable in the form of Common Stock in the successor entity that is listed for trading on a national securities exchange or
is quoted in an established over-the-counter market, or is to be so listed for trading or quoted immediately following such event, and if the
registered holder of the Warrant properly exercises the Warrant within thirty days following public disclosure of such transaction, the Warrant
exercise price will be reduced as specified in the warrant agreement based on the Black-Scholes value (as defined in the warrant agreement) of
the Warrant. The purpose of such exercise price reduction is to provide additional value to holders of the Warrants when an extraordinary
transaction occurs during the exercise period of the Warrants pursuant to which the holders of the Warrants otherwise do not receive the full
potential value of the Warrants.




The Warrants are issued in registered form under a warrant agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and us,
which was amended in connection with the completion of the Business Combination by the First Amendment and the Second Amendment to
the warrant agreement among Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as successor
Warrant agent, and us. You should review a copy of the warrant agreement, the First Amendment and the Second Amendment, which are
incorporated by reference as exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of which this exhibit is a part, for a complete description of the terms
and conditions applicable to the Warrants.

Except as the context may otherwise require, references to the warrant agreement herein refer to the warrant agreement, as amended.
The warrant agreement provides that the terms of the Warrants may be amended without the consent of any holder to cure any ambiguity or
correct any defective provision, but requires the approval by the holders of at least 65% of the then outstanding Warrants to make any change
that adversely affects the interests of the registered holders of Warrants.

The Warrants may be exercised upon surrender of the Warrant certificate on or prior to the expiration date at the offices of the Warrant
agent, with the exercise form on the reverse side of the Warrant certificate completed and executed as indicated, accompanied by full payment
of the exercise price (or on a cashless basis, if applicable), by certified or official bank check payable to us, for the number of Warrants being
exercised. The Warrant holders do not have the rights or privileges of holders of Common Stock and any voting rights until they exercise their
Warrants and receive shares of Common Stock. After the issuance of shares of Common Stock upon exercise of the Warrants, each holder will
be entitled to one (1) vote for each share of Common Stock held of record on all matters to be voted on by stockholders.

No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the Warrants. If, upon exercise of the Warrants, a holder would be entitled to
receive a fractional interest in a share, we will, upon exercise, round down to the nearest whole number of shares of Common Stock to be issued
to the Warrant holder.

Public Warrants

Each Public Warrant will entitle the registered holder to purchase one-fourth (1/4th) of one share of Common Stock at a price of
$2.875, with the exercise of Public Warrants for less than a full share not permissible, subject to adjustment as discussed below, at any time
commencing 30 days after the completion of the Business Combination.

Private Warrants

Each Private Warrant will entitle the registered holder to purchase one share of Common Stock at a price of $11.50 per share. The
Private Warrants (including the Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Private Warrants) will not be redeemable by us so long as they are
held by the Trinity Sponsor or its permitted transferees. The Trinity Sponsor, or its permitted transferees, has the option to exercise the Private
Warrants on a cashless basis. Except as described herein, the Private Warrants have terms and provisions that are identical to those of the Public
Warrants. If the Private Warrants are held by holders other than the Trinity Sponsor or its permitted transferees, the Private Warrants will be
redeemable by us and exercisable by the holders on the same basis as the Public Warrants, except with respect to the number of shares of
Common Stock for which each Private Warrant is exercisable and the related exercise price, as described herein.

Restrictions on Transfers of Founder Shares and Private Warrants

The 4,823,640 shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Trinity Sponsor as the stockholder of shares of Class B common stock, par
value $0.0001 per share of Trinity (the “Trinity Sponsor Shares”) and the Private Warrants and any shares of Common Stock issued upon
conversion or exercise thereof are each subject to transfer restrictions pursuant to lock-up provisions in a letter agreement with B. Riley
FBR, Inc., entered into on August 9, 2019 by each of the Trinity Sponsor and certain officers and directors of Trinity (the “Lock-Up
Agreements”).




In the case of the Trinity Sponsor Shares, the Lock-Up Agreements provide that, during the period commencing on the completion of
Trinity’s initial business combination and continuing until the earlier of (i) one year after the completion of Trinity’s initial business
combination, or (ii) subsequent to the completion of Trinity’s initial business combination, (x) if the last sale price of Common Stock equals or
exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days
within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after the completion of Trinity’s initial business combination, or (y) the date on
which we complete a liquidation, merger, capital stock exchange, reorganization or other similar transaction that results in all of the
stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of Common Stock for cash, securities or other property, each such holder will not sell,
offer to sell, pledge or transfer any shares of Common Stock held by such holder, subject to certain limited exceptions. Concurrently, the Trinity
Sponsor and those certain officers and directors of Trinity executing such lock-up agreements will enter into a separate amendment to terminate
that certain letter agreement entered into among such Trinity officers and directors and Trinity and dated May 14, 2018, upon consummation of
Trinity’s initial business combination. The Lock-Up Agreements executed by the parties incorporate, on substantially similar terms, the lock-up
terms and conditions found in the original letter agreement.

In the case of the Private Warrants and the Common Stock underlying such Private Warrants, the Lock-Up Agreements provide that,
until 30 days after the completion of Trinity’s initial business combination, such securities are not transferable or salable.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Private Warrants (including the Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Private Warrants) and
the Common Stock underling the Trinity Sponsor Shares may be transferred (a) to Trinity’s officers or directors, any affiliates or family
members of any of its officers or directors, any members of the Trinity Sponsor, or any affiliates of the Trinity Sponsor; (b) in the case of an
individual, by gift to a member of one of the members of the individual’s immediate family or to a trust, the beneficiary of which is a member
of one of the individual’s immediate family, an affiliate of such person or to a charitable organization; (c) in the case of an individual, by virtue
of laws of descent and distribution upon death of the individual; (d) in the case of an individual, pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order;
(e) by private sales or transfers made in connection with any forward purchase agreement or similar arrangement or in connection with the
consummation of an initial business combination at prices no greater than the price at which the shares or warrants were originally purchased;
(f) in the event of our liquidation prior to the completion of Trinity’s initial business combination; (g) by virtue of the laws of Delaware or the
Trinity Sponsor’s limited liability company agreement upon dissolution of the Trinity Sponsor; or (h) in the event of our liquidation, merger,
capital stock exchange, reorganization or other similar transaction which results in all of Trinity’s stockholders having the right to exchange
their shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property; provided, however, that in the case of clauses (a) through (e) these permitted
transferees must enter into a written agreement agreeing to be bound by these transfer restrictions and the other restrictions contained in the
Lock-Up Agreements.

Certain Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law and Our Charter and Bylaws

Although the following summary describes certain provisions of Maryland law and the material provisions of our Charter and our
Bylaws, it is not a complete description of our Charter and Bylaws. You should review copies of these documents, which are incorporated by
reference as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of which this exhibit is a part.

Our Board of Directors

Our Charter and Bylaws provide that our number of directors may be established, increased or decreased only by our Board, but may
not be less than the minimum number required under the MGCL, which is one, or, unless the bylaws are amended, more than fifteen. We have
elected by a provision in our Charter to be subject to a provision of Maryland law requiring that, subject to the rights of holders of one or more
classes or series of preferred stock, any vacancy may be filled only by a majority of the remaining directors, even if the remaining directors do
not constitute a quorum, and any director elected to fill a vacancy will serve for the full term of the directorship in which such vacancy occurred
and until his or her successor is duly elected and qualifies.




Each member of our Board is elected by our stockholders to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until his or her
successor is duly elected and qualifies. Holders of shares of Common Stock will have no right to cumulative voting in the election of directors,
and directors will be elected by a majority of the votes cast for each nominee for director (except in contested elections, in which case a
plurality of the votes cast will be required for election). Consequently, at each annual meeting of stockholders, the holders of a majority of the
shares of Common Stock will be able to elect all of the directors.

Removal of Directors

Our Charter provides that, subject to the rights of holders of one or more classes or series of preferred stock to elect or remove one or
more directors, a director may be removed from office at any time, but only for cause (as defined in the Charter), and then only by the
affirmative vote of holders of shares entitled to cast at least two-thirds of all of the votes entitled to be cast generally in the election of directors.
This provision, when coupled with the exclusive power of our Board to fill vacant directorships, may preclude stockholders from removing
incumbent directors except for cause and by a substantial affirmative vote and from filling the vacancies created by such removal with their own
nominees.

Resignation Policy for Directors

Each nominee for director shall be elected by a majority of the votes cast. A majority of the votes cast means the affirmative vote of a
majority of the total votes cast “for” and “against” such nominee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a nominee for director shall be elected by a
plurality of the votes cast if the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be elected. Our Board has adopted a policy regarding
the election of directors in uncontested elections. Pursuant to such policy, in an uncontested election of directors, any nominee who receives a
greater number of votes against his or her election than votes for his or her election will, within two weeks following certification of the
stockholder vote by us, submit a written resignation offer to our Board. Our Board will consider the resignation offer and, within 60 days
following certification by us of the stockholder vote with respect to such election, will make a recommendation to our Board concerning the
acceptance or rejection of the resignation offer. Our Board will take formal action on the recommendation no later than 90 days following
certification of the stockholder vote by us. We will publicly disclose, in a Current Report on Form 8-K to be filed with the SEC, the decision of
our Board. Our Board will also provide an explanation of the process by which its decision has been made and, if applicable, its reason or
reasons for rejecting the tendered resignation.

Business Combinations

Under the MGCL, certain “business combinations” (including a merger, consolidation, share exchange or, in circumstances specified
in the statute, an asset transfer or issuance or reclassification of equity securities) between a Maryland corporation and an interested stockholder
(i.e., any person (other than the corporation or any subsidiary) who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the voting power of
the corporation’s outstanding voting stock after the date on which the corporation had 100 or more beneficial owners of its stock, or an affiliate
or associate of the corporation who, at any time within the two-year period immediately prior to the date in question, was the beneficial owner
of 10% or more of the voting power of the then outstanding stock of the corporation after the date on which the corporation had 100 or more
beneficial owners of its stock) or an affiliate of an interested stockholder, are prohibited for five years after the most recent date on which the
interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder. Thereafter, any such business combination between the Maryland corporation and an
interested stockholder generally must be recommended by the board of directors of such corporation and approved by the affirmative vote of at
least (1) 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of outstanding shares of voting stock of the corporation and (2) two-thirds of the votes
entitled to be cast by holders of voting stock of the corporation other than shares held by the interested stockholder with whom (or with whose
affiliate) the business combination is to be effected or held by an affiliate or associate of the interested stockholder, unless, among other
conditions, the corporation’s common stockholders receive a minimum price (as defined in the MGCL) for their shares and the consideration is
received in cash or in the same form as previously paid by the interested stockholder for its shares. A person is not an interested stockholder
under the statute if the board of directors approved in advance the transaction by which the person otherwise would have become an interested
stockholder. The board of directors may provide that its approval is subject to compliance, at or after the time of approval, with any terms and
conditions it determines.




The statute permits various exemptions from its provisions, including business combinations that are exempted by the board of
directors prior to the time that the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder. As permitted by the MGCL, our Board has adopted a
resolution exempting any business combination between us and any other person from the provisions of this statute, provided that the business
combination is first approved by a majority of our directors (including a majority of directors who are not affiliates or associates of such
persons). However, our Board may repeal or modify this resolution at any time in the future, in which case the applicable provisions of this
statute will become applicable to business combinations between us and interested stockholders.

Control Share Acquisitions

The MGCL provides that holders of “control shares” of a Maryland corporation acquired in a “control share acquisition” have no
voting rights with respect to those shares except to the extent approved by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be
cast by stockholders entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, excluding votes cast by (1) the person who makes or proposes to make
a control share acquisition, (2) an officer of the corporation or (3) an employee of the corporation who is also a director of the corporation.
“Control shares” are voting shares of stock which, if aggregated with all other such shares of stock previously acquired by the acquirer or in
respect of which the acquirer is able to exercise or direct the exercise of voting power (except solely by virtue of a revocable proxy), would
entitle the acquirer to exercise voting power in electing directors within one of the following ranges of voting power: (1) one-tenth or more but
less than one-third, (2) one-third or more but less than a majority or (3) a majority or more of all voting power. Control shares do not include
shares the acquiring person is then entitled to vote as a result of having previously obtained stockholder approval. A “control share acquisition”
means the acquisition of issued and outstanding control shares, subject to certain exceptions.

A person who has made or proposes to make a control share acquisition, upon satisfaction of certain conditions (including an
undertaking to pay expenses), may compel the board of directors to call a special meeting of stockholders to be held within 50 days of demand
to consider the voting rights of the shares. If no request for a meeting is made, the corporation may itself present the question at any
stockholders meeting.

If voting rights of control shares are not approved at the meeting or if the acquiring person does not deliver an acquiring person
statement as required by the statute, then, subject to certain conditions and limitations, the corporation may redeem any or all of the control
shares (except those for which voting rights have previously been approved) for fair value determined, without regard to the absence of voting
rights for the control shares, as of the date of the last control share acquisition by the acquirer or, if a meeting of stockholders is held at which
the voting rights of such shares is considered and not approved, as of the date of such meeting. If voting rights for control shares are approved at
a stockholders meeting and the acquirer becomes entitled to vote a majority of the shares entitled to vote, all other stockholders may exercise
appraisal rights. The fair value of the shares as determined for purposes of such appraisal rights may not be less than the highest price per share
paid by the acquirer in the control share acquisition.

The control share acquisition statute does not apply to, among other things, (1) shares acquired in a merger, consolidation or share
exchange if the corporation is a party to the transaction or (2) acquisitions approved or exempted by the charter or the bylaws of the corporation.

Our Bylaws contain a provision exempting from the control share acquisition statute any acquisition by any person of shares of our
capital stock. There can be no assurance that such provision will not be amended or eliminated at any time in the future by our Board.
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Subtitle 8

Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the MGCL (“Subtitle 8”) permits a Maryland corporation with a class of equity securities registered under the
Exchange Act and at least three independent directors to elect to be subject, by provision in such corporation’s charter or bylaws or a resolution
of its board of directors, without stockholder approval, and notwithstanding any contrary provision in such corporation’s charter or bylaws, to
any or all of five provisions of the MGCL which provide, respectively, that:

e the corporation’s board of directors will be divided into three classes;
e the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast in the election of directors generally is required to remove a director;
e the number of directors may be fixed only by vote of the directors;

® avacancy on the board of directors may be filled only by the remaining directors and that directors elected to fill a vacancy will serve
for the remainder of the full term of the class of directors in which the vacancy occurred; and

e the request of stockholders entitled to cast at least a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast at the meeting is required for the calling
of a special meeting of stockholders.

We have elected in our Charter to be subject to the provision of Subtitle 8 providing that vacancies on our Board may be filled only by
the remaining directors, even if such remaining directors do not constitute a quorum. We have not elected to be subject to any of the other
provisions of Subtitle 8, including the provisions that would permit us to classify our Board without stockholder approval. Moreover, our
Charter provides that we may not elect to classify our Board through the provisions of Subtitle 8 without the affirmative vote of a majority of
the votes cast on the matter by our stockholders entitled to vote generally in the election of directors. In addition, without having elected to be
subject to Subtitle 8, our Charter and Bylaws already (1) require the affirmative vote of holders of shares entitled to cast at least two-thirds of all
the votes entitled to be cast generally in the election of directors to remove a director from our Board, (2) vest in our Board the exclusive power
to fix the number of directors and (3) require, unless called by the Chairman of our Board, the President, the Chief Executive Officer or our
Board, the request of stockholders entitled to cast a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast at the meeting to call a special meeting of
stockholders. Our Board is not currently classified.

Meetings of Stockholders

Pursuant to our Bylaws, an annual meeting of our stockholders for the purpose of the election of directors and the transaction of any
business as may properly be brought before the meeting will be held on a date and at the time and place set by our Board. Each of the directors
is elected by our stockholders to serve until the next annual meeting and until his or her successor is duly elected and qualifies under Maryland
law. In addition, the Chairman of our Board, the President, the Chief Executive Officer or our Board may call a special meeting of our
stockholders. Subject to the provisions of the Bylaws, a special meeting of our stockholders to act on any matter that may properly be
considered by them will also be called by our Secretary upon the written request of stockholders entitled to cast a majority of all the votes
entitled to be cast at the meeting on such matter, accompanied by the information required by our Bylaws. Our Secretary will inform the
requesting stockholders of the reasonably estimated cost of preparing and mailing the notice of meeting (including any proxy materials), and the
requesting stockholder(s) must pay such estimated cost before our Secretary may prepare and mail the notice of the special meeting.

Amendments to the Charter and the Bylaws

Under the MGCL, a Maryland corporation generally cannot amend its charter unless approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders
entitled to cast at least two-thirds of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter unless a lesser percentage (but not less than a majority of all
of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter) is set forth in the corporation’s charter. Except for certain provisions related to the removal of
directors and the vote required to amend those provisions (which must be declared advisable by our Board and approved by the affirmative vote
of stockholders entitled to cast not less than two-thirds of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter), our Charter generally may be
amended only if the amendment is declared advisable by our Board and approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders entitled to cast a
majority of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Our Board, with the approval of a majority of our entire Board, and without any
action by the stockholders, may also amend our Charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares
of stock of any class or series we are authorized to issue. Our Board may also amend the Charter to change our name or make certain other
ministerial changes without stockholder approval.
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Our Board has the exclusive power to adopt, amend or repeal any provision of our Bylaws and to make new bylaws.
Extraordinary Transactions

Under the MGCL, a Maryland corporation generally cannot dissolve, merge, convert, transfer all or substantially all of its assets,
engage in a statutory share exchange or engage in similar transactions outside the ordinary course of business unless declared advisable by the
board of directors and approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders entitled to cast at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on the
matter unless a lesser percentage (but not less than a majority of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter) is set forth in the corporation’s
charter. As permitted by the MGCL, our Charter provides that any of these actions may be approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders
entitled to cast a majority of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter.

No Appraisal Rights
Our Charter provides that our stockholders generally will not be entitled to exercise statutory appraisal rights.
Advance Notice of Director Nominations and New Business

Our Bylaws provide that, with respect to an annual meeting of stockholders, nominations of individuals for election to our Board and
the proposal of other business to be considered by the stockholders at an annual meeting of stockholders may be made only (1) pursuant to a
notice of the meeting, (2) by or at the direction of our Board or (3) by a stockholder who was a stockholder of record at the record date for the
meeting, at the time of giving of notice and at the time of the meeting (or any postponement or adjournment thereof), who is entitled to vote at
the meeting on the election of each individual so nominated or such other business and who has complied with the advance notice procedures
set forth in our Bylaws, including a requirement to provide certain information about the stockholder and its affiliates and the nominee or
business proposal, as applicable. To be timely, such notice shall be delivered to our Secretary at our principal executive office not earlier than
the 150th day nor later than 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on the 120th day prior to the first anniversary of the date of the proxy statement for the
preceding year’s annual meeting.

With respect to special meetings of stockholders, only the business specified in the notice of the meeting may be brought before the
meeting. Nominations of individuals for election to our Board may be made at a special meeting of stockholders at which directors are to be
elected only (1) by or at the direction of our Board or (2) provided that the special meeting has been properly called by our Board or a duly
authorized officer in accordance with the Bylaws for the purpose of electing directors, by a stockholder who was a stockholder of record at the
record date for the meeting, at the time of giving of notice and at the time of the meeting (or any postponement or adjournment thereof), who is
entitled to vote at the meeting on the election of each individual so nominated and who has complied with the advance notice provisions set
forth in our Bylaws, including a requirement to provide certain information about the stockholder and its affiliates and the nominee.

Anti-Takeover Effect of Certain Provisions of Maryland Law and Our Charter and Bylaws
Our Charter and Bylaws and Maryland law contain provisions that may delay, defer or prevent a change in control of us or other
transaction that might involve a premium price for holders of shares of Common Stock owned by our stockholders or otherwise be in the best

interests of our stockholders, including:

® supermajority vote and cause requirements for removal of directors;
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o the requirement that stockholders holding at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock must act together to make a
written request before our stockholders can require us to call a special meeting of stockholders;

e provisions that vacancies on our Board may be filled only by the remaining directors for the full term of the directorship in which the
vacancy occurred;

o the power of our Board, without stockholder approval, to increase or decrease the aggregate number of authorized shares of stock or
the number of shares of any class or series of stock;

o the exclusive power of our Board to amend our Bylaws;

e the power of our Board to cause us to issue additional shares of stock of any class or series and to fix the terms of one or more classes
or series of stock without stockholder approval;

e the restrictions on ownership and transfer of our capital stock; and
e advance notice requirements for director nominations and stockholder proposals.

Likewise, if the resolution opting out of the business combination provisions of the MGCL is repealed, or the business combination is
not approved by our Board, or the provision in our Bylaws opting out of the control share acquisition provisions of the MGCL were rescinded,
these provisions of the MGCL could have similar anti-takeover effects.

Exclusive Forum

Our Bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Circuit Court for Baltimore City,
Maryland, or, if that court does not have jurisdiction, the United States District Court for the District of Maryland, Northern Division, will be
the sole and exclusive forum for (a) any Internal Corporate Claim, as such term is defined in the MGCL, (b) any derivative action or proceeding
brought on our behalf (other than actions arising under federal securities laws), (¢) any action asserting a claim of breach of any duty owed by
any of our directors, officers or other employees to us or to our stockholders, (d) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our directors,
officers or other employees arising pursuant to any provision of the MGCL or our Charter or our Bylaws or (e) any other action asserting a
claim against us or any of our directors, officers or other employees that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine. This provision does not
cover claims made by stockholders pursuant to the securities laws of the United States, or any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder.

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Maryland law permits a Maryland corporation to include in its charter a provision eliminating the liability of its directors and officers
to the corporation and its stockholders for money damages, except for liability resulting from (1) actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit
in money, property or services or (2) active and deliberate dishonesty that is established by a final judgment and is material to the cause of
action. Our Charter contains a provision that eliminates such liability to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law.

The MGCL requires a corporation (unless its charter provides otherwise, which our Charter does not) to indemnify a director or officer
who has been successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the defense of any proceeding to which he or she is made, or threatened to be made, a
party by reason of his or her service in that capacity. The MGCL permits a corporation to indemnify its present and former directors and
officers, among others, against judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and reasonable expenses actually incurred by them in connection with
any proceeding to or in which they may be made, or threatened to be made, a party or witness by reason of their service in those or other
capacities unless it is established that:

e the act or omission of the director or officer was material to the matter giving rise to the proceeding and (1) was committed in bad faith
or (2) was the result of active and deliberate dishonesty;
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e the director or officer actually received an improper personal benefit in money, property or services; or
e in the case of any criminal proceeding, the director or officer had reasonable cause to believe that the act or omission was unlawful.

However, under the MGCL, a Maryland corporation may not indemnify for an adverse judgment in a suit by or in the right of the
corporation or for a judgment of liability on the basis that personal benefit was improperly received. Nevertheless, a court may order
indemnification in either case if it determines that the director or officer is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification, but only for
expenses. In addition, the MGCL permits a Maryland corporation to advance reasonable expenses to a director or officer upon its receipt of:

e a written affirmation by the director or officer of his or her good faith belief that he or she has met the standard of conduct necessary
for indemnification by the corporation; and

e a written undertaking by the director or officer or on the director’s or officer’s behalf to repay the amount paid or reimbursed by the
corporation if it is ultimately determined that the director or officer did not meet the standard of conduct.

Our Charter obligates us, to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law in effect from time to time, to indemnify and, without
requiring a preliminary determination of the ultimate entitlement to indemnification, pay or reimburse reasonable expenses in advance of final
disposition of such a proceeding to:

o any of our present or former director or officer who is made, or threatened to be made, a party to, or witness in, the proceeding by
reason of his or her service in that capacity; or

e any individual who, while our director or officer and at our request, serves or has served as a director, officer, trustee, member,
manager or partner of another corporation, real estate investment trust, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust,
employee benefit plan or other enterprise and who is made, or threatened to be made, a party to, or witness in, the proceeding by
reason of his or her service in that capacity.

Our Charter also permits us, with the approval of our Board, to indemnify and advance expenses to any individual who served as our
predecessor in any of the capacities described above and to any employee or agent of ours or any of our predecessors.

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers that provide for indemnification to
the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law.

REIT Qualification

Our Charter provides that our Board may revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election, without approval of our stockholders, if it
determines that it is no longer in our best interests to attempt to qualify, or to continue to qualify, as a REIT.
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Exhibit 10.4

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of November 3,
2020 (the “Effective Date™), is entered into by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc., a
Maryland corporation (the “Company”), and Linda D. Koa, an individual (“Employee’).

RECITALS
A. Employee is currently employed by the Company;

B. The Company and Employee desire to modify the terms of Employee’s
employment as of the Effective Date and provide for Employee’s continued employment with
the Company upon such modified terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this
Agreement;

C. As an executive of the Company, Employee has had and shall continue to have
access to valuable confidential and proprietary information used in the business of the
Company, including financial data, customer data, operational data, trade secrets and other
intellectual property that if disclosed to or used by competitors or potential competitors would
cause irreparable harm to the Company, and as a result, Employee and the Company desire to
provide the Company with adequate protection from the unauthorized disclosure or use of the
Company’s confidential and proprietary information; and

D. Effective as of the Effective Date, Employee wishes to accept continued
employment with the Company upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

1. Employment. The Company shall continue to employ Employee, and Employee
accepts continued employment with the Company, upon the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement. Employee’s term of employment hereunder shall continue until December 31,
2023 (the “Expiration Date”); provided, however, that the Company or Employee may
terminate this Agreement, the term of Employee’s employment under this Agreement and
Employee’s employment at any time as provided in Section 4 hereof. The term of Employee’s
employment hereunder is referred to as the “Employment Period.” 1f the Employment Period
ends because the term of this Agreement expires at the Expiration Date, such expiration shall
not automatically result in Employee’s termination of employment and Employee shall
thereupon remain employed by the Company without an employment agreement unless her
employment is otherwise terminated. The primary place of Employee’s employment will be in
the Company’s home offices in the Seattle, Washington area, subject to the Company’s policies
regarding working from a remote location and subject to reasonable business travel
requirements.




2. Position and Duties.

(a) During the Employment Period, Employee shall serve as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company, and shall have the duties, responsibilities and authority of
Chief Operating Officer. In addition, as long as she is requested by the Company to do so,
Employee shall serve as the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company. Employee
acknowledges and agrees she shall perform her duties and responsibilities faithfully and to the
best of her abilities in a businesslike manner.

(b) Employee shall report to the Chief Executive Officer and the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”), shall work on a full-time basis for the Company and
shall devote substantially all of her business time, attention, skills and energies to the business
and affairs of the Company. During the Employment Period, Employee shall not engage in any
business activity which, in the reasonable judgment of the Board, conflicts with the duties of
Employee hereunder, whether or not such activity is pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary
advantage. Employee agrees that she shall promptly report any potential conflict in writing to
the Board, affirmatively disclosing any outside business opportunity that presents even the
appearance of a conflict.

3. Base Salary and Benefits.

(a) Base Salary. During the Employment Period, Employee’s base salary
shall be $225,000 per annum (the “Base Salary”), which shall be payable in regular installments
in accordance with the Company’s general payroll practices. Annual compensation review and
increases, if any, will be subject to approval by the Board. However, the Base Salary may not be
decreased during the Employment Period other than as part of an across-the-board salary
reduction for executive officers of the Company.

(b) Annual Bonus. At the conclusion of each fiscal year (commencing with
the 2020 fiscal year) during the Employment Period, in addition to the Base Salary, Employee
may be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus (the “Annual Bonus”) in an amount to be
established by the Board or the Compensation Committee. The amount of the Annual Bonus
will be based on achievement of certain annual performance targets and other objectives
established by the Board or the Compensation Committee, and the target Annual Bonus,
assuming that all performance goals are satisfied at the target level of performance, shall be
equal to annual Base Salary for the performance year (which target amount shall be subject to
the annual compensation review and increase (but not decrease) by the Board or the
Compensation Committee). Any Annual Bonus will be paid promptly following the completion
of the annual audit for the calendar year to which it relates, and in all events no later than March
15th of the calendar year following the calendar year to which it relates.

() Vacation. During the Employment Period, notwithstanding any provision
to the contrary, Employee shall be entitled to paid vacation in accordance with Company policy.

(d) Expenses. The Company shall reimburse Employee for all reasonable
expenses incurred by her in the course of performing her duties under this Agreement which are
consistent with the Company’s policies in effect from time to time with respect to travel,
entertainment and other business expenses (“Business Expenses”),
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subject to the Company’s requirements with respect to reporting and documentation of such
expenses.

(e) Benefits. Employee will be eligible to participate in such health care,
insurance, retirement, and other employee benefit plans as are generally made available by the
Company to its employees, subject to the terms of said plan or plans. The terms of such plans
are subject to change or termination at any time, with or without notice, at the discretion of the
Company.

® Clawback. All incentive compensation (including without limitation, any
Annual Bonuses or other performance-based compensation) paid or payable to Employee,
whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, shall be subject to any clawback, recoupment
or compensation recovery policy adopted by the Board or the Compensation Committee,
regardless of whether the policy is adopted after the compensation is paid or payable.

4. Termination. The Employment Period shall terminate as follows:

(a) Termination by Employee without Good Reason. In the event that
Employee terminates her employment for any reason other than for Good Reason, Employee

must provide the Company with written notice of such resignation. Employee will use her best
efforts to provide the Company with such written notice at least sixty (60) days in advance of
the effective date of the termination. In the event that at least sixty (60) days’ advance written
notice is not provided, Employee agrees to be available as a resource to the Company for the
transition of her responsibilities for a number of days equal to sixty (60) minus the number of
days’ written notice provided.

(b) Termination by Employee for Good Reason. Employee may terminate her
employment hereunder for Good Reason. “Good Reason” means (i) a material and sustained

diminution in Employee’s duties under this Agreement or a reduction of Employee’s title (not
including her duties or title as Corporate Secretary), (ii) a material breach by the Company of
this Agreement, (iii) relocation of Employee’s principal place of employment to a location that
is more than fifty (50) miles from Employee’s place of employment as of the Effective Date,
without Employee’s consent, (iv) a reduction in the Base Salary, unless such reduction is part of
an across the board reduction for senior executive officers of the Company, or (v) a material
reduction in the Employee’s target Annual Bonus; provided that any such action shall not
constitute Good Reason unless (A) Employee provides written notice to the Company of any
such action within thirty (30) days of the date on which such action first occurs and provides the
Company with thirty (30) days to remedy such action (the “Cure Period”), (B) the Company
fails to remedy such action within the Cure Period, and (C) Employee resigns within thirty (30)
days of the expiration of the Cure Period. If the Employment Period expires because the
Expiration Date has been reached while Employee remains employed, neither that nor any
subsequent resignation of Employee’s employment with the Company shall be considered a
termination for Good Reason.

(© Termination by the Company.
@) Termination by the Company for Cause. The Company may
terminate Employee’s employment for Cause (“Termination for Cause”).

“Cause” shall mean any of the following:
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(1) Any act of fraud, embezzlement, theft, intentional
dishonesty, misrepresentation or breach of fiduciary
duty with respect to the Company or its subsidiaries;

2) Employee’s gross negligence or willful misconduct in
the performance of her duties to the Company;

3) Failure or refusal to follow any reasonable directive of
the Board or the officer to whom Employee reports,
and if such failure and refusal is curable, if such failure
or refusal is not cured within fifteen (15) days after the
Company’s written notice to Employee of such failure
or refusal;

4) Employee’s (1) breach of Sections 6, 7 or 8 of this
Agreement; (2) breach of any material written policy of
the Company which if curable, is not cured within
fifteen (15) days after the Company’s written notice of
such breach; or (3) material breach of this Agreement,
which if curable, is not cured within fifteen (15) days
after the Company’s written notice of such breach; or

5) Employee’s conviction of, indictment for or entering of
a guilty plea or plea of no contest or nolo contendere
with respect to any felony or any crime involving an
act of moral turpitude.

The Company may terminate this Agreement pursuant to a
Termination for Cause at any time immediately upon notice to
Employee.

(il))  Termination by the Company without Cause. The Company may
terminate Employee’s employment without Cause (i.e., for any reason other than

those described in Sections 4(c)(i) and 4(d) (“Termination without Cause”) at
any time upon written notice to Employee. If the Employment Period expires
because the Expiration Date has been reached while Employee remains
employed, neither that nor any subsequent termination of Employee’s
employment by the Company shall be considered a Termination without Cause.

(d) Death and Disability. Employee’s employment shall terminate

immediately upon Employee’s death and the Company may terminate this Agreement upon
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Employee if, by virtue of a physical or mental condition,
Employee is unable to perform the essential functions of her work under this Agreement, with
or without reasonable accommodation, for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days in any
three hundred and sixty-five (365) day period (“Disability”’). Any question as to the existence of
the Employee’s Disability as to which the Employee and the Company cannot agree shall be
determined in writing by a qualified independent physician selected by the Company and
reasonable acceptable to the Employee. If the Employee and the Company cannot agree as to a
qualified independent physician, each shall appoint such
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a physician and those two physicians shall select a third who shall make such determination in
writing. The determination of Disability made in writing to the Company and the Employee
shall be final and conclusive for all purposes of this Agreement.

(e) Obligations upon Termination.

6 In the event of a resignation by Employee without Good Reason, as described in
Section 4(a), all of the parties’ respective rights and obligations hereunder shall immediately
terminate upon the expiration of the notice period required under Section 4(a) or upon notice by
the Company waiving such notice, except that (A) Employee’s obligations and the Company’s
rights under Sections 5 through 12 of this Agreement shall survive such termination and (B) the
Company shall pay to Employee only the Base Salary and, in accordance with Company policy,
together with any unreimbursed Business Expenses as of the date of termination (collectively,
the “Accrued Benefits™).

(i1) In the event of a Termination for Cause, as described in Section 4(c)(i), all of the
parties’ respective rights and obligations hereunder shall terminate upon the effective date of
such termination, except that (A) Employee’s obligations and the Company’s rights under
Sections 5 through 12 of this Agreement shall survive such termination and (B) the Company
shall pay to Employee only the Accrued Benefits.

(iii))  In the event of a Termination without Cause, as described in Section 4(c)(ii), or
Employee’s resignation for Good Reason pursuant to Section 4(b), all of the parties’ respective
rights and obligations hereunder shall terminate upon the effective date of such termination
pursuant to Section 4(c)(ii) or Section 4(b) as the case may be, except that (A) Employee’s
obligations and the Company’s rights under Sections 5 through 12 of this Agreement shall
survive such termination; (B) the Company shall pay Employee the Accrued Benefits; (C) the
Company shall pay Employee, as severance, an amount equal to six (6) months of Employee’s
then-current Base Salary payable in regular installments in accordance with the Company’s
general payroll practices; and (D) the Company shall provide a payment in the amount equal to
the premium for COBRA benefits under the Company’s group health plan for six (6) months,
which the Employee may at Employee’s option, use to procure continuing benefits, payable in
monthly installments on the first pay date for each month (the payments under Clauses (C) and
(D) are collectively referred to as the “Severance Payment’). The payment of the Severance
Payment under this Section 4(e)(iii) shall be conditioned upon Employee providing an effective
execution of a full release of claims against the Company in a form reasonably satisfactory to
the Company. The Company shall specify a period, not to exceed forty-five (45) days following
termination, during which Employee may review, consider and return such release and may
specify a period of up to seven days within which Employee may revoke the release following
execution of the same (the “Review and Revocation Period’). The payment of the Severance
Payment installments shall commence as of the first payroll period following the release
becoming irrevocable and the first payment shall include all installments accrued from the date
of termination of employment, provided that if the Review and Revocation Period spans two (2)
calendar years, then the Severance Payment installments shall not commence before the first
payroll period in the second calendar year and the first payment shall include all installments
accrued from the date of termination of employment, regardless of the year in which the release
is signed and returned.

(iv)  Inthe event of Employee’s death or Disability, as described
in Section 4(d), all of the parties’ respective rights and obligations hereunder shall
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immediately terminate upon the effective date of such termination pursuant to Section 4(d),
except that (A) Employee’s obligations and the Company’s rights under Sections 5 through 12
of this Agreement shall survive such termination; (B) the Company shall pay to Employee the
Accrued Benefits, and (C) the Company shall provide a payment in the amount equal to the
premium for COBRA benefits under the Company’s group health plan for six (6) months, which
the Employee or her estate, if applicable, may use to procure continuing benefits, payable in
monthly installments on the first pay date for each month.

v) Except as otherwise required by law (e.g., COBRA) or as specifically provided
herein, all of Employee’s rights to salary, severance, fringe benefits and bonuses hereunder (if
any) shall cease upon termination for any reason.

(vi)  Upon termination of Employee’s employment hereunder for any reason,
Employee shall promptly resign from all other positions with the Company and its affiliates.

5. Acknowledgments.

(a) Employee acknowledges and agrees that as a result and as part of Employee’s
employment with the Company, she has received and will receive knowledge and expertise in
the Business of the Company that is special and unique. As used in this Agreement, the term
“Business” shall mean the business of (i) originating mortgages, lending money or other
financing, in each case, for the purpose of acquiring, developing or otherwise financing real
estate and related assets or the operation of a real estate investment fund or such other fund, real
estate investment trust or other entity that participates in the foregoing described real estate-
related activities within the United States, whether through origination activities or in the
secondary market (including, without limitation, through the acquisition of real estate related
loans or interests therein) or (ii) Fundraising for, on behalf of, or with respect to persons (within
the meaning of Section 7701 of the Internal Revenue Code) (“Persons”) engaged in the
activities referenced in Clause (i).

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Fundraising” means any action of a Person
to secure third-party equity investments in a commercial business venture or investment fund,
including but not limited to direct and indirect solicitation, marketing and distribution of
investment material related to such commercial business venture or investment fund.

(©) For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Confidential Information” means any
confidential or proprietary information of the Company, which is not already or does not
become generally available to the public (but not through any breach of confidentiality by
Employee), whether contained in documents, electronic media or other forms, including, but not
limited to, information about materials, procedures, inventions, processes, manufacturing,
expertise, customer lists, potential customer lists, customer data, financial data, vendors,
marketing plans, and trade secrets. Confidential Information shall also include personal
information of the Company’s customers, clients, employees, and vendors (“Personal
Information”).

(d)  For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Territory” means any state or country
(other than the USA) within which the Company has conducted any aspect of the Business
during the then most recent two (2) years of Employee’s employment with the Company.
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(e) Employee acknowledges and agrees that the restrictive covenants and other continuing
obligations in this Agreement are reasonable and necessary and that consideration and
compensation provided to Employee pursuant to this Agreement constitute good and sufficient
consideration for Employee’s agreements and covenants in Sections 6 and 7.

69} For purposes of Sections 5 through 8, the term “Company” includes both the Company
and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and any entities managed by the Company or any of it
direct or indirect subsidiaries.

6. Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation.

(a) Employee acknowledges that, in the course of her employment with the Company she
will become familiar with the Company’s and its respective predecessors’ trade secrets and with
other Confidential Information concerning the Company and its respective predecessors and that
her services have been and will be of special, unique and extraordinary value to the Company.
Employee agrees that, in consideration of her employment as contemplated under this
Agreement and all compensation and benefits being provided herein, it is both reasonable and
fair as well as necessary for the protection of the Company’s confidential information, good will
in the marketplace, and other protectable business interests, that she be subject to certain
limitations in her activities in the event of this Agreement’s termination by either party for any
reason.

(b) Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing, Employee agrees that during her
employment by the Company and for a period of six (6) months following termination of
employment for any reason, she will not (i) engage in, sell or provide any products or services,
within the Territory, which are the same as or similar to or otherwise competitive with the
products and services sold or provided by the Company in connection with the Business; (ii)
own, acquire, or control any interest, financial or otherwise, in any entity or business engaged
within the Territory in selling or providing the same, similar or otherwise competitive services
or products which the Company is selling or providing in connection with the Business; or (iii)
act or provide services as an officer, consultant or advisor or loan or otherwise provide
financing or financial assistance of any kind, to any third party who is or is attempting, directly
or indirectly, to engage in any of the activities listed in Clauses (i) or (ii) above, or Section 6(c)
(ii1); provided that nothing in this Subsection (b) shall prohibit Employee from owning less than
five percent (5%) of the outstanding shares of any public company as long as Employee has no
other role with such company.

(©) In addition, in consideration of the foregoing, Employee agrees that during her
employment by the Company and for a period of six (6) months following termination of
employment for any reason, Employee shall not, directly or indirectly, through another person
or entity (i) induce, attempt to induce, or solicit any employee of the Company to terminate her
employment with the Company, or in any way interfere with the relationship between the
Company, on the one hand, and any employee thereof, on the other hand, (ii) employ, hire,
induce, attempt to induce, or solicit the employment of any former employee of the Company
until six (6) months after such employee’s employment relationship with the Company has been
terminated, (iii) call on, solicit, service, divert or take away or attempt to call on, solicit, service,
divert or take away any current or prospective customer, supplier, contractor, designer, licensee,
distributor, developer, service provider or other business relation of the Company with respect
to products or services related to the Business or induce any of such parties to cease doing
business with the Company, or in
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any way interfere with the relationship between any such current or prospective customer,
supplier, contractor, designer, licensee, distributor, developer, service provider or business
relation, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, or (iv) make any statement or do
any act to impair, prejudice or destroy the goodwill of the Company, to prejudice or impair the
relationship or dealing between the Company and any of its customers, suppliers, contractors,
designers, licensees, employees, distributors, developers, service providers or other business
relations, or to cause existing or potential customers of the Company to make use of the services
or purchase the services or products of any competitive business.

7. Nondisclosure and Nonuse of Confidential Information; Nondisparagement.

(a) Employee acknowledges and agrees that she will be afforded access to
Confidential Information which could have an adverse effect on the Company and the Business
if it is used in an unauthorized manner and/or disclosed. Employee will not, at any time, either
during the Employment Period or thereafter, disclose or use any Confidential Information, or
permit any person to use, examine or make copies of any Confidential Information, except as
may be required in her duties on behalf of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Employee
agrees to take reasonable measures to protect the secrecy of, and avoid the disclosure and the
unauthorized use of, any Confidential Information.

(b) Employee shall deliver to the Company at the termination of the
Employment Period, or at any time the Company may request, all memoranda, notes, plans,
records, reports, files, electronic data, computer tapes, software and other documents and data
(and copies thereof) that is Confidential Information or Personal Information or Work Product
(each as defined herein) or other information relating to the Business of the Company which
Employee may then possess or have under her control. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Employee will have the right to retain and remove all personal property and effects which are
owned by Employee.

(¢c) Employee agrees that she will not view or access any Personal
Information except as needed in the course of her job duties and responsibilities for the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(d) Employee agrees not to make, or cause any other person to make, any
public statement that criticizes or disparages the Company, or its officers, employees, directors
or products. Nothing set forth herein shall be interpreted to prohibit Employee from responding
publicly to incorrect public statements, making truthful statements when required by law,
subpoena, court order, or the like and/or from responding to any inquiry about this Agreement
or its underlying facts and circumstances by any regulatory or investigatory organization and/or
from making any truthful statements in the course of any litigation.

(e) Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1833(b), Employee will not be held criminally or
civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret of the
Company that (i) is made (A) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official,
either directly or indirectly, or to Employee’s attorney and (B) solely for the purpose of
reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (ii) is made in a complaint or other
document that is filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. If
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Employee files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of
law, Employee may disclose the trade secret to Employee’s attorney and use the trade secret
information in the court proceeding, if Employee files any document containing the trade secret
under seal and does not disclose the trade secret except under court order. Nothing in this
Agreement is intended to conflict with 18 U.S.C. § 1833(b) or create liability for disclosures of
trade secrets that are expressly allowed by such section.

8. Inventions and Patents. Employee agrees that all inventions, innovations,
improvements, technical information, certifications, systems, software developments, methods,
designs, analyses, drawings, reports, service marks, trademarks, trade names, logos and all
similar or related information (whether patentable or unpatentable) which relates to the
Business, research and development or existing or future products or services and which are
conceived, developed or made by Employee (whether or not during usual business hours and
whether or not alone or in-conjunction with any other person) in the course of her employment
with the Company or relationship with the Company or any predecessor, together with all patent
applications, letters patent, trademark, trade name and service mark applications or registrations,
copyrights and reissues thereof that may be granted for or upon any of the foregoing
(collectively referred to herein as “Work Product”) belong to the Company. Employee hereby
assigns and agrees to assign to the Company any rights she may have or acquire in such Work
Product, whether created before, on, after or prior to the Effective Time. Employee agrees that
her copyrightable works prepared for the Company are “supplementary works” or “works for
hire,” as defined in Title 17 of the United States Code, and if any such works are deemed not to
be a supplementary work or work for hire, then Employee hereby assigns and agrees to assign
her entire right, title and interest in the copyright to such works to the Company. Employee will
take reasonable steps to promptly disclose such Work Product to the Company and perform all
actions reasonably requested by the Company (whether during or after the Employment Period)
to establish and confirm such ownership (including the execution and delivery of assignments,
consents, powers of attorney and other instruments) and to provide reasonable assistance to the
Company in connection with the prosecution of any applications for patents, trademarks, trade
names, service marks or reissues thereof or in the prosecution or defense of interferences
relating to any Work Product, to the extent the assistance of Employee is reasonably required to
prosecute such applications or reissues thereof or to prosecute or defend such interferences.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 8 does not require Employee to assign or offer to
assign any of Employee’s rights to an invention for which no equipment, supplies, facilities, or
trade secret information of the Company was used and which was developed entirely on
Employee’s own time, unless (a) the invention relates (i) directly to the business of the
Company, or (ii) to the Company’s actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development,
or (b) the invention results from any work performed by Employee for the Company.

9. Enforcement.

(a) If Employee breaches or threatens to commit a breach of any of the
covenants set forth in Sections 6, 7, and 8 above, then the Company shall have the right to seek
to have the covenants in Sections 6, 7, and 8 specifically enforced against Employee, including
temporary restraining orders and injunctions by any court of competent jurisdiction, in order to
enforce, or prevent any violations of, the provisions hereof (without posting a bond or other
security), it being agreed by Employee that any breach or threatened breach by Employee of
Sections 6, 7, and 8 would cause irreparable injury to the Company
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and that money damages would not provide an adequate remedy to the Company. The
prevailing party is entitled to its attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in relation to any action
addressing Sections 6, 7, and 8 of this Agreement. In addition, the Company shall not be
required to post any bond or other surety as a condition to the issuance of any temporary
restraining order or injunction, and Employee irrevocably waives any such requirement of any
statute or applicable law.

(b) If, during the enforcement of any or all of the covenants and provisions
set forth in Sections 6, 7, and 8 above, any court of competent jurisdiction enters a final
judgment that declares that the duration, scope, or area restrictions stated therein are
unreasonable under circumstances then existing, are invalid, or are otherwise unenforceable,
then the parties hereto agree that the maximum enforceable duration, scope, or area reasonable
under such circumstances shall be substituted for the stated duration, scope, or area, and that the
court making the determination of invalidity or unenforceability shall have the power to revise
the scope, duration, or area of the term or provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to
replace any invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a term or provision that is valid and
enforceable and that comes the closest to expressing the intention of the invalid or
unenforceable term or provision, and this Agreement shall be enforceable as so modified to
cover the maximum duration, scope, or area permitted by law.

(©) If any of the provisions of Sections 6, 7, and 8 are violated, then the time
limitations set forth in those sections shall be extended for a period of time equal to the period
of time during which such breach occurs, and, in the event the Company is required to seek
relief from such breach before any court, board or other tribunal, then the time limitation shall
be extended for a period of time equal to the pendency of such proceedings, including all
appeals.

(d) The provisions of Sections 5 through 12 shall survive any termination of
Employee’s employment and termination of this Agreement; provided, however, if the
Employment Period expires because the Expiration Date has been reached while Employee
remains employed and the Company refuses to extend the Employment Period under this
Agreement or another employment agreement with material terms (other than the length of the
term) as favorable to Employee as in this Agreement, then Employee’s obligations under
Section 6 shall expire as of the Expiration Date.

10. Representations and Warranties. Employee hereby represents and warrants to
the Company that (a) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Employee
does not and will not conflict with, breach, violate or cause a default under any agreement,
contract or instrument to which Employee is a party or any judgment, order or decree to which
Employee is subject, (b) Employee is not and will not be a party to or bound by any
employment agreement, consulting agreement, non-compete agreement, confidentiality
agreement or similar agreement with any other person or entity that is inconsistent with the
provisions of this Agreement and (c) this Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of
Employee.

11.  Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed duly given (a) on the date of delivery if delivered personally, or if by facsimile
or e-mail or (b) on the first business day following the date of dispatch if delivered utilizing an
overnight delivery service or (¢) on the date of receipt if mailed. All notices hereunder shall be
delivered to the addresses set forth below as follows:
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If to Employee:
The last address on file with the Company
If to the Company:

Broadmark Realty Capital, Inc.

1420 Fifth Ave, Suite 2000

Seattle, WA 98101 Facsimile: 206-623-2213
Attention: President

with a copy to:

Bryan Cave Leighton Paisner LLP
1201 W Peachtree St NW

14th Floor

Atlanta, GA 30309

Facsimile: 404-572-6999
Attention: Eliot Robinson

or to such other address as the parties hereto may designate in writing to the other in
accordance with this Section 11. Any party may change the address to which notices are to
be sent by giving written notice of such change of address to the other parties in the manner
above provided for giving notice.

12. General Provisions.

(a) Severability. It is the desire and intent of the parties hereto that the
provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the laws and
public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought. Accordingly, if any
particular provision of this Agreement shall be adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction
to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable for any reason, such provision, as to such jurisdiction,
shall be ineffective, without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement or
affecting the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or affecting the wvalidity or
enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such
provision could be more narrowly drawn so as not to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable in
such jurisdiction, it shall, as to such jurisdiction, be so narrowly drawn, without invalidating the
remaining provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such
provision in any other jurisdiction.

(b) Complete Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes and
cancels all other contracts, agreements, representations and understandings between the parties
or their affiliates, whether written or oral, expressed or implied, including without limitation the
offer letter dated November 13, 2019 from the Company to Employee. This Agreement shall
bind and inure to the benefit of each party, their parent companies, subsidiaries and affiliates,
and each of their respective officers, directors, shareholders, investors, business associates,
owners, partners, employees, representatives, agents, contractors and assigns. The terms of this
Agreement are the result of negotiations in which each party had the opportunity to review and
revise any term herein.
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Consequently, this Agreement shall not be construed for or against either party as a result of the
manner in which it was drafted.

©) Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise provided herein, this
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Employee and the Company and its
respective successors, permitted assigns, personal representatives, heirs and estates, as the case
may be; provided, however, that the rights and obligations of Employee under this Agreement
shall not be assigned without the prior written consent of the Company and the Company may
assign the rights and obligations of this Agreement to any affiliate of the Company or any
successor or permitted assign of the Company’s business or assets, and such assignment by the
Company will not constitute a termination under Section 4.

(d) Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT, AND ALL CLAIMS, DISPUTES
AND CONTROVERSIES RELATED HERETO OR ARISING HEREFROM, SHALL BE
GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED, APPLIED AND ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, WITHOUT REGARD TO
CONFLICT OF LAW PRINCIPLES. NO DEFENSE, COUNTERCLAIM OR RIGHT OF
SETOFF GIVEN OR ALLOWED BY THE LAWS OF ANY OTHER STATE OR
JURISDICTION, OR ARISING OUT OF THE ENACTMENT, MODIFICATION OR
REPEAL OF ANY LAW, REGULATION, ORDINANCE OR DECREE OF ANY FOREIGN
JURISDICTION, BE INTERPOSED IN ANY ACTION HEREON. THE PROVISIONS OF
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE NOTWITHSTANDING THE
EXISTENCE OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION OF EMPLOYEE AGAINST
COMPANY, WHETHER PREDICATED ON THIS AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE.

(e) Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. EMPLOYEE HEREBY
VOLUNTARILY, UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY AGREES AND SUBMITS
TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE FEDERAL AND STATE COURTS OF THE STATE OF
WASHINGTON AND APPELLATE COURTS FROM ANY THEREOF FOR ANY CLAIM,
ACTION OR DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, AND
WAIVES AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT ANY DEFENSE THAT ANY SUCH COURT
LACKS JURISDICTION, VENUE IS IMPROPER, OR THE FORUM IS INCONVENIENT.
EMPLOYEE AND COMPANY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND KNOWINGLY WAIVE
(TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW) ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY
JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY
COUNTERCLAIM) ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER
AGREEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS RELATED HERETO OR THERETO, INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING: (I) TO ENFORCE OR
DEFEND ANY RIGHTS UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR
ANY INSTRUMENT, DOCUMENT OR AGREEMENT DELIVERED OR WHICH MAY IN
THE FUTURE BE DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR (II) ARISING FROM
ANY DISPUTE OR CONTROVERSY IN CONNECTION WITH OR RELATED TO THIS
AGREEMENT. COMPANY AND EMPLOYEE AGREE THAT ANY SUCH ACTION OR
PROCEEDING SHALL BE TRIED BEFORE A COURT AND NOT A JURY.

(f)  Withholdings. All payments hereunder are subject to withholding for
applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes and any other deductions
authorized by Employee or required by law.
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(2) Amendment and Waiver. The provisions of this Agreement may be
amended and waived only with the prior written consent of the Board or the Compensation
Committee and Employee, and no course of conduct or failure or delay in enforcing the
provisions of this Agreement shall affect the validity, binding effect or enforceability of this
Agreement or any provision hereof.

(h) Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted
for convenience only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement.

(1) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

Q) Business Days. If any time period for giving notice or taking action
hereunder expires on a day which is not a business day in the State of Washington, the time
period for giving notice or taking action shall be automatically extended to the immediately
following business day.

(k) Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements. All
representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall survive the termination of this
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, Employee’s obligations under Sections 6 through 8
hereof shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason (including, without limitation,
upon nonrenewal of the agreement by either party).

Q) Section 409A. To the extent applicable, this Agreement shall be
interpreted in accordance with, and incorporate the terms and conditions required by, Section
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Department of Treasury
regulations and other interpretive guidelines issued thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A4”).
All payments under this Agreement are intended to be exempt from Section 409A to the
maximum extent possible, and to the extent they are not exempt, they are intended to be
compliant with Section 409A, and all provisions of this Agreement shall be construed consistent
with that intent. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement: (i) to the
extent necessary to comply with the exemption from Section 409A under Treasury Regulations
Section 1.409A-1(b)(9) or to comply with Section 409A, amounts that are payable in reference
to Employee’s termination of employment shall be deemed to be payable in reference to
“separation from service” within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.409A-1(h); (ii)
if, on the date on which Employee incurs a separation from service, Employee is a “specified
employee” as defined in Section 409A, any amount that constitutes deferred compensation and
that becomes payable by reason of such separation from service (including any amount
described in Clause (1)) shall be deferred until the earlier of the first day of the seventh month
following the month that includes the separation from service or Employee’s death; (iii) for
purposes of Section 409A, Employee’s right to receive installment payments pursuant to this
Agreement shall be treated as a right to receive a series of separate and distinct payments; and
(iv) to the extent that any reimbursement of expenses or in-kind benefits constitutes “deferred
compensation” under Section 409A, such reimbursement or benefit shall be provided no later
than December 31 of the year following the year in which the expense was incurred. The
amount of expenses reimbursed in one year shall not affect the amount eligible for
reimbursement in any subsequent year. The amount of any in-kind benefits provided in one year
shall not affect the amount of in-kind benefits provided in any other year. While the
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Company intends that no payment under this Agreement shall be subject to tax under Code
Section 409A, the Company provides no guarantee of tax consequences to Employee and
Employee shall be responsible for her own taxes.

(m)  Nouns and Pronouns. Whenever the context may require, any pronouns
used herein shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine or neuter forms, and the
singular form of nouns and pronouns shall include the plural and vice-versa.

(n) Construction. Where specific language (such as the word
“including”) is used to clarify by example a general statement contained herein, such specific
language shall not be deemed to modify, limit or restrict in any manner the construction of the
general statement to which it relates. The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to
be the language chosen by the parties hereto to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict
construction shall be applied against any party hereto.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Employment
Agreement as of the date first written above.

BROADMARK REALTY CAPITAL INC.

By:

[s/ Jeffrey B. Pyatt

Name: Jeffrey B. Pyatt

Title: Chief Executive Officer

LINDA D. KOA

/s/ Linda Koa
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Exhibit 10.5

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”’), dated as of November 19,
2020 (the “Effective Date”), is entered into by and between Broadmark Realty Capital Inc., a
Maryland corporation (the “Company”), and Daniel Hirsty, an individual (“Employee™).

RECITALS
A. Employee is currently employed by the Company;

B. The Company and Employee desire to modify the terms of Employee’s
employment as of the Effective Date and provide for Employee’s continued employment with
the Company upon such modified terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this
Agreement;

C. As an executive of the Company, Employee has had and shall continue to have
access to valuable confidential and proprietary information used in the business of the
Company, including financial data, customer data, operational data, trade secrets and other
intellectual property that if disclosed to or used by competitors or potential competitors would
cause irreparable harm to the Company, and as a result, Employee and the Company desire to
provide the Company with adequate protection from the unauthorized disclosure or use of the
Company’s confidential and proprietary information; and

D. Effective as of the Effective Date, Employee wishes to accept continued
employment with the Company upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Employment. The Company shall continue to employ Employee, and
Employee accepts continued employment with the Company, upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement. Employee’s term of employment hereunder shall continue until
December 31, 2023 (the “Expiration Date”); provided, however, that the Company or
Employee may terminate this Agreement, the term of Employee’s employment under this
Agreement and Employee’s employment at any time as provided in Section 4 hereof. The
term of Employee’s employment hereunder is referred to as the “Employment Period.” If the
Employment Period ends because the term of this Agreement expires at the Expiration Date,
such expiration shall not automatically result in Employee’s termination of employment and
Employee shall thereupon remain employed by the Company without an employment
agreement unless his employment is otherwise terminated. The primary place of Employee’s
employment will be in the Company’s home




offices in the Seattle, Washington area, subject to the Company’s policies regarding working
from a remote location and subject to reasonable business travel requirements.

2. Position and Duties.

(a) During the Employment Period, Employee shall serve as the Chief
Credit Officer of the Company, and shall have the duties, responsibilities and authority of
Chief Credit Officer. Employee acknowledges and agrees he shall perform his duties and
responsibilities faithfully and to the best of his abilities in a businesslike manner.

(b) Employee shall report to the Chief Executive Officer and the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”), shall work on a full-time basis for the Company and
shall devote substantially all of his business time, attention, skills and energies to the business
and affairs of the Company. During the Employment Period, Employee shall not engage in
any business activity which, in the reasonable judgment of the Board, conflicts with the duties
of Employee hereunder, whether or not such activity is pursued for gain, profit or other
pecuniary advantage. Employee agrees that he shall promptly report any potential conflict in
writing to the Board, affirmatively disclosing any outside business opportunity that presents
even the appearance of a conflict.

3. Base Salary and Benefits.

(a) Base Salary. During the Employment Period, Employee’s base salary
shall be $200,000 per annum (the “Base Salary”), which shall be payable in regular
installments in accordance with the Company’s general payroll practices. Annual
compensation review and increases, if any, will be subject to approval by the Board.
However, the Base Salary may not be decreased during the Employment Period other than as
part of an across-the-board salary reduction for executive officers of the Company.

(b) Annual Bonus. At the conclusion of each fiscal year (commencing with
the 2020 fiscal year) during the Employment Period, in addition to the Base Salary, Employee
may be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus (the “Annual Bonus”) in an amount to be
established by the Board or the Compensation Committee. The amount of the Annual Bonus
will be based on achievement of certain annual performance targets and other objectives
established by the Board or the Compensation Committee, and the target Annual Bonus,
assuming that all performance goals are satisfied at the target level of performance, shall be
equal to annual Base Salary for the performance year (which target amount shall be subject to
the annual compensation review and increase (but not decrease) by the Board or the
Compensation Committee). Any Annual Bonus will be paid promptly following the
completion of the annual audit for the calendar year to which it relates, and in all events no
later than March 15th of the calendar year following the calendar year to which it relates.

(©) Vacation. During the Employment Period, Employee shall be entitled

to paid vacation in accordance with Company policy.
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(d) Expenses. The Company shall reimburse Employee for all reasonable
expenses incurred by him in the course of performing his duties under this Agreement which
are consistent with the Company’s policies in effect from time to time with respect to travel,
entertainment and other business expenses (“Business Expenses”), subject to the Company’s
requirements with respect to reporting and documentation of such expenses.

(e) Benefits. Employee will be eligible to participate in such health care,
insurance, retirement, and other employee benefit plans as are generally made available by
the Company to its employees, subject to the terms of said plan or plans. The terms of such
plans are subject to change or termination at any time, with or without notice, at the discretion
of the Company.

® Clawback. All incentive compensation (including without limitation,
any Annual Bonuses or other performance-based compensation) paid or payable to
Employee, whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, shall be subject to any
clawback, recoupment or compensation recovery policy adopted by the Board or the
Compensation Committee, regardless of whether the policy is adopted after the compensation
is paid or payable.

4. Termination. The Employment Period shall terminate as follows:

(a) Termination by Employee without Good Reason. In the event that
Employee terminates his employment for any reason other than for Good Reason, Employee

must provide the Company with written notice of such resignation. Employee will use his
best efforts to provide the Company with such written notice at least sixty (60) days in
advance of the effective date of the termination. In the event that at least sixty (60) days’
advance written notice is not provided, Employee agrees to be available as a resource to the
Company for the transition of his responsibilities for a number of days equal to sixty (60)
minus the number of days’ written notice provided.

(b) Termination by Employee for Good Reason. Employee may terminate
his employment hereunder for Good Reason. “Good Reason” means (i) a material and

sustained diminution in Employee’s duties under this Agreement or a reduction of
Employee’s title, (ii) a material breach by the Company of this Agreement, (iii) relocation of
Employee’s principal place of employment to a location that is more than fifty (50) miles
from Employee’s place of employment as of the Effective Date, without Employee’s consent,
(iv) a reduction in the Base Salary, unless such reduction is part of an across the board
reduction for senior executive officers of the Company, or (v) a material reduction in the
Employee’s target Annual Bonus; provided that any such action shall not constitute Good
Reason unless (A) Employee provides written notice to the Company of any such action
within thirty (30) days of the date on which such action first occurs and provides the
Company with thirty (30) days to remedy such action (the “Cure Period”), (B) the Company
fails to remedy such action within the Cure Period, and (C) Employee resigns within thirty

(30) days of the expiration of the Cure Period. If the Employment
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Period expires because the Expiration Date has been reached while Employee remains
employed, neither that nor any subsequent resignation of Employee’s employment with the
Company shall be considered a termination for Good Reason.

(©) Termination by the Company.

(i) Termination by the Company for Cause. The Company may
terminate Employee’s employment for Cause (“7Termination for Cause”).

“Cause” shall mean any of the following:

M

2

3)

“

)

Any act of fraud, embezzlement, theft, intentional
dishonesty, misrepresentation or breach of fiduciary
duty with respect to the Company or its subsidiaries;

Employee’s gross negligence or willful misconduct in
the performance of his duties to the Company;

Failure or refusal to follow any reasonable directive of
the Board or the officer to whom Employee reports, and
if such failure and refusal is curable, if such failure or
refusal is not cured within fifteen (15) days after the
Company’s written notice to Employee of such failure
or refusal;

Employee’s (1) breach of Sections 6, 7 or 8 of this
Agreement; (2) breach of any material written policy of
the Company which if curable, is not cured within
fifteen (15) days after the Company’s written notice of
such breach; or (3) material breach of this Agreement,
which if curable, is not cured within fifteen (15) days
after the Company’s written notice of such breach; or

Employee’s conviction of, indictment for or entering of
a guilty plea or plea of no contest or nolo contendere
with respect to any felony or any crime involving an act
of moral turpitude.

The Company may terminate this Agreement pursuant to a
Termination for Cause at any time immediately upon notice to
Employee.

(i)  Termination by the Company without Cause. The Company
may terminate Employee’s employment without Cause (i.e., for any reason

other than those described in Sections 4(c)(i) and 4(d) (“Termination
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without Cause”) at any time upon written notice to Employee. If the
Employment Period expires because the Expiration Date has been reached
while Employee remains employed, neither that nor any subsequent
termination of Employee’s employment by the Company shall be considered a
Termination without Cause.

(d) Death and Disability. Employee’s employment shall terminate immedi-
ately upon Employee’s death and the Company may terminate this Agreement upon thirty
(30) days’ prior written notice to Employee if, by virtue of a physical or mental condition,
Employee is unable to perform the essential functions of his work under this Agreement, with
or without reasonable accommodation, for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days in any
three hundred and sixty-five (365) day period (“Disability”). Any question as to the existence
of the Employee’s Disability as to which the Employee and the Company cannot agree shall
be determined in writing by a qualified independent physician selected by the Company and
reasonable acceptable to the Employee. If the Employee and the Company cannot agree as to
a qualified independent physician, each shall appoint such a physician and those two
physicians shall select a third who shall make such determination in writing. The
determination of Disability made in writing to the Company and the Employee shall be final
and conclusive for all purposes of this Agreement.

(e) Obligations upon Termination.

(i) In the event of a resignation by Employee without Good
Reason, as described in Section 4(a), all of the parties’ respective rights and
obligations hereunder shall immediately terminate upon the expiration of the
notice period required under Section 4(a) or upon notice by the Company
waiving such notice, except that (A) Employee’s obligations and the
Company’s rights under Sections 5 through 12 of this Agreement shall survive
such termination and (B) the Company shall pay to Employee only the Base
Salary and, in accordance with Company policy, together with any
unreimbursed Business Expenses as of the date of termination (collectively,
the “Accrued Benefits™).

(i1) In the event of a Termination for Cause, as described in Section
4(c)(i), all of the parties’ respective rights and obligations hereunder shall
terminate upon the effective date of such termination, except that (A)
Employee’s obligations and the Company’s rights under Sections 5 through 12
of this Agreement shall survive such termination and (B) the Company shall
pay to Employee only the Accrued Benefits.

(iii))  In the event of a Termination without Cause, as described in
Section 4(c)(ii), or Employee’s resignation for Good Reason pursuant to
Section 4(b), all of the parties’ respective rights and obligations hereunder
shall terminate upon the effective date of such termination pursuant to Section

4(c)(ii) or Section 4(b) as the case may be, except that (A)
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Employee’s obligations and the Company’s rights under Sections 5 through 12
of this Agreement shall survive such termination; (B) the Company shall pay
Employee the Accrued Benefits; (C) the Company shall pay Employee, as
severance, an amount equal to six (6) months of Employee’s then-current Base
Salary payable in regular installments in accordance with the Company’s
general payroll practices; and (D) the Company shall provide a payment in the
amount equal to the premium for COBRA benefits under the Company’s
group health plan for six (6) months, which the Employee may at Employee’s
option, use to procure continuing benefits, payable in monthly installments on
the first pay date for each month (the payments under Clauses (C) and (D) are
collectively referred to as the “Severance Payment’). The payment of the
Severance Payment under this Section 4(e)(iii) shall be conditioned upon
Employee providing an effective execution of a full release of claims against
the Company in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Company. The Company
shall specify a period, not to exceed forty-five (45) days following termination,
during which Employee may review, consider and return such release and may
specify a period of up to seven days within which Employee may revoke the
release following execution of the same (the “Review and Revocation
Period’). The payment of the Severance Payment installments shall
commence as of the first payroll period following the release becoming
irrevocable and the first payment shall include all installments accrued from
the date of termination of employment, provided that if the Review and
Revocation Period spans two (2) calendar years, then the Severance Payment
installments shall not commence before the first payroll period in the second
calendar year and the first payment shall include all installments accrued from
the date of termination of employment, regardless of the year in which the
release is signed and returned.

(iv)  In the event of Employee’s death or Disability, as described in
Section 4(d), all of the parties’ respective rights and obligations hereunder
shall immediately terminate upon the effective date of such termination
pursuant to Section 4(d), except that (A) Employee’s obligations and the
Company’s rights under Sections 5 through 12 of this Agreement shall survive
such termination; (B) the Company shall pay to Employee the Accrued
Benefits, and (C) the Company shall provide a payment in the amount equal to
the premium for COBRA benefits under the Company’s group health plan for
six (6) months, which the Employee or his estate, if applicable, may use to
procure continuing benefits, payable in monthly installments on the first pay
date for each month.

W) Except as otherwise required by law (e.g., COBRA) or as

specifically provided herein, all of Employee’s rights to salary, severance,
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fringe benefits and bonuses hereunder (if any) shall cease upon termination for
any reason.

(vi)  Upon termination of Employee’s employment hereunder for
any reason, Employee shall promptly resign from all other positions with the
Company and its affiliates.

5. Acknowledgments.

(a) Employee acknowledges and agrees that as a result and as part of
Employee’s employment with the Company, he has received and will receive knowledge and
expertise in the Business of the Company that is special and unique. As used in this
Agreement, the term “Business” shall mean the business of (i) originating mortgages, lending
money or other financing, in each case, for the purpose of acquiring, developing or otherwise
financing real estate and related assets or the operation of a real estate investment fund or
such other fund, real estate investment trust or other entity that participates in the foregoing
described real estate-related activities within the United States, whether through origination
activities or in the secondary market (including, without limitation, through the acquisition of
real estate related loans or interests therein) or (ii) Fundraising for, on behalf of, or with
respect to persons (within the meaning of Section 7701 of the Internal Revenue Code)
(“Persons”) engaged in the activities referenced in Clause (i). The Parties agree that a
business, venture, entity or company or division of any of the foregoing will be conclusively
presumed to be competitive for the purposes of Section 6 of this Agreement if a majority of
the annual revenue of the business, venture, entity or company or division of any of the
foregoing, measured over either the prior (i) five-year period or any (ii) shorter period of not
less than one year (or in the case of a business, venture, entity or company or division of any
of the foregoing, such shorter period than one year that it has been conducting business), is
derived from the Business, or in case of a new business, venture, entity or company or
division of any of the foregoing, a majority of annual revenue of which is reasonably
expected to be derived from the Business; provided, however, that will not necessarily be the
exclusive basis on which a business, venture, entity or company or division of any of the
foregoing may be considered to be competitive for the purposes of Section 6 of this
Agreement.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Fundraising” means any
action of a Person to secure third-party equity investments in a commercial business venture
or investment fund, including but not limited to direct and indirect solicitation, marketing and
distribution of investment material related to such commercial business venture or investment
fund.

(©) For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Confidential Information”
means any confidential or proprietary information of the Company, which is not already or
does not become generally available to the public (but not through any breach of
confidentiality by Employee), whether contained in documents, electronic media or other
forms, including, but not limited to, information about materials,
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procedures, inventions, processes, manufacturing, expertise, customer lists, potential
customer lists, customer data, financial data, vendors, marketing plans, and trade secrets.
Confidential Information shall also include personal information of the Company’s
customers, clients, employees, and vendors (“Personal Information™).

(d) For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Territory” means any
state or country (other than the USA) within which the Company has conducted any aspect of
the Business during the then most recent two (2) years of Employee’s employment with the
Company.

(e) Employee acknowledges and agrees that the restrictive covenants and
other continuing obligations in this Agreement are reasonable and necessary and that
consideration and compensation provided to Employee pursuant to this Agreement constitute
good and sufficient consideration for Employee’s agreements and covenants in Sections 6 and
7.

® For purposes of Sections 5 through 8, the term “Company” includes
both the Company and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and any entities managed by the
Company or any of it direct or indirect subsidiaries.

6. Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation.

(a) Employee acknowledges that, in the course of his employment with the
Company he will become familiar with the Company’s and its respective predecessors’ trade
secrets and with other Confidential Information concerning the Company and its respective
predecessors and that his services have been and will be of special, unique and extraordinary
value to the Company. Employee agrees that, in consideration of his employment as
contemplated under this Agreement and all compensation and benefits being provided herein,
it is both reasonable and fair as well as necessary for the protection of the Company’s
confidential information, good will in the marketplace, and other protectable business
interests, that he be subject to certain limitations in his activities in the event of this
Agreement’s termination by either party for any reason.

(b) Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing, Employee agrees that
during his employment by the Company and for a period of six (6) months following
termination of employment for any reason, he will not (i) engage in, sell or provide any
products or services, within the Territory, which are the same as or similar to or otherwise
competitive with the products and services sold or provided by the Company in connection
with the Business; (ii) own, acquire, or control any interest, financial or otherwise, in any
entity or business engaged within the Territory in selling or providing the same, similar or
otherwise competitive services or products which the Company is selling or providing in
connection with the Business; or (iii) act or provide services as an officer, consultant or
advisor or loan or otherwise provide financing or financial assistance of any kind, to any third
party who is or is attempting, directly or indirectly, to engage in any of the activities listed in
Clauses (i) or (ii) above, or Section 6(c)(iii); provided that nothing in this




Subsection (b) shall prohibit Employee from owning less than five percent (5%) of the
outstanding shares of any public company as long as Employee has no other role with such
company.

(c) In addition, in consideration of the foregoing, Employee agrees that
during his employment by the Company and for a period of twelve (12) months following
termination of employment for any reason, Employee shall not, directly or indirectly,
through another person or entity (i) induce, attempt to induce, or solicit any employee of the
Company to terminate his employment with the Company, or in any way interfere with the
relationship between the Company, on the one hand, and any employee thereof, on the other
hand, (ii) employ, hire, induce, attempt to induce, or solicit the employment of any former
employee of the Company until six (6) months after such employee’s employment
relationship with the Company has been terminated, (iii) call on, solicit, service, divert or take
away or attempt to call on, solicit, service, divert or take away any current or prospective
customer, supplier, contractor, designer, licensee, distributor, developer, service provider or
other business relation of the Company with respect to products or services related to the
Business or induce any of such parties to cease doing business with the Company, or in any
way interfere with the relationship between any such current or prospective customer,
supplier, contractor, designer, licensee, distributor, developer, service provider or business
relation, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, or (iv) make any statement or
do any act to impair, prejudice or destroy the goodwill of the Company, to prejudice or impair
the relationship or dealing between the Company and any of its customers, suppliers,
contractors, designers, licensees, employees, distributors, developers, service providers or
other business relations, or to cause existing or potential customers of the Company to make
use of the services or purchase the services or products of any competitive business.

7. Nondisclosure and Nonuse of Confidential Information;
Nondisparagement.

(a) Employee acknowledges and agrees that he will be afforded access to
Confidential Information which could have an adverse effect on the Company and the
Business if it is used in an unauthorized manner and/or disclosed. Employee will not, at any
time, either during the Employment Period or thereafter, disclose or use any Confidential
Information, or permit any person to use, examine or make copies of any Confidential
Information, except as may be required in his duties on behalf of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. Employee agrees to take reasonable measures to protect the secrecy of, and
avoid the disclosure and the unauthorized use of, any Confidential Information.

(b) Employee shall deliver to the Company at the termination of the
Employment Period, or at any time the Company may request, all memoranda, notes, plans,
records, reports, files, electronic data, computer tapes, software and other documents and data

(and copies thereof) that is Confidential Information or Personal Information or Work
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Product (each as defined herein) or other information relating to the Business of the Company
which Employee may then possess or have under his control. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Employee will have the right to retain and remove all personal property and effects which are
owned by Employee.

(©) Employee agrees that he will not view or access any Personal
Information except as needed in the course of his job duties and responsibilities for the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(d) Employee agrees not to make, or cause any other person to make, any
public statement that criticizes or disparages the Company, or its officers, employees,
directors or products. Nothing set forth herein shall be interpreted to prohibit Employee from
responding publicly to incorrect public statements, making truthful statements when required
by law, subpoena, court order, or the like and/or from responding to any inquiry about this
Agreement or its underlying facts and circumstances by any regulatory or investigatory
organization and/or from making any truthful statements in the course of any litigation.

(e) Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1833(b), Employee will not be held criminally
or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret
of the Company that (i) is made (A) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government
official, either directly or indirectly, or to Employee’s attorney and (B) solely for the purpose
of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (ii) is made in a complaint or
other document that is filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. If Employee files a
lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of law, Employee
may disclose the trade secret to Employee’s attorney and use the trade secret information in
the court proceeding, if Employee files any document containing the trade secret under seal
and does not disclose the trade secret except under court order. Nothing in this Agreement is
intended to conflict with 18 U.S.C. § 1833(b) or create liability for disclosures of trade secrets
that are expressly allowed by such section.

8. Inventions and Patents. Employee agrees that all inventions, innovations,
improvements, technical information, certifications, systems, software developments,
methods, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, service marks, trademarks, trade names, logos
and all similar or related information (whether patentable or unpatentable) which relates to
the Business, research and development or existing or future products or services and which
are conceived, developed or made by Employee (whether or not during usual business hours
and whether or not alone or in-conjunction with any other person) in the course of his
employment with the Company or relationship with the Company or any predecessor,
together with all patent applications, letters patent, trademark, trade name and service mark
applications or registrations, copyrights and reissues thereof that may be granted for or upon
any of the foregoing (collectively referred to hercin as “Work Product”) belong to the
Company. Employee hereby assigns and agrees to assign to the Company any rights he may

have or acquire in such Work Product, whether created before,
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on, after or prior to the Effective Time. Employee agrees that his copyrightable works
prepared for the Company are “supplementary works” or “works for hire,” as defined in Title
17 of the United States Code, and if any such works are deemed not to be a supplementary
work or work for hire, then Employee hereby assigns and agrees to assign his entire right,
title and interest in the copyright to such works to the Company. Employee will take
reasonable steps to promptly disclose such Work Product to the Company and perform all
actions reasonably requested by the Company (whether during or after the Employment
Period) to establish and confirm such ownership (including the execution and delivery of
assignments, consents, powers of attorney and other instruments) and to provide reasonable
assistance to the Company in connection with the prosecution of any applications for patents,
trademarks, trade names, service marks or reissues thereof or in the prosecution or defense of
interferences relating to any Work Product, to the extent the assistance of Employee is
reasonably required to prosecute such applications or reissues thereof or to prosecute or
defend such interferences. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 8 does not require
Employee to assign or offer to assign any of Employee’s rights to an invention for which no
equipment, supplies, facilities, or trade secret information of the Company was used and
which was developed entirely on Employee's own time, unless (a) the invention relates (i)
directly to the business of the Company, or (ii) to the Company's actual or demonstrably
anticipated research or development, or (b) the invention results from any work performed by
Employee for the Company.

9. Enforcement.

(a) If Employee breaches or threatens to commit a breach of any of the
covenants set forth in Sections 6, 7, and 8 above, then the Company shall have the right to
seek to have the covenants in Sections 6, 7, and 8 specifically enforced against Employee,
including temporary restraining orders and injunctions by any court of competent jurisdiction,
in order to enforce, or prevent any violations of, the provisions hereof (without posting a bond
or other security), it being agreed by Employee that any breach or threatened breach by
Employee of Sections 6, 7, and 8 would cause irreparable injury to the Company and that
money damages would not provide an adequate remedy to the Company. The prevailing party
is entitled to its attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in relation to any action addressing Sections
6, 7, and 8 of this Agreement. In addition, the Company shall not be required to post any
bond or other surety as a condition to the issuance of any temporary restraining order or
injunction, and Employee irrevocably waives any such requirement of any statute or
applicable law.

(b) If, during the enforcement of any or all of the covenants and provisions
set forth in Sections 6, 7, and 8 above, any court of competent jurisdiction enters a final
judgment that declares that the duration, scope, or area restrictions stated therein are
unreasonable under circumstances then existing, are invalid, or are otherwise unenforceable,
then the parties hereto agree that the maximum enforceable duration, scope, or area
reasonable under such circumstances shall be substituted for the stated duration, scope, or

area, and that the court making the determination of invalidity or unenforceability
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shall have the power to revise the scope, duration, or area of the term or provision, to delete
specific words or phrases, or to replace any invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a
term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes the closest to expressing the
intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, and this Agreement shall be
enforceable as so modified to cover the maximum duration, scope, or area permitted by law.

(c) If any of the provisions of Sections 6, 7, and 8§ are violated, then the
time limitations set forth in those sections shall be extended for a period of time equal to the
period of time during which such breach occurs, and, in the event the Company is required to
seek relief from such breach before any court, board or other tribunal, then the time limitation
shall be extended for a period of time equal to the pendency of such proceedings, including
all appeals.

(d) The provisions of Sections 5 through 12 shall survive any termination
of Employee’s employment and termination of this Agreement; provided, however, if the
Employment Period expires because the Expiration Date has been reached while Employee
remains employed and the Company refuses to extend the Employment Period under this
Agreement or another employment agreement with material terms (other than the length of
the term) as favorable to Employee as in this Agreement, then Employee’s obligations under
Section 6 shall expire as of the Expiration Date.

10. Representations and Warranties. Employee hereby represents and warrants
to the Company that (a) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by
Employee does not and will not conflict with, breach, violate or cause a default under any
agreement, contract or instrument to which Employee is a party or any judgment, order or
decree to which Employee is subject, (b) Employee is not and will not be a party to or bound
by any employment agreement, consulting agreement, non-compete agreement,
confidentiality agreement or similar agreement with any other person or entity that is
inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement and (c) this Agreement is a valid and
binding obligation of Employee.

11.  Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed duly given (a) on the date of delivery if delivered personally, or if by
facsimile or e-mail or (b) on the first business day following the date of dispatch if delivered
utilizing an overnight delivery service or (c) on the date of receipt if mailed. All notices
hereunder shall be delivered to the addresses set forth below as follows:

If to Employee:
The last address on file with the Company

If to the Company:

Broadmark Realty Capital, Inc.
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1420 Fifth Ave, Suite 2000
Seattle, WA 98101
Facsimile: 206-623-2213
Attention: President

with a copy to:

Bryan Cave Leighton Paisner LLP
1201 W Peachtree St NW

14th Floor

Atlanta, GA 30309

Facsimile: 404-572-6999
Attention: Eliot Robinson

or to such other address as the parties hereto may designate in writing to the other in
accordance with this Section 11. Any party may change the address to which notices are to be
sent by giving written notice of such change of address to the other parties in the manner
above provided for giving notice.

12. General Provisions.

(a) Severability. It is the desire and intent of the parties hereto that the
provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the laws and
public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought. Accordingly, if
any particular provision of this Agreement shall be adjudicated by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable for any reason, such provision, as to
such jurisdiction, shall be ineffective, without invalidating the remaining provisions of this
Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or affecting the
validity or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if such provision could be more narrowly drawn so as not to be invalid, prohibited
or unenforceable in such jurisdiction, it shall, as to such jurisdiction, be so narrowly drawn,
without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or
enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

(b) Complete Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes and
cancels all other contracts, agreements, representations and understandings between the
parties or their affiliates, whether written or oral, expressed or implied, including without
limitation the offer letter dated November 13, 2019 from the Company to Employee. This
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of each party, their parent companies,
subsidiaries and affiliates, and each of their respective officers, directors, shareholders,
investors, business associates, owners, partners, employees, representatives, agents,
contractors and assigns. The terms of this Agreement are the result of negotiations in which
each party had the opportunity to review and revise any term herein.
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Consequently, this Agreement shall not be construed for or against either party as a result of
the manner in which it was drafted.

(©) Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise provided herein, this
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Employee and the Company and
its respective successors, permitted assigns, personal representatives, heirs and estates, as the
case may be; provided, however, that the rights and obligations of Employee under this
Agreement shall not be assigned without the prior written consent of the Company and the
Company may assign the rights and obligations of this Agreement to any affiliate of the
Company or any successor or permitted assign of the Company’s business or assets, and such
assignment by the Company will not constitute a termination under Section 4.

(d) Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT, AND ALL CLAIMS,
DISPUTES AND CONTROVERSIES RELATED HERETO OR ARISING HEREFROM,
SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED, APPLIED AND ENFORCED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, WITHOUT
REGARD TO CONFLICT OF LAW PRINCIPLES. NO DEFENSE, COUNTERCLAIM OR
RIGHT OF SETOFF GIVEN OR ALLOWED BY THE LAWS OF ANY OTHER STATE
OR JURISDICTION, OR ARISING OUT OF THE ENACTMENT, MODIFICATION OR
REPEAL OF ANY LAW, REGULATION, ORDINANCE OR DECREE OF ANY
FOREIGN JURISDICTION, BE INTERPOSED IN ANY ACTION HEREON. THE
PROVISIONS OF  THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE  ENFORCEABLE
NOTWITHSTANDING THE EXISTENCE OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION OF
EMPLOYEE AGAINST COMPANY, WHETHER PREDICATED ON THIS
AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE.

(e) Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. EMPLOYEE HEREBY
VOLUNTARILY, UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY AGREES AND
SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE FEDERAL AND STATE COURTS OF THE
STATE OF WASHINGTON AND APPELLATE COURTS FROM ANY THEREOF FOR
ANY CLAIM, ACTION OR DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS
AGREEMENT, AND WAIVES AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT ANY DEFENSE THAT
ANY SUCH COURT LACKS JURISDICTION, VENUE IS IMPROPER, OR THE FORUM
IS INCONVENIENT. EMPLOYEE AND COMPANY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND
KNOWINGLY WAIVE (TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW) ANY
RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING (INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY COUNTERCLAIM) ARISING OUT OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER AGREEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS RELATED
HERETO OR THERETO, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY ACTION OR
PROCEEDING: (I) TO ENFORCE OR DEFEND ANY RIGHTS UNDER OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY INSTRUMENT, DOCUMENT OR
AGREEMENT DELIVERED OR WHICH MAY IN THE FUTURE BE DELIVERED IN
CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR (I) ARISING FROM ANY DISPUTE OR
CONTROVERSY IN
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CONNECTION WITH OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. COMPANY AND
EMPLOYEE AGREE THAT ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING SHALL BE TRIED
BEFORE A COURT AND NOT A JURY.

® Withholdings. All payments hereunder are subject to withholding for
applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes and any other deductions
authorized by Employee or required by law.

(2) Amendment and Waiver. The provisions of this Agreement may be
amended and waived only with the prior written consent of the Board or the Compensation
Committee and Employee, and no course of conduct or failure or delay in enforcing the
provisions of this Agreement shall affect the validity, binding effect or enforceability of this
Agreement or any provision hereof.

(h) Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are
inserted for convenience only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement.

1) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

) Business Days. If any time period for giving notice or taking action
hereunder expires on a day which is not a business day in the State of Washington, the time
period for giving notice or taking action shall be automatically extended to the immediately
following business day.

(k) Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements. All
representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall survive the termination of
this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, Employee’s obligations under Sections 6 through
8 hereof shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason (including, without
limitation, upon nonrenewal of the agreement by either party).

0 Section 409A. To the extent applicable, this Agreement shall be
interpreted in accordance with, and incorporate the terms and conditions required by, Section
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Department of Treasury
regulations and other interpretive guidelines issued thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A4”).
All payments under this Agreement are intended to be exempt from Section 409A to the
maximum extent possible, and to the extent they are not exempt, they are intended to be
compliant with Section 409A, and all provisions of this Agreement shall be construed
consistent with that intent. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement:
(i) to the extent necessary to comply with the exemption from Section 409A under Treasury
Regulations Section 1.409A-1(b)(9) or to comply with Section 409A, amounts that are
payable in reference to Employee’s termination of employment shall be deemed to be payable
in reference to “separation from service” within the meaning of
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Treasury Regulations Section 1.409A-1(h); (ii) if, on the date on which Employee incurs a
separation from service, Employee is a “specified employee” as defined in Section 409A, any
amount that constitutes deferred compensation and that becomes payable by reason of such
separation from service (including any amount described in Clause (1)) shall be deferred until
the earlier of the first day of the seventh month following the month that includes the
separation from service or Employee’s death; (iii) for purposes of Section 409A, Employee’s
right to receive installment payments pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated as a right to
receive a series of separate and distinct payments; and (iv) to the extent that any
reimbursement of expenses or in-kind benefits constitutes “deferred compensation” under
Section 409A, such reimbursement or benefit shall be provided no later than December 31 of
the year following the year in which the expense was incurred. The amount of expenses
reimbursed in one year shall not affect the amount eligible for reimbursement in any
subsequent year. The amount of any in-kind benefits provided in one year shall not affect the
amount of in-kind benefits provided in any other year. While the Company intends that no
payment under this Agreement shall be subject to tax under Code Section 409A, the
Company provides no guarantee of tax consequences to Employee and Employee shall be
responsible for his own taxes.

(m)  Nouns and Pronouns. Whenever the context may require, any pronouns
used herein shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine or neuter forms, and the
singular form of nouns and pronouns shall include the plural and vice-versa.

(n) Construction. Where specific language (such as the word “including”)
is used to clarify by example a general statement contained herein, such specific language
shall not be deemed to modify, limit or restrict in any manner the construction of the general
statement to which it relates. The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the
language chosen by the parties hereto to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict
construction shall be applied against any party hereto.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Employment
Agreement as of the date first written above.

BROADMARK REALTY CAPITAL INC.

By: /s/ Jeffrey B. Pyatt
Name: Jeffrey B. Pyatt
Title: Chief Executive Officer

DANIEL HIRSTY

/s/ Daniel Hirsty
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF BROADMARK REALTY CAPITAL INC.

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Formation
BRMK Lending, LLC Delaware
BRMK Management, Corp. Delaware
Broadmark Private REIT Management, LLC Delaware
Cataldo Square, LLC Washington
PBRELF — Courthouse Lots, LLC Washington
PBRELF — Independence Station, LLC Washington
PBRELF Bella Commons, LLC Washington
PBRELF Clearview Sheldon, LLC Washington
PBRELF Honeysuckle, LLC Washington
PBRELF Peak, LLC Washington

South Hill Meridian, LLC Washington




Exhibit 22.1

SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS AND ISSUERS

Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (the “Company”) registered debt securities on a Form S-3 Registration Statement (File No.
333-251075) (the “Registration Statement”) that may be offered and sold by the Company and that may be guaranteed by its
subsidiaries, BRMK Lending, LLC and BRMK Management, Corp. The Registration Statement also included debt securities

of BRMK Lending, LLC that if offered and sold will be guaranteed by the Company and may be guaranteed by BRMK
Management, Corp.




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8, No. 333-236197 and Form S-3, No. 333-251075) of
Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (the “Company” or “Successor”) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for the year ended December 31, 2020
and the period from November 15, 2019 to December 31, 2019 and the financial statements of the former Broadmark Entities (collectively, the
“Predecessor”) for the period from January 1, 2019 to November 14, 2019 and the year ended December 31, 2018, and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Broadmark Realty Capital
Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2020.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Everett, Washington
March 1, 2021




Exhibit 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Certification
I, Jeffrey B. Pyatt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2021
/s/ Jeffrey B. Pyatt
Jeffrey B. Pyatt
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Certifications

I, David Schneider, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 1, 2021
/s/ David Schneider
David Schneider
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION
OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Jeffrey B. Pyatt, Chief Executive Officer of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019 (the “Report”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 1, 2021
/s/ Jeffrey B. Pyatt

Jeffrey B. Pyatt
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION
OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, David Schneider, Chief Financial Officer of Broadmark Realty Capital Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019 (the “Report”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 1, 2021

/s/ David Schneider
David Schneider
Chief Financial Officer




